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The Company intensifies its development in
Shenzhen and focuses on the Greater Bay Area

Shenzhen Investment Limited has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 1997. Shum Yip Group, being its controlling shareholder, is an integrated conglomerate
directly managed by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shenzhen Municipal.
Positioned as an “Innovative Constructor of Industrial Cities, Wealthy Livelihood Operator”, the Company’s core
businesses include property development, property investment and comprehensive urban operation services, and

it also engages in innovative businesses such as high-tech agriculture and high-end manufacturing, endeavoring to
transform and upgrade into a technology-based industry group focusing on the development of urban complex and
investment in technology industry.

By intensifying its development in Shenzhen, focusing on the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and
planning for its development in the Yangtze River Delta and high-tier cities such as key provincial capital cities, the Group
currently has a land reserve with gross floor area of approximately 6.74 million square meters in various cities of China,
of which the quality land reserve with gross floor area of approximately 4.44 million square meters is located in the
Greater Bay Area. The Company is committed to optimizing its land reserves structure, and concentrates its assets and
business in the Greater Bay Area as well as high-tier cities in key regions.

@3 Shum Yip Natural City
REILKRETEE

It has all along been the Company’s core strategic goal to promote the long term sustainable development of its
business, with an aim to bring a stable return and create value appreciation for its shareholders.
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@ Over 20 development projects
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This diagram shows the geographical locations of the development projects of the Group
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Revenue
Cost of sales and services
Gross profits

Share of results of joint ventures
and associates

Profit before income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year
attributable to owners of
the Company

Basic (loss)/earning per share
(HK cents)

Interim and proposed final
dividend per share (HK cents)

Iz 15,832.13
SHE R R AR A (10,721.44)
EF 5,110.69
EHAEARRBEDREERR
(682.70)
B TS TR A 1,775.91
ADEERBRRFAEMG (BB),/ %5
(261.40)
BREX (BB) /&% (8il)
(2.94)
SRPHRESRORE (B
9.00

31,540.23
(20,847.66)
10,692.57

391.44

7,367.04

2,085.42

23.43

15.00

(49.80)%
(48.57)%
(52.20)%

(274.41)%

(75.89)%

(112.53)%

(112.55)%

(40.00)%

Financial Position

Net assets excluding
non-controlling interests

Cash and bank deposits
(including restricted cash and
bank deposits)

Net debt

Net assets per share excluding
non-controlling interests (HK$)

BEFE (TREFERER)

42,337.61
Re RBITER (BREZRAR S RETER)

14,443.23
BERFE 24,595.87
BREEFE (TREFERER) (BT) 076

44,631.84

13,361.60
26,860.61

5.02

(5.14)%

8.10%
(8.43)%

(5.18)%

(
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2023 FEEHME

Key Ratios
FHELR

Gross profit margin EFi% 32.28 33.90
Net debt to net assets excluding non-controlling ~ EXFREEEEFE (TBEIFERER) 2%

interests 58.09 60.18
Dividend payout ratio on core profit (Note 1) ZOFERSLE (HFE1) 67.20 43.02

Results (by operating segment)

Fa (BRI

Revenue I
Property development MEER 9,585.49 25,654.00
Property investment MERE 1,420.18 1,195.84
Property management WEER 2,793.58 2,626.76
Manufacturing g 470.97 607.24
Others Hit 1,561.91 1,456.39
Total k] 15,832.13 31,540.23
Segment Results — Profits/(Loss) PEEE - BN (BR)
Property development MEEE 2,089.95 7,603.89
Property investment (Note 2) MERE (ME2) 1,205.33 145.07
Property management MEER 211.81 203.90
Manufacturing BiE 23.77 70.92
Others Hih (196.60) (186.72)
Total okl 3,334.26 7,837.06
Note: B E

BOMBRARRERBREENE (TEER
EVELAEEYLEREAEAABEREFE) -

DREEBERANEANEEZYRERERE

1 Core profit is the profit attributable to owners of the Company excluding the net change in 1
fair value of investment properties and change in fair value of financial assets.

2 Segment results included the gains result from changes in fair value of and transfer to 2 3 <
investment properties approximately HK$554.65 million (2022: losses approximately Y EERIRES49554.65 8 B8 (20224 « 518
HK$351.89 million). 49351898 8B TT) ©

3 Details of segment results of the Group is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial 3 REBMABEEFBHERGRE M HREMGES -

statements.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
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Results S
Revenue % 15,832,132 31,540,226 32,050,306 18,803,011 14,919,474
Profit before income tax BRETERATER 1,775,912 7,367,039 3,647,978 8,133,603 6,684,537
Income tax expense Frig Y (1,582,516)  (4,911,695)  (5,748,231)  (4,170,113)  (2,307,247)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERER/(HB) 193,396 2,455,344 (2,100,253) 3,963,490 4,377,290
Attributable to: THIEL -

Owners of the Company AAAIERRE (261,397) 2,085,418  (2,721,886) 3,722,856 4,062,796

Non-controlling interests R 454,793 369,926 621,633 240,634 314,494

193,396 2,455,344 (2,100,253) 3,963,490 4,377,290

Assets, liabilities and non- B5E - 8K

controlling interests FERER
Current assets HEEE 116,688,110 103,146,094 99,570,373 85,765,676 61,565,489
Non-current assets FRBEE 57,725,248 60,321,495 63,195,498 66,510,150 63,707,453
Total assets BEE 174,413,358 163,467,589 162,765,871 152,275,826 125,272,942
Total liabilities #aE (126,933,147) (113,910,616) (108,395,991)  (96,869,978)  (76,900,647)
Net assets BEFE 47,480,211 49,556,973 54,369,880 55,405,848 48,372,295
Non-controlling interests e ES (5,142,605)  (4,925,132)  (5,194,954)  (4,781,563)  (3,897,639)
Total equity attributable to owners of ARRERRRIER

the Company et 42,337,606 44,631,841 49,174,926 50,624,285 44,474,656

(
007%%
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“Promote stability and
development with progress,

and seek transformation through
breakthroughs after building-up”

[V R > Josr Raa A |

In 2023, the unfavorable factors in the international political and economic
environment increased, while the US dollar interest rate continued to rise
the domestic economic development situation was complex, cyclical and
structural contradictions were superimposed, and the real estate supply and
demand underwent significant changes. The real estate market was in a
downward bottoming out and bottom-out stage. In the face of the severe market
environment, the Group adhered to the main principle of stable operation,
combined steady growth with high-quality development, and proactively rose to
the challenge to push forward its various operational efforts. Although contracted
sales in 2023 broke through to a new high against the market growth, the
Group’s revenue carryover scale declined more significantly due to the fact
that most of the projects sold did not meet the carryover conditions and the
sales of inventories were less than expected. Coupled with the combination of
factors such as losses from associates and an increase in finance costs, the
Company suffered a loss attributable to equity shareholders of HK$261 million.
Taking no account of the net effect of changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and financial assets owned by the Group, as well as the
effect of results of associates and joint ventures, the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company would have been HK$1.92 billion. The Board of
Directors recommends that the Company pay a final dividend of HK7.00 cents per
share for 2023 in cash as a return to shareholders.

s
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Future Gate
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Focus on the with steady development of
industrial-city operations

Contracted sales grew against the market trend

Against the backdrop of an overall downturn in the real estate market, we
achieved contracted real estate sales of approximately RMB26.6 billion in 2023,
a year-on-year increase of 38%, exceeding the annual target. Upper Coast, with
a sales amount of RMB13.3 billion for a single property, became the double
champion in 2023 with the largest number of units put up for sale and the
largest transaction amount in the country, while the projects such as Zhongshan
Bay Front, Shanghai Shum Yip Upper Mansion (F/&F %% /&) and Shenzhen
Natural City all achieved brilliant sales results.

principal business,

Continuous improvement in product strength

The Group adheres to lean management and focuses on “Double Excellence”
products and services, which have won the reputation and praise from
customers. Project construction progressed steadily, with a total of 32 projects
under construction throughout the year, with key projects advancing as scheduled
and 11 projects launched for sales, of which Shum Yip Cloud Center (%3 Z )
Phase II, Huizhou Garden Hills No. 1 (1L 15%), Chengdu Tairong Mansion and
other projects opened for sales ahead of schedule; and Luxury Mansion (FE#f)
Project achieved only 14-month construction before launch for sales, representing
an efficiency gain of 12.5% compared with the standard construction period.

B - EYCEBRR R

BRHEETER

ERMEMSEERTITNERT  20232FERM
EARHEEN266ETARY - FLER38% » B
TREEER - THERREREERIBRTAR
B MR35 2AREEHRS - ﬁi?&’i\gﬁ?ji
MENTEE : FIERHR - EERERLZ LR
KRB EEBURERENHEERSE -

i )R
EI&%F E.IE BETEEERNRE - B
REMOBMEE - HEELBIHE  2FE8E

B&sr32f - EFEBENEEELE  1MEEEE
RAR  HPREZZE -8 SHEL1% - R#%
AREEASTERAMR - EMAEEER14MA
B - SURETHIRMI2.5% o



Resource development was selected among the best

A breakthrough was made in urban renewal, with the signing of a land use right
contract for Phase Il of the first renewal project in Chegongmiao, bringing the
11-year demolition and relocation work to a successful conclusion. The project
of coordinating interests has achieved stage-by-stage results. The proposal of
the project of coordinating interests in Henggang South Area has passed the
first trial, while the demolition and relocation of Baihua Area in Guangming
District has realized 97% of the signing of contracts. We actively and steadily
participated in open market land bidding and acquired quality land resources in
Shenzhen and Zhongshan. During the year, it added 454,000 square meters of
new land reserves, with the added value of RMB15.4 billion, which have further
supplemented our quality land reserves.

Focus on operation, brand effect to play effectively

Operation business opened up

The Group actively expanded its comprehensive urban operation business,
and in 2023, the net expanded contracted area of Shum Yip Operations was
approximately 12.19 million square meters. In terms of urban and public
construction services, we successfully promoted the renewal of two property
management urban projects in Baolong Street and Jihua Street with price
increases; expanded 66 high-quality public construction projects such as
Shenzhen Library and the Art Museum; innovated the integrated operation
and management mode of ‘park + business’, and the Bijiashan Sports Park
was put into operation. In terms of commercial operation services, the Group
actively created “Hong Kong people-friendly” consumption scenarios. Upperhills’
customer flow of the year exceeded 40 million visits and sales exceeded RMB5
billion, representing a year-on-year growth of approximately 35%; The first
Galeries Lafayette department store in South China opened grandly, introducing
11 heavyweight first stores, with sales and floor area efficiency ranking first
in Lafayette department store nationwide; Women and Children Tower was
renovated, and was recognized by the National Development and Reform
Commission as a typical case of the revitalization of inventory assets to be
promoted across the country; Our self-operated hotel brand “Jingju” has been
launched, and the first “Jingju Hotel” has been put into operation; and Mandarin
Oriental Shenzhen was awarded a five-star rating by Forbes Travel Guide.

Inventory assets operation enhancement

In 2023, the Group took various measures to enhance the efficiency of inventory
operation and promote the enhancement of asset value and rental income growth.
Upperhills signed a total of 11 Fortune 500 companies for its writing buildings,
ranking second in Shenzhen. Older properties such as Shenhua Science &
Technology Park (FERXE) and Jinzhi Industrial Station (% TZuk) were
promoted for upgrading and reconstruction, realizing an increase in average rent.
During the year, the Group realized property investment income of approximately
HK$1.42 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 19% over
last year; the overall occupancy rate was 88%, showing a stable and improving
trend. Hotel operation revenue achieved a historic breakthrough, realizing revenue
of approximately HK$470 million, a significant increase of 62%.
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Focusing on innovation with continuously releasing development
momentum

Actively lay out modern agriculture

The Group follows the direction of the national policy of strengthening and
promoting agriculture, and the scale of our agricultural industry continues to
expand, with a planting area of 4,000 acres and an output of nearly 7 million
pounds of corn, rice and vegetables. The Group realized an agricultural income
of approximately HK$506 million in 2023. We build modern agricultural parks in
Shenzhen Shantou, Nan'ao and Xinfeng to a high standard, while the construction
and operation of Four Seasons Garden (KMZME), Four Seasons Flower
Wonderland (TUZ7E4), and Four Seasons Farm (FUZ2£35) commenced and
were put into operation one after another.

Scientific and technological innovation achieved good results

Jinghua, a subsidiary of the Group, continued to increase investment in research
and development to promote human-computer interaction technological
innovation, applied for 15 intellectual property rights in 2023, and obtained
11 authorized patents; it successfully developed a colorful touch-screen line
control, which can realize the three-way linkage between the controller, the
APP intelligent application scenarios and the equipment, and enhance the
human-computer interaction experience. The technique is somewhat advanced in
the industry.

Focusing on empowerment and promoting sustainable business
development

Excellent performance in ESG

The Group has been implementing the concept of sustainable development
and actively implementing the “dual carbon” initiative, promoting the parallel
development of its own economic benefits and fulfillment of its social
responsibilities. We adhere to high standards of ESG disclosure, and have
published environmental, social and governance reports for the ninth consecutive
year. We have maintained an A rating in the MSCI-ESG Index by virtue of our
outstanding performance in sustainable development. We also show excellent
performance in the management of issues related to ‘green building” and
“product safety and quality”, with scores far exceeding the industry average. The
Group was selected by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council for the “ESG Pioneer 100 Index of State-owned
Listed Companies’, and our ESG management practices have been highly
recognized.
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Financial management creates value

Under the current difficult financing environment and rising costs for real estate
enterprises outside China, the Group actively raised funds and signed a HK$5
billion medium- and long-term loan; we continuously improved financing costs
and took various measures to utilize the difference in interest rates between
domestic and foreign markets, saving finance costs of more than HK$77 million;
and we vigorously promoted the securitization of assets and successfully issued
two Quasi-REITs products, with a total issuance scale of approximately RMB2.29
billion and an issuance interest rate of 3.60%.

Capital operation is being promoted in order

Shum Yip Operations has submitted its listing application to the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Under the current tightened regulatory environment, Shum Yip
Operations actively communicated and gave feedback and obtained the filing
notice from the CSRC in February 2024, which was the first batch of property
management companies that passed the filing of the CSRC since the new filing
regulations were implemented in March 2023.

Continuous optimization of human resources

The Group focuses on talent selection and appointment, introduction and
cultivation, and has set up an employment orientation that emphasizes frontline,
practical work, performance and recognition. We coordinate the middle-level
competition and campus recruitment of our entities, making the talent team
more reasonable. We carry out on-the-job training for new middle-level staff,
and enhance the quality and expansion of talent cultivation. We also push
forward the optimization of the organizational control system, and carry out
performance reform measures combining the “operation table + strategy table”,
further highlighting the pulling effect of incremental performance in determining
incremental incentives.

Corporate culture is deeply rooted in our staff

The Group has always adhered to the core values of “Sunshine and Honesty,
Innovation and Excellence, Diligence and Commitment, Harmony and Sharing”,
and has continuously strengthened the cohesion of our enterprises and the sense
of belonging of the staff. During the year, the Group issued long service badges
to 1,800 employees with more than 20 years of service and awarded exemplary
employees; we built a platform for offering suggestions to encourage young
people to speak up; we organized various cultural and sports activities to enrich
workplace life; we carry out skill “mentoring” work to improve employee career
development, and we also established an innovative workshop for craftsmen to
stimulate team craftsmanship pursuit.
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Currently, the real estate market is still in deep correction, and despite the
frequent positive policies, it still takes time for the market to mitigate the risks
and recover, and the situation of the industry is still severe. In the face of the
difficulties and challenges in 2024, we will follow the general idea of “focusing
on operation with one hand and transformation with the other”, and adhere
to the principle of “seek progress while stabilizing, promote stabilization by
progressing, and make a breakthrough after building-up”. We will adapt to the
development trend of new urbanization and changes in the supply and demand
in the real estate market, accelerate the construction of a new model of real
estate development, and make every effort to promote the Group's high-quality
transformation and development.

Facing challenges positively and promoting the steady development of
the principal real estate business

Accelerate sales for capital recovery

In 2024, the Group’s total available-for-sale value will exceed RMB30 hbillion,
with projects mainly located in Shenzhen, Zhongshan, Shanghai, Nanjing and
Chengdu, of which 72% are residential properties. We will take liquidity as the
main consideration to accelerate the turnover and sales, systematically sort out
the available-for-sale resources, accurately study the market, adopt one strategy
for one property, reasonably price in line with the market, seize the impulse
market with “resonance” of local policies, and when necessary, seek high sales
volume at lower prices to recycle capital as early as possible.

Active planning and revitalize inventory assets

The Group currently holds approximately 1.73 million square meters of stock
properties with a fair value of approximately HK$33.5 billion. Last year, we
successfully implemented our plan for the launch of REITs. Next, we will carry
out in-depth planning in the operation and management, value enhancement and
securitization of these assets, so as to promote the effective revitalization and
value release of the inventory assets, and to achieve a balance between the scale
of the Group’s asset management and profits.

Targeted investment, promote the coordinated benefits

The Group will accelerate urban renewal, actively promote Bagualing, Shangbu
area and other urban renewal projects, and strive to realize the transformation
of resources as soon as possible; speed up submission and approval of the
planning and implementation plan of coordinated benefits project in Henggang
South and Guangming Shangcun, expedite the recruitment market participants for
Guangming Baihua project and Longgang Sankesong project as soon as possible,
and strive for early land supply; in respect of the public market, we will focus on
the core projects in key regions, select the best from high-quality projects, and
participate at the right time.
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Integrate the Group's resources and accelerate the construction of a
new development model

Take the initiative to embrace the new moadel and change the way of value
creation

The transformation to a new development model essentially involves a shift from
a single value creation process, which was mainly focused on space construction,
to a diversified value creation process, which emphasizes space construction,
operation and services. During the 13th Five-Year Plan period, the Group began
to vigorously cultivate an operation platform to build its core competitiveness.
After years of iteration and integration, the operation platform has a certain scale
and capability, laying a solid foundation for the transformation of the real estate
business. Meanwhile, we have gradually transformed from a real estate developer
to an operator and service provider, accelerating the construction of a new real
estate development model.

Strengthen the operation brand, and expand the business pattern

The Group’s operation platforms are becoming more mature. The next step
is to focus on building a series of brands to boost market share with brand
influence, and improve the revenue scale and market position of the operation
business. In terms of property operation, we will try to get Shenzhen state-owned
high-quality resources for Shum Yip Operations, and strive to exceed 100
million square meters of the management scale as soon as possible, entering
the first tier of the industry in China. In terms of commercial operation, relying
on benchmark projects such as UpperHills, the Group will further strengthen its
commercial operation capability, improve the ecological chain of the business
circle, and acquire more commercial resources. In terms of hotel management,
we will further improve the product series of “Jingju” brand, closely follow up
on hotel projects in Zhongshan, Shenzhen and other places. We will continue
to build up our branding capabilities and increase our business scale with an
asset-light model, providing new profit growth points for the Group’s sustainable
development.

Take development opportunities and transform to a new model of asset
management

With the progress of the coordinated benefits projects, the scale of the Group’s
commercial and industrial will continue to increase in the future. We will refer to
our successful experience of commercial operations to realize the accumulation
of operational capabilities through the creation of benchmark projects, the
separation of asset ownership and operation rights through internal marketization
and changes in performance appraisal, and then gradually realize the closed
loop from asset management to capital operation through the implementation of
the asset management plan, promoting the transition to a new model of assets
management.
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Promote the development of transformation and accelerate the
scale-up of innovation platforms

Strengthen high-tech agriculture and serve people’s livelihood

We will dig into the industrial potential of high-tech agriculture, accelerate the
creation of an integrated industrial system of breeding, propagation, promotion
and trading; continue to build modern agricultural industrial parks with high
standards, strengthen the brand effect of the “Four Seasons” agricultural tourism,
promote the opening operation of Dapeng Four Seasons Garden and Nan'ao Four
Seasons Garden and continue to look for expansion opportunities for agricultural
tourism projects in the urban-rural fringe areas of the first-tier and second-tier
cities.

Focus on advanced manufacturing, accelerate science and technology innovation
The Group has clearly taken Jinghua Electronics as the breakthrough point to
expand and strengthen the development of the advanced manufacturing industry.
Jinghua Company will continue to promote the optimization of product structure
and technology innovation, expand the development of overseas markets and
customers and accelerate the site selection and research of overseas production
bases. Through the system of “business services + technical services”, we will
bind downstream major customers and achieve rapid expansion of overseas
business.

Promote capital attraction, facilitate extended development

The Group will play the role of capital attraction, strengthen capital operation
through market-oriented means, carefully select industrial resource targets,
accelerate the upstream and downstream layout of the industry chain by mergers
and acquisitions, and cultivate the ecology of synergistic development of the
industry; Shum Yip Operations will pay close attention to the capital market,
complete the issuance of IPO at the right time, and carry out the mergers
and acquisitions of the property service industry chain when appropriate in
accordance with the plan for the use of proceeds to achieve non-linear growth.

Risk prevention to ensure high-quality development of enterprises

In the face of persistent pressure on the economy, the Group will attach great
importance to financial security, make every effort to prevent risks and safeguard
the high-quality development of our enterprise. We will promote the recovery of
cash as soon as possible, strengthen the integrated management of funds, and
enhance the efficiency of funds utilization; continue to optimize the capital and
debt structure, reduce the scale of foreign liabilities, and take various measures
to reduce financial expenses; have meticulous planning and careful accounting,
strengthen the control of costs and expenses, and achieve cost reduction and
efficiency gains in management; formulate a reasonable investment strategy,
take into account the return and liquidity, and insist on quality investment; and
strengthen the management of equity participating enterprises, and achieve
asset preservation and appreciation through monitoring, management, and exit
methods.
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As an enterprise operating in Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macao Greater Bay
Area for 40 years and listed in Hong Kong for more than 26 years, Shenzhen
Investment has experienced many rounds of market cycles. From “Building Living
Vision” to “Value Shaper of Urban Space” to “Innovative Constructor of Industrial
Cities, Wealthy Livelihood Operator”’, we have been moving forward with our
original intention in mind, continuously adjusting and transforming, constantly
developing and growing. Standing at a new starting point in the new journey,
facing new situations and tasks, we will promote stability and development with
progress, and seek transformation through breakthroughs after building-up. We
will make new contributions to the high-quality transformation and development
of the Group with more passion, higher fighting spirit, and more pragmatic style!

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their long-term concern,
support and trust in the Group! We look forward to continuing to walk hand in
hand with all of you on the new road of development.

LU Hua
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Since 2023, the relationship between supply and demand in the real estate
industry has changed significantly. The central government has set the tone
of “stabilising the pillar, preventing risks and promoting demand”, and local
supportive policies such as relaxation of purchase restrictions have been
launched, but the market recovery was still restricted by factors such as the
continued downward expectation of the industry, and the sustainability of the
policy effect in core cities was also insufficient. Amid the severe downturn in
the industry, the Group adhered to the principle of “steady operation”, strived
to overcome the adverse impact of the industry downturn and other obstacles,
combined the task of steady growth with high-quality development, and worked
conscientiously to promote various aspects of the work.

During the year, affected by factors including the decrease in booked area of the
projects, loss from the associates and the increase in finance costs, operating
results decreased year-on-year. The Group realised turnover of HK$15,832
million, representing a decrease of approximately 49.8% as compared to last
year. Gross profit was HK$5,111 million, with overall gross profit margin of
32.3%. Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$261
million. If excluding the net effect of changes in fair value of investment
properties attributable to the Group and changes in fair value of financial assets
and the effect of results from associates and joint ventures, profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was HK$1.92 billion.

Sales Revenue Booked

During the year, the revenue booked decreased as most of the pre-sold properties
have not yet reached the carryover conditions and the sales of inventories were
less than expected. The Group recorded property sales booked of approximately
415 thousand square meters (excluding interests attributable to the major
associates of the Group), representing a decrease of approximately 43.1%
over last year, and achieved sales revenue booked of approximately RMB8,632
million (equivalent to approximately HK$9,585 million) (net of value-added tax),
representing a decrease of approximately 62.6% over last year. Guangzhou and
Shenzhen projects contributed 56% of the sales revenue booked. Gross profit
margin of property development and sales was 36.5%, representing a decrease
of approximately 0.1 percentage points over last year.
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Breakdown of Property Sales Booked in 2023
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Shum Yip Cloud Center
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Shum Yip Natural City
REILKRAIEE
Bofeng Building
BERE

Taifu Square
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Zhifeng Tower
BERE
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RE LR

Parkview Bay
BEERT
Moon River Palace
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BrE

Apartment/office

B/ BFE
Warehousing/commercial/office
- VA-EVE N
Innovative industrial building
BIFEXAE
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Shenzhen Investment Limited Z Y 2B AR A F)

Starry Lakeshore Residential Dongguan 35,252 316,307

WHEBER FE R%

Bay Front Residential/office Zhongshan 112,363 1,676,936

R FE/BFE Bl

Royal Spring Garden Villa Chaohu 771 13,348

FHH R RIE £

Yihu Rose Garden Commercial/residential Chengdu 824 13,073

TeBERSE LA P E

Shum Yip Huating Residential Chengdu 446 8,199

REERE FE &

Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Commercial Ma'anshan 1,062 16,176

BRINREER G skl

Shenma Industrial Park Plant Ma'anshan 23,168 69,364

Upper Life Commercial/residential Nanjing 311 10,065

BBLE L gRe BR

Longwan Mansion Residential Nanjing 6,307 278,297

BEE L = B

Splendid City Commercial Taizhou 1,693 18,389

BREEN Gk ZM

Jiangyin Shum Yip Technology Plant Wuxi 5,901 28,861
Industrial Park

IRRENRERE WE &

Nanhu Rose Bay Commercial/residential Wuhan 32,426 546,668

BB wE Ex 2

Heron Mansion Ancillary office/residential Changsha 1,975 27,676

i 1=35i EEHRA/EE =908

Ruicheng Office Changsha 783 3,452

B BFE =3

Parking space'”® - 84,660

By

Total &3t 415,333 8,631,686

Note: 1,437 parking spaces were sold

Kz - BALSEEA,437 18
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Contracted Sales

In 2023, the Group recorded contracted sales amount of approximately
RMB26,590 million (equivalent to approximately HK$29,520 million), exceeding
its full-year sales target. Contracted sales area was approximately 714,000
square meters, and the average price per square meter was RMB37,229. The
contracted sales were mainly attributable to the Shenzhen Upper Coast project
which was nearly 95% sold on the launching day, being the sales champion of
commercial residential projects with a record high in terms of both the number
of units and sales amount of single-day sales in China, and realised contracted
amount of approximately RMB13.3 billion during the year; and Zhongshan Bay
Front project which continued to record impressive sales, with total transaction
amount of RMB3.36 billion. Compared with the total sales of the national top
100 real estate enterprises in 2023, which fell by 17% year-on-year, the Group's
annual contracted sales increased by 38.4% over last year against the general
trend, which saw remarkable results.

By geographical location, projects in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area accounted for 88.2% of the contracted sales amount, and the other
11.4% and 0.4% came from projects in the municipalities and provincial capitals
and other cities respectively. By the types of products, residential products
accounted for 90% of contracted sales, and non-residential products (including
office, apartment and industrial park) accounted for 10%.
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Project City Type Sales Area Sales'e?
5H Wi ESd HEER wESE
(sg.m.) (RMB’000)
(FAHK) (AR®TT)
Natural City Shenzhen Residential 30,464 1,039,782
L7KERI 3l Fx
UpperHills Shenzhen Industrial R&D, apartment 5,434 412,816
s At sl EH - 1B
Shum Yip Taifu Square Shenzhen Apartment 28,743 1,081,065
REREES sl N
Shum Yip Tairui Mansion Shenzhen Residential 6,003 275,384
FERI 3l (23
Shum Yip Park Mansion Shenzhen Residential 24,092 686,945
AEERG 2l T
Shum Yip Luxury Mansion Shenzhen Residential 6,053 435,971

REBHRT 3l (E3
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Upper Coast Shenzhen Residential 167,361 13,308,950
EBEER il FE

Sky Park Shenzhen Apartment 2,907 273,035
RER 3l N

Tanglang City "t Shenzhen Apartment 157 11,530
YRR 3l YN

Shum Yip Cloud Center Shenzhen Residential 30,076 1,287,977
REEE el iz

Moon River Palace Guangzhou Parking space 1,254 16,489
B BM By

Shum Yip Scenery Bay Guangzhou Residential 39,325 694,866
REEER M =

Shum Yip Bustling City Foshan Residential 1,377 24,216
REIEILTESE il Tz

Shunde Shum Yip City Foshan Residential 11,452 178,248
B R % 55 il FE

Garden Hills Huizhou Residential 19,640 157,787
FILE £yl =

Gaobangshan No. 1 Huizhou Residential 28,177 213,807
mELTHR =M =

Wanlin Lake Huizhou Residential 1,495 2,486
B8 B2M =

Oujing City Dongguan Parking space 24 370
B R B

Bay Front Zhongshan Residential, apartment 145,324 3,361,816
Lkt L (ERI/N:

Saina Bay Heyuan Parking space 2 101
Eing AR By

Shum Yip Upper Mansion Shanghai Residential 23,993 838,592
RERZ LR s FE

Jiangyin Shum Yip Nanjing Industrial R&D 1,977 10,675

Technology Industrial Park

TRAEMBREXE HR EH
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Longwan Mansion
B LA

Nanwan Mansion
HE LR

Shum Yip Upper Life
REBELRE
Shenma East China

Industrial Technology
Industrial Park

REERTE
HBEXE

Shum Yip Heron Mansion
REEER

Changsha Ruicheng Xihui
ROEREE

Qingbaijiang Shum Yip
Taifu Square

BRIAEREES
Shum Yip North Shore
REILEM

Shum Yip Dongyue Mansion
RERIT

Shum Yip Huating

REERE

Shum Yip Tairong Mansion
RERB

Shum Yip Yihu Rose Garden
RENRRBIRIE

Nanhu Rose Bay
HRERE

Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu
FIREER

Splendid City

BEEN

Nanjing
BR
Nanjing
MR
Nanjing
2
Nanjing

ZER

Changsha
=3
Changsha
=324
Chengdu

P E
Chengdu
RE
Chengdu
P E
Chengdu
E
Chengdu
g
Chengdu
E
Wuhan
953
Changzhou
wM
Taizhou

M

Parking space, commercial
B - BE

Residential

=

Parking space

B

Industrial R&D

EH

Residential
=
Commercial
[GES

Residential

=%

Residential

Tx

Residential

£

Residential

=

Residential

T

Commercial

[GES

Commercial, parking space
HE - EfU

Parking space, commercial
B BE

Parking space

Bfy

802

10,672

979

15,853

1,287

1,304

7,360

13,722

15,041

448

27,235

210

33,190

116

2,814

29,219

498,943

18,577

51,881

21,620

7,834

54,475

103,665

203,998

8,937

570,784

2,065

602,840

470

25,811
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Shum Yip Yungi Garden Taizhou Residential 1,411 21,579
REEES ZM %
Royal Spring Garden Chaohu Residential 515 9,118
FHMRE £ fF=x
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma'anshan Commercial, parking space 2,903 30,419
BERILRFERN S8 EER:
Shenma Cihu High-tech Ma’anshan Industrial R&D 2,916 10,418
Industrial Park
ABEREM S8 E
REEXR
Total & &t 714,106 26,585,561
Note 1: As all the contracted sales took place in Mainland China, the contracted sales i AHSHEHBERTREALMN - & 0HSEIK
figures are expressed in Renminbi. AR ©
Note 2: Sales includes the sales of parking lots. frzt2 HESHEBSHAHEE -
Note 3: Tanglang City project was co-developed with Shenzhen Metro Group, as to 50% R WEEAWMIE R MRV EEEAEFHE - B5
owned by the Group, and it is accounted using equity method. 50% s - ERIAAE -
Project Development and Construction HH BB EN

In 2023, the Group continued to build its product power, continued to enrich and 2023 F * REBEZEITEER N BELENRE
improve the residential product standard research and development system that  [E&+B B+ ] = — S0 ETE BT EHEE
integrates “Product + Management + Technology’, and standard research and % » & - 28 - DESEEWETERILER
development in respect of technology, landscape and public area continued to  S&bEEEEIBE o MiEIE B BEKSE - EE20ER R
deepen and iterate, which were launched to empower projects. The real estate  #Rit A% o

projects won numerous awards, including 20 domestic and international design

awards.

During the year, the Group focused on key projects and strengthened the control £/ » REBEBESLIER @ B(CARGEEE - %
of key nodes, and started construction of projects in eight cities including 3 - F/8S8EMTEBRT - R IEEL159.5
Shenzhen and Shanghai, with a newly started construction area of approximately ~ & 5K  stEBEBE B HIRHALN - BTEBED
1.595 million square meters. The planned completed projects were delivered on ~ 115.8&F 7K °

schedule with a completed area of approximately 1.158 million square meters.
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20234 Hi B THH

B B Wt S oy

Shum Yip Tairui Mansion Shenzhen Residential 214.0
RERIGT il EER
Shum Yip Luxury Mansion Phase 1 Shenzhen Residential 138.0
RERMT— 5 A B
Shum Yip Luxury Mansion Phase 2 Shenzhen Residential 56.2
RS AT — 5 3l B
Huizhou Wanlin Huafu Phase 1 Huizhou Commercial/Residential 159.2
BEMNBMER—H B AERL
Shanghai Shenjia Hydrogen Valley Phase 1 Shanghai Complex 60.0
HEREEA—H s Ra Rt
Shanghai Shenjia Hydrogen Valley Phase 2 Shanghai Complex 85.0
HERREAZH i A= yith
Shanghai Huxi Shangju Phase 1 Shanghai Residential 57.0
HEERLE—# i} BERAM
Shanghai Huxi Shangju Phase 2 Shanghai Residential 62.0
LBERLE=H L& B
Changsha Luxiyunjing Phase 1 Changsha Residential 95.8
ROBEES—H =3 JEERM
Chengdu Longquanyi Project North Land Plot Chengdu Complex 132.0
P ERE R BBIE B bR X Ra
Shum Yip Tairong Mansion Chengdu Residential 225.0
RERAN X E B
Jiangyin Research and Innovation Park Phase 1 Wuxi Industrial 69.0
TR EIE—5 & TER
Taizhou 6/1 Land Plot Phase 1 Taizhou Residential 170.0
FIN6/1338—H ZM JEE A
Ma’anshan Cihu Phase 1 Ma’anshan Industrial 36.0
BgLZEN—5 B TEAH
Ma'anshan Cihu Phase 2 Ma'anshan Industrial 36.0
BELZEN 5 S TEMAH
Total &3t 1,595.2
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Newly Completed Projects in 2023 20234 % LHH

Shum Yip Cloud Center Phase 2 Shenzhen Residential 131.7
RERE_H sl BEA
Shum Yip Taifu Square Kechuang Building Shenzhen Industrial 106.0
RERBRSMEIRE 3l TERH
Pingshan Shum Yip Natural City (Block 1/6) Shenzhen Residential 241.3
FISREILKEISER (1/618) sl B At
Zhongshan Ma'an Island Bay Front Project Phase 1 Zhongshan Complex 46.3
(Residential F26/1.2# Building)
RIS ETRINIER 58 (EEF26/1.2#18) LIt agachiil
Bay Front Project Phase 1 (Office F34) Zhongshan Complex 78.0
EREIAR &8 (HAF34) LI RA
Huizhou Garden Hills No. 1 Land Plot Huizhou Commercial/Residential 155.3
BN 58 B BER
Wuhan Hongshan Shum Yip Taiyun Mansion Wuhan Residential 130.9
RERILRERERN B EEAM
Chengdu Qingbaijiang Project Land Plot S1 Chengdu Complex 200.0
BK#ERIIEE 158 X E BE R
Wuxi Jiangyin Research and Innovation Park Phase 1 Wuxi Industrial 69.0
& TRHEIR—H &5 T¥/AH

Total &5t 1,158.5




Expansion of Land Resources

By adhering to the investment principle of “selecting the best among the best”,
the Group acquired 3 land plots in Longhua North Railway Station business
district, Shenzhen, Ma’an Island, Cuiheng New District, Zhongshan and Hanlinlu,
Shenhe District, Shenyang through open market auction. It has signed the land
use right contract of the north plot for phase Il of the first portion of Chegongmiao
urban renewal project at the end of the year, and successfully transformed the
project resources. Located in Chegongmiao area, Futian District, Shenzhen, the
project is sitting on “2 horizontal and 2 vertical” main roads and the interchange
hub of 4 subway lines with convenient transportation conditions, and types of the
project include office, industrial and commercial, which is planned to build as a
regional benchmark complex integrating intelligent technology, digital creativity,
financial technology and fashion design. The above four new projects have a
total new site area of approximately 137,000 square meters, with a capacity
building area of approximately 454,000 square meters, an estimated value of
approximately RMB15.42 billion and an operating area (including commercial and
hotel) of approximately 121,000 square meters.

New Expansion of Land Resources in 2023
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20234 Hi4h R - G W

Shenzhen Longhua District Land Plot Shenzhen 100%  Complex 1,441 10,118 72,850
A811-0347

FYITEEERAS11-0347 103 AN BA B

Zhongshan Xisanwei Land Plot G28 Zhongshan 50% Residential 1,981 99,039 198,077

FILFE=EG28i il BERM

Shenyang Hanlinlu North Land Plot 18 Shenyang 100%  Complex 539 16,039 24,210
Project

B S 185 LR TE B & BA A

North district of first and second renewal  Shenzhen 100% Commercial 1,145 11,354 159,250
of Chegongmiao service

BRAE-FRHILE I BEREE

i
Total &5t 5,106 136,550 454,387

(
031%%
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Land Reserves

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had land reserves with a capacity building
area of approximately 6.742 million square meters, of which, the projects
not yet started had a capacity building area of approximately 1.091 million
square meters, the projects under construction had a capacity building area of
approximately 5.051 million square meters and the completed but not yet booked
projects had a capacity building area of approximately 0.601 million square
meters. The structure of the land reserve remained reasonable and healthy,
with land reserve in the Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River Delta region and
the second-tier provincial capital cities accounting for 66%, 14% and 19% of
the total capacity buildings area respectively. Besides, the carrying value of
completed properties held for sale amounted to HK$19.74 billion.

Lk

HZE2023F128318 ' THREETAREAREY
67428 FHK ERARHAIBEEMAREREY
1091 8FAK - ERIER M AREEELNS505.18F
AK - BERIARLEEEEFAREARENC01ETH
Ko REBEERBSERRE - NERTEEHAR
SEEEIEHIECC%  RZABEELA14% » —RE
ST A19% © I - BERFE 2B AR MER
RMEE197. 4858 TT °

Distribution of Land Reserves (As at 31 December 2023) F iR A R 2023412 A31H)
By type — Capacity Building Area " (sq.m.) By region — Capacity Building Area " (sq.m.)

ERENSH — HERETE (FHK)

BN H — SARRERRY (FHK)

1%

39%
54%
14%
.

m Commercial = Residential and ® Industrial, logistics and ™ Guangdong- m Yangtze River = 2nd-tier provincial Others
complex commercial warehousing and thers Hong Kong- Delta area capital cities and Hity
FEEAMAM EEREERM  ITERYRER Macao Greater Bay &=/ & others N

Rt & E A Area REeWmR
BERAE HAh

Note: Capacity building area is the sum of the gross floor area which is used in the calculation of
the plot ratio within the land for construction.

Wit A RREmERERAMBEANMAERER
A IRSEEIE 2 40N



In 2023, the Group grasped the opportunity of the recovery of consumption
and the commercial market to take various measures to enhance tenant
sourcing for commercial office buildings, industrial parks, commercial complex
and professional markets. The Group actively promoted the upgrading and
transformation of old properties such as Shenhua Science & Technology Park and
Luohu old city industrial projects to improve quality and efficiency, leading to a
decrease in vacancy rate and rental growth, and the property investment business
recorded significant improvement. During the year, the Group recorded an income
from property investment of approximately HK$1,420 million, representing an
increase of 18.8% over last year. The gross profit margin of property investment
business was approximately 69%, remaining stable as compared to last year.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had investment properties of approximately
1.73 million square meters, with a fair value of approximately HK$33.45 billion.
The Group recorded a revaluation increase in the fair value of its investment
property portfolio of HK$555 million during the year.

Overview of the Business Segment

The Group’s urban integrated operations business, comprising urban and
industrial park property management, residential property management,
commercial operation and property management services, Shum Yip Operations
had a total contracted GFA of approximately 84.07 million square meters
and a total GFA under management of approximately 80.47 million square
meters, of which approximately 74.4% was attributable to independent third-
party projects and 64.4% was attributable to non-residential properties, both
indicators are higher than the industry average. During the year, revenue from
the urban integrated operations business amounted to approximately HK$2.79
billion, representing an increase of 6.4% over last year. With its industry-leading
comprehensive strength and widely-recognised service, the Group was listed
among the “Top 100 Property Service Enterprises China 2023 (No. 17)" (2023
EERBAEMEE 17 1) and ‘2023 Specialised Operational Leading Brand
of China Property Service Companies” (2023 FH B ERBELLBLELR
FE{%) by the China Index Academy, “Top State-Owned Property Management
Companies by Comprehensive Strength (No. 6)" (IENERBEECLEGEEENE 6
%) by the China Property Management Research Institution, etc.
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Operation Business Expansion

In 2023, Shum Yip Operations had net expansion area under management
of approximately 12.19 million square meters (including expansion of joint
ventures), and the market expansion strength remained strong. The urban and
industrial park service made further progress. Shum Yip Operations established
a joint venture in Ma'anshan, Anhui with a local state-owned enterprise, and
successfully won the bid for Ma'anshan city service project, which had contracted
area under management of approximately 4.86 million square meters, with total
contract value of RMB150 million. It renewed the “city housekeeper” project
of Baolong Street and Jihua Street in Shenzhen with higher price and won the
bid for the “city housekeeper” project of Yuanling area in Shenzhen. There was
a breakthrough in public construction project expansion. With “corporate-to-
corporate collaboration”, the Group newly expanded Shandong Mobile (Zibo) and
Hainan Mobile (provincial headquarters) office property management projects
to fill its gap in regional market; and focused on major projects by successfully
expanding 66 high-quality public construction property projects such as Shenzhen
Library (North) and Shenzhen Art Museum (New Venue).

Commercial Operation

In 2023, the Group seized the opportunity brought by the recovery of offline
consumption, stepped up tenant sourcing efforts and tenant optimization,
improved the operation of various commercial projects, made positive progress
in investment promotion, business opening and operation, and further enhanced
its brand value. UpperHills project showed various highlights, leading to better
performance. The grand opening of the first Galeries Lafayette in South China
on 8 July 2023 brought a number of first stores and created a new landmark of
high-end fashion in Shenzhen. A “Hong Kong-friendly” consumption scenario was
created to promote the integration of consumption between Shenzhen and Hong
Kong, and annual traffic exceeded 40 million customers with sales exceeding
RMBS5 billion. Bijiashan Sports Park, being the linked park of UpperHills, was put
into operation, which innovatively built an integrated operation and management
mode of “park + business’, forming a characteristic ecosystem. UpperHills
Block was awarded the first batch of night economy demonstration block and
demonstration characteristic business district by the Commerce Bureau of
Shenzhen Municipality, and is the only municipal night economy demonstration
block in Futian District of Shenzhen.

R

2023F - T AEEZFMEEEHREN1,2198
THK(EEEDRAMR) MHEARENRESE
Yo WMEEXRRBER )  REELHEWHE
KUY ZEEHILAERR - IBEFFESELTHRTR
BER ARBHEEREN486ET K ARKELE
E1SETARE  RERHENSEGEHTE
RIBEENERREYTERINEEARHME
RIEEH  c NBEEEEARBRE - BE[RYEE
BeEl - THRRILRSEE O8EB) - 8EBH (84
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In addition, the Group began to export commercial brands. After three years
of renovation, Shenzhen Women and Children Tower, the project of the stock
renovation and operation in public service sector in Shenzhen, had its debut on
1 June 2023, which was recognised by the National Development and Reform
Commission as a typical case of revitalising stock assets to expand effective
investment to be promoted nationwide. In May 2023, Zhongshan Bay Front began
to sign contracts with commercial brands to build the first international indoor IP
theme park cluster in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. The
commercial water street is named as the “Bay Front e UpperHills Water Street (/&
Fre FHKAT)", marking the successful export of the “UpperHills” brand and the
new pattern of expanding to the Bay Area.

The Group owns 6 hotels in operation, namely Suzhou Marriott Hotel (with 302
guest rooms), Chaohu Shum Yip Bantang Hot Spring Hotel (with 27 spring villas),
Holiday Inn Resort Chaohu Hot Spring (with 203 guest rooms), Muji Hotel (with
79 guest rooms) in UpperHills, Shenzhen, Mandarin Oriental Shenzhen (with 178
guest rooms) and Jingju Hotel (with 194 guest rooms) in Shenzhen Women and
Children Tower. During the year, the Group seized the opportunity brought by
the recovery of consumption, the core operating indicators of the Group’s hotels
exceeded expectations, and the hotels recorded operating income (included
under other operating segment) of approximately HK$465 million, representing a
significant increase of 61.7% over last year.

Mandarin Oriental Shenzhen was awarded Five Star by Forbes Travel Guide
for the first time, and was named as one of the World's Best Hotel in 2023 in
LALISTE’s first global hotel ranking. In May 2023, the Group released its own
hotel brand “Jingju Hotel”, and officially launched four brand product lines to
improve the asset-light brand matrix of the hotel management segment. It is an
important breakthrough for the Group to develop hotel networks in the future. The
first “Jingju” hotel has been put into operation.

The manufacturing business of the Group is mainly from its subsidiary Shenzhen
Jinghua Displays Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Jinghua”), which is engaged in the
research and development, production and sales of products such as loT
intelligent display controllers and LCD devices. With the qualification of national
high-tech enterprise and Shenzhen specialized and sophisticated SMEs, it is
a high-quality service provider in the field of human-machine interface display
and interactive control. The products of Jinghua are widely used in fields
such as smart home, industrial control and automation, OA office, intelligent
vehicle and smart healthcare. It is committed to creating a new business
model of “headquarters + OEM production base + R&D center” to realise the
transformation from “product manufacturer” to “solution service provider”.
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In 2023, the international complicated situation and the global economic
downturn led to slower growth of overall demand in the industry. Jinghua made
a positive response to continuously promote breakthroughs in the research and
development of human-machine interaction technology, strengthened production,
procurement and delivery control, strived to expand the market, stabilised sales
under adverse circumstances, and realised operating income of approximately
HK$471 million.

The Group’s high-tech agriculture business includes sales of agricultural products
and flowers and agri-tourism. During the year, the agriculture segment recorded
robust performance with increased industrial scale, and the planting area reached
4,000 mu. The digital construction of Jinnong project was further improved
through the combination of mechanisation and refined management. The agri-
tourism projects have been implemented in a steady manner, and a number
of parks have opened for trial operation. Xiangmihu Flower Wonderland hosted
2023 Shenzhen Spring Festival Flower Market and other activities, and the design
scheme of Xinfeng e Four Seasons Riverside Garden (¥1Ze/0Z & T HE) won
the second prize of Guangdong Township Imprinting Creative Design Contest. In
terms of sales of high-end agricultural products, its subsidiary, Feng Nong You
Pin, has been recognized as a “key agricultural leading enterprise in Shenzhen”,
established an omni-channel supply chain, and built a parallel business matrix
of offline stores, online platforms, large customers and community group buying.
During the year, revenue from agriculture operation (included under other
operating segment) was approximately HK$506 million, representing an increase
of 40.6% over last year.

Capital and Financing

Despite the increasingly difficult overseas financing environment for real estate
enterprises and the trend of significant increases in overseas financing costs,
the Group proactively raised funds, and strengthened financing expansion by
successfully entering into a HK$5 billion medium and long-term loan agreement
during the year (including a syndicated loan of HK$3.5 billion). It strengthened the
management of loan costs, and took initiatives such as reduction in the interest
rate of existing loans through communications, replacement and early repayment
of relevant borrowings, and overseas dividend remittance, to increase overseas
liquidity and utilise domestic and foreign interest rate spreads to save finance
charges of about approximately HK$77.15 million. During the year, due to the
increase in the cost of the floating rate portion of the borrowings denominated in
Hong Kong dollars held by the Group, the average comprehensive interest rate
of the Group’s bank and other borrowings was 4.4% per annum, representing an
increase of 1.1 percentage point over last year, and remained at a relatively low
level in the industry.
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During the year, the Group promoted financing innovation and successfully issued
two Quasi-REITs products. The “CITIC Securities — Shum Yip — Agricultural
Science Commercial No. 1 Asset-backed Special Program (F{Z:F %5 — F% — &
% 1 EESBEEAFE) project, with size of issuance of RMB1.8 billion,
is the first Quasi-REITs to succeed the CMBN project of a state-owned enterprise
in Shenzhen. “Guosen Securities — Shum Yip Taifu Cultural and Creative Industrial
Park Asset-backed Special Program (BfE&% — AEZENBRAIBEEXRE
EXHHEIEE]) project, with size of issuance of RMB490 million, is the first
cultural and creative industrial park REITs project. The two projects were issued
with oversubscription, and the final issue interest rate was 3.60%. This is the
Company’s first issuance of Quasi-REITs, and also another successful practice in
revitalising stock assets, broadening financing channels and optimizing financing
structure since regular issuance of debt financing instruments by the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, in terms of bank loans, the Group’s total bank
and other borrowings amounted to HK$39.04 billion (31 December 2022:
HK$40.22 billion). Floating rate loans and fixed-rate loans accounted for 65%
and 35%, respectively; long-term loans and short-term loans accounted for
64% and 36%, respectively; borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi borrowings accounted for 40% and 60%, respectively. In terms
of cash, the Group’s cash balance was HK$14.44 billion (including restricted
cash) (31 December 2022: HK$13.36 billion), of which approximately 95%
were denominated in Renminbi, and the remaining in US dollar and Hong Kong
dollar. The cash to short-term debt ratio was 1.02 times. In terms of assets
and liabilities, the Group had net assets, excluding non-controlling interests, of
HK$42.34 billion (31 December 2022: HK$44.632 billion). The asset-liability
ratio, excluding advance receipts, was 68.4%, and the net gearing ratio (net debt
excluding interest-bearing loans from related parties divided by equity attributable
to owners of the Company) was 58.1%.
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Key Financial Indicators

FEM BT

Bank and other borrowings
ROTEFREMEE

— Long-term borrowings

- RfEE

— Short-term borrowings

— RHE
Cash (including restricted cash)
e (BEXRERS)
Net gearing ratio
FREX

Effect of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s assets are mainly denominated in Renminbi, while Hong Kong
dollar is adopted as the reporting currency in the Group’s financial statements.
The effect of the decrease in RMB exchange rate on the Group’s finance was
mainly reflected in the depreciation of the asset and earnings denominated in
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, the reporting currency. During the year,
such fluctuations in the asset and earnings denominated in Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollar, the reporting currency, of HK$700 million were included in
other comprehensive income. In addition, as the Renminbi held in Hong Kong
continued to depreciate, foreign exchange losses amounted to HK$28.91 million
was recorded for the year, in contrast to exchange gains of HK$225 million from
US dollar held in mainland China (settled in 2022) last year, which were included
in the “other expenses” line item.

Performance of Major Joint Ventures and Associates

During the year, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development Limited (a 51%
owned company of the Group) contributed profit of approximately HK$272 million
to the Group. Shenzhen Langtong Property Development Company Limited (a
50% owned company of the Group) contributed profit of approximately HK$7.272
million. Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park (Group) Co., Ltd. (a 37.5% owned company
of the Group) contributed profit of approximately HK$251 million to the Group.
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The Group holds a 27% interest in an associate, Road King Infrastructure
Limited (1098.HK), which is accounted for using the equity method. Affected
by the overall real estate downturn and the severe industry environment, Road
King Infrastructure suffered a decrease in the area of delivery of its real estate
projects, a substantial decline in profit margins and an increase in the provision
for impairment of property assets, and recorded a loss of HK$3.96 billion during
the year, resulting in a loss of HK$1.07 billion to the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total loans of HK$8,748 million (31
December 2022: HK$10,339 million) that were pledged with assets (Please refer
to note 31(b) to the financial statements for details).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has given guarantees amounted to
HK$1,938 million in respect of bank and other borrowings to Guangzhou Pik
Zeon Real Estate Development Company Limited, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment
Development Limited and Shum King Company Limited, all of which are joint
ventures of the Group (Please refer to note 38 to the financial statements for
details).

On 3 January 2024, Chengdu Fengze Investment Co., Ltd (F#LEREER A
]) (“Chengdu Fengze") and Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Company Limited (%%
FREBBRMDARDE) (‘Shum Yip Terra Company”, together with Chengdu
Fengze, the “Subsidiaries’), both being non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, respectively received a statement of claim (RZ#£5Ft) from the
Intermediate People’s Court of Chengdu City (FX&EmH M AEZE) regarding
the claims by Sichuan Haofu Industrial Co., Ltd. (FU)IFEEEZAR AR (the
“Claimant”) against the Subsidiaries (the “Litigation”) regarding the disputes in
earnings distribution over the investment of “198” Congshu Area (“198"# 1 5
[%) in Chenghua district, Chengdu, the People’s Republic of China, with a claims
amount of approximately RMB220 million. The Subsidiaries have engaged legal
advisers to handle the Litigation, and will rigorously defend the Litigation to
protect its legitimate interest. Based on the current assessment, the Litigation
has no material adverse impact on the operations of the Subsidiaries.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed 20,445 employees (2022:
21,205) of whom 20 were stationed in Hong Kong (mainly managerial and finance
related personnel), and the rest were in mainland China. The total remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (excluding remuneration of the Directors)
amounted to approximately HK$2,827 million (2022: HK$2,955.2 million).

Employee benefits and bonuses are based on their individual performance, the
Group’s profit condition, benefit level of the industry and the current market
condition. The remuneration packages are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure
internal equity and its competitiveness in the market. In driving performance,
we also grant share options, under the share option scheme of the Group, to
employees based on individual performance and the results of the Group.
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Dr. LU Hua
ZEL

Chairman

£33

, aged 60, an Executive Director since 21 June 2011 and the
Chairman of the Board since 31 January 2013. Dr. LU was the President of
the Company during the period from 21 June 2011 to 30 January 2013 and
the Acting Chairman of the Board during the period from 24 April 2012 to 30
January 2013. He is also the chairman of the board of directors of Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. Dr. LU holds a doctorate
degree in Political Economics from The Nankai University and a master’s degree
in Finance from The University of Reading in UK. Dr. LU held the position as
the president of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited from May 2011 to December 2012. Prior to this, Dr. LU served as the
chairman of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (000014.SZ) and Shenzhen Shahe Industry
(Group) Co., Ltd. and the general manager of Shenzhen Property Development
Company Ltd.. Dr. LU also served as a director of Shenzhen SEZ Construction
and Development Group Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Talents Housing Group Co., Ltd.,
and a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Ltd. (2318.HK) and Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). He has vast
experience of over twenty years in property development, corporate governance
and administrative management.
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Mr. WANG Yuwen
FRCEE

Executive Director

HITES

, aged 56, an Executive Director and President since 22
December 2022. Mr. WANG holds a Bachelor of Science degree from Wuhan
University, a master's degree in Public Administration from University Paris
1 Panthéon-Sorbonne and a master's degree in Economics from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law. Mr. WANG is currently a director and the
president of Shum Yip Group Limited and a director of Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited. He was elected a member of the Sixth CPPCC Shenzhen
Municipal Committee and a representative of the Seventh Shenzhen Municipal
People’s Congress. He served as the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Investment Holdings Company Limited, the chairman of Shenzhen Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Science and Technology Innovation Cooperation Zone Development
Co., Ltd., a director of Hong Kong-Shenzhen Innovation and Technology Park
Limited, deputy inspector of Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government Foreign
Affairs Office (Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the Municipal Government),
vice president of the Shenzhen People’s Association for Friendship with Foreign
Countries, and one of the leaders of the Executive Bureau of Shenzhen 26th
Summer Universiade Organizing Committee. Mr. WANG was a director of
Shenzhen Water Planning and Design Institute Co., Ltd. (301038.S2). Mr. WANG
has considerable experience in real estate development, industrial park operation,
Hong Kong and Macau affairs, and business management.
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Ms. CAI Xun
HELL
Executive Director

HITE

, aged 49, an Executive Director since 27 August 2020. Ms. CAl
graduated from Central South University of Technology (now known as Central
South University) in investment economics with a bachelor’s degree in economics.
Ms. CAl is currently a director of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited. She is also a director of various members of the Group. Ms.
CAl was the chief of the Cadre Division 1 of the Organization Department of
Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee before joining the Group. Ms. CAI worked in
the Organization Department of Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee during the
period from 2002 to 2019 and served as the chief of the Research and Publicity
Division and the chief of the Cadre Supervision Division etc.. Ms. CAl is currently
a non-executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK) and Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. (2318.HK). Ms. CAI has extensive
experience in human resources management and administrative management.
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Mr. XU Enli
A e A

Executive Director

HITES

, aged 48, an Executive Director since 22 December 2022. Mr. XU
graduated from Tianjin University with a master's degree and is a qualified senior
engineer. He is a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip Group Limited and
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, the board secretary of Shum Yip Group
Limited and a director of certain members of the Group. He joined the Group
in 2010 and previously held management positions in the subsidiaries of the
Company, including serving as the chairman and general manager of Shum Yip
Land Co., Ltd., the general manager of Shenzhen Science & Industry Park Group
Co., Ltd., deputy general manager of Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co.,
Ltd. and deputy general manager of Shum Yip Pengji (Holdings) Co., Ltd. etc.. He
was also the deputy general manager of Shum Yip Shahe Group Co., Ltd. Mr. XU
is currently a non-executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.
HK). Mr. XU has extensive experience in real estate development, operation and
infrastructure construction.
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Ms. SHI Xiaomei
WL+

Executive Director

HITE

, aged 53, an Executive Director since 27 August 2021. Ms.
SHI graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics majoring in
accountancy (teacher-education). She holds a bachelor's degree in economics
and the title of senior accountant. Ms. SHI is currently a director and the chief
financial officer of Shum Yip Group Limited, the ultimate holding company of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, she served as the department head
of finance department of Shenzhen Airport (Group) Company Limited, the
department head and deputy department head of finance department of Shenzhen
Airport Company Limited. Ms. SHI is currently a director of Shahe Industrial Co.,
Ltd (000014.S2). Ms. SHI has extensive experience in financial management and
financial auditing.
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Mr. LI Wai Keung
AR

BUFHITES

, aged 67, an Independent Non-executive Director since
27 September 2004. Mr. LI graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic and
holds a master's degree in Business Administration from The University of
East Asia. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LI
had worked for Henderson Land Development Company Limited (12.HK). He was
an independent non-executive director of Sun Century Group Limited (1383.HK),
a director of Shenzhen City Airport (Group) Company Limited (000089.SZ), an
executive director and financial controller of GDH Limited, an executive director of
Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited) (124.HK) and a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited
(270.HK). Mr. LI is currently an independent non-executive director of Hans
Energy Company Limited (554.HK), China South City Holdings Limited (1668.HK),
Centenary United Holdings Limited (1959.HK) and Legend Upstar Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Midland IC&l Limited) (459.HK). In addition, he was appointed
as a committee member of the 12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Guangdong Province on 17 January 2018 and appointed as a
standing committee member of the 12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Guangdong Province on 27 January 2018. Mr. LI is also a
management accounting advisor of the Ministry of Finance, PRC and the honorary
president of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association Limited.

Independent Non-executive Director
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Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David
HREHL

Independent Non-executive Director
BYFHITES

, aged 66, an Independent Non-
executive Director since 13 June 2013. Dr. WONG received a doctorate degree
in Economics from the University of Chicago in 1987. Dr. WONG has extensive
experience in manufacturing, direct investment and international trade. Dr.
WONG is active in public service. He was a Hong Kong deputy of the 12th and
13th National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China. Dr. WONG
was appointed as a Justice of Peace (JP) in 2010 and was awarded a Bronze
Bauhinia Star (BBS) and Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) in 2012 and 2017 respectively
for his valuable contribution to the society. Dr. WONG was an independent non-
executive director of Redco Properties Group Limited (1622.HK) and Huayi
Tencent Entertainment Company Limited (419.HK). Dr. WONG is currently an
independent non-executive director of Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (934.HK)
and Guangnan (Holdings) Limited (1203.HK), which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

HHELRHBAITBANE
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Professor GONG Peng
[ Ei &5

BUFHNITES

, aged 59, an Independent Non-executive Director
since 31 December 2022. Prof. GONG holds a bachelor’s degree and a master’s
degree in Geography from Nanjing University and a doctor’s degree from the
Faculty of Environment, University of Waterloo, Canada. He is a professor of
Department of Geography and Department of Earth Sciences, a Chair Professor
of Global Sustainability, and Vice President for Academic Development of The
University of Hong Kong. He was a full Professor at the University of California,
Berkeley, and the Chair of the Department of Earth System Science, the Dean
of the Faculty of Science and the Director of China Urban Research Institute at
Tsinghua University. Prof. GONG was a member of the Expert Group of Global
Change and Response, Ministry of Science and Technology of China. He currently
serves as a Deputy Director of Smart City Committee, Science and Technology
Commission of Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, and a
Deputy Director of Urban Development Examination Expert Steering Committee.
Internationally, he served as a member of the Future Earth Consultative
Committee, is presently a member of the Earth Commission and a member of the
International Advisory Group of the Lancet. He was elected as a foreign member
of the European Academy of Sciences in 2020, and was elected as a member of
the International Eurasian Academy of Sciences in 2021,

Independent Non-executive Director
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aged 49, a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from
Wuhan University with a master's degree in Business Administration. Mr. YAN
joined the Group in 2020. He was the head of capital market department, the
deputy head and the head of strategic development department and the deputy
head and a senior supervisor of investment development department (investment
project assessment center) of Shenzhen Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., and a
director, deputy executive general manager, secretary of the board, head of
administration office and deputy manager (investment department) of Shenzhen
Great Ocean Shipping Co., Ltd.. Mr. YAN is currently a director of Shahe
Industrial Co., Ltd (000014.SZ). Mr. YAN has extensive experience in project
investment and financing, corporate management and capital operation.

, aged 58, a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from
Imperial College London and holds a master’s degree in Computer Science from
University of Oxford. Mr. YEO joined the Group in 2021. Prior to this, he served
as the Co-president of Sinobo Land, the general manager of Hopson Commercial
Properties Ltd., the general manager of a commercial company of Financial Street
Holdings and the managing director of CapitaMalls Asia in China. Mr. YEO has
extensive experience in project investment, business development management,
asset management in commercial real estate sector.

, aged 39, is currently the Vice President of the Company
and the deputy general manager of Shum Yip Group Limited. Ms. MENG
graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with a doctorate
degree in economics. Ms. MENG joined the Group in 2023. She joined the
Development and Reform Commission of Shenzhen Municipality of Guangdong
Province in September 2011 and served as the director of the General Affairs
Division and the Economic Operation Division. Ms. MENG has extensive working
experience and professional knowledge in the fields of macroeconomics and
industrial policies, etc.

, aged 57, is the General Counsel of the Company and
the Board Secretary. Ms. WONG joined the Group in September 2014. She is
a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance Professional. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree and a Bachelor of Laws degree. Prior
to joining the Group, she worked in the corporate department of an international
law firm. She also previously held a senior position in a listed company in Hong
Kong. Ms. WONG has extensive experience in the legal, regulatory, corporate
finance, compliance and corporate governance fields.
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aged 57, is currently the admin director of the Company.
Ms. Huang graduated from Shenzhen University with major in Human Resource
Management and Business Administration, and the title of senior political analyst.
She joined the Group in 1989, and served as general manager assistant, deputy
general manager and general manager of human resources department of the
Company. Ms. HUANG has extensive experience in corporate management and
human resources management.

, aged 44, is currently the general manager of the Finance
Management Department of the Company and Shum Yip Group Limited. Mr.
LU graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with a master’s
degree in economics. Mr. LU joined the Group in 2006 and served as deputy
general manager of the Human Resources Department of the Group, a director
and the deputy secretary of the party committee of Shenzhen Nongke Holdings
Company Limited. Mr. LU has extensive professional knowledge and experience
in financial management.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in presenting to
shareholders their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Group include property development for sale, property investments for rental
income and property management for property service income. Details of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are set out in
note 44, note 19 and note 20 to the financial statements, respectively. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year.

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set
out in the sections “Highlight of 2023 Results” on pages 5 to 6, “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 10 to 19, “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
22 10 40, and “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 71 to 102 of this report
and the ESG report issued separately. All such discussions form part of this
report.

The Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss is set out on page 112 of this report
which shows the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2023.

An interim dividend of HK2.00 cents per share for the first half of 2023 was paid
to the shareholders in mid October 2023.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK7.00 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: a final dividend of HK12.00
cents per share), which subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, will be payable in cash
on or about Monday, 8 July 2024 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 7 June 2024. Together with the
interim dividend already paid, the total dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023 amounts to HK9.00 cents per share (2022: HK15.00 cents per share).
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The Group is principally engaged in property development, property management
and property investment in the PRC and is therefore subject to the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC. In respect of the laws and regulations relating to
the environment, which include, but not limited to, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental Protection (F# ARLMBEIRIZREE), Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution (%
2= AR AMBIE R Y5 23R 558 %) and the relevant environmental protection
laws and regulations of Shenzhen Special Economic Zone as well as other
provinces where the Group operates in etc.. The Group attaches great importance
to legal compliance, and carries out all the business activities in compliance with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations.

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, financial conditions,
operational results or growth prospects leading to a divergence from expected or
historical results. The following paragraphs list out the key risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined below, and there may be other
risks which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could become material in the future.

Macroeconomic Risks

The Group’s development and operations may be affected by external
macroeconomic and capital market fluctuations. The geo-political instability in
the international arena will have uncontrollable long-term effects. Factors such as
the economic situation, policy changes, exchange rate fluctuations, changes in
interest rates, adjustments to the tax regime and imbalances between supply and
demand in the PRC may bring uncertainty to the Group’s operating environment.
The Group will keep track of the macroeconomic changes at all times and take
corresponding measures to cope with the risks as and when necessary.

Industry Risks

Affected by policy control, liquidity and other factors, the real estate industry in
China is experiencing continuous adjustment, and changes in property prices,
supply or demand are subject to greater uncertainty, which may have an impact
on the Group’s operations, development and financial position. The income
from property business represents mainstream income of the Group, and in the
Group’s income from real estate sales, the income from the real estate sales
in the Greater Bay Area market has a higher proportion. If there is a downside
risk in the real estate market in the Greater Bay Area, this will have a more
substantial impact on the Group’s net assets, sales revenue and profitability. The
Group closely monitors the sales position at all times and adopts strategies with
flexibilities to cope with the risks.
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Policy Risks

The Group’s business is subject to a wide range of PRC laws and regulations
and policy regulation, including but not limited to economic and fiscal
policies, industrial regulations, enterprise regulations, real estate and property
management regulations. In addition, the PRC government’s various reform
measures on real estate are expected to continue to be adjusted and improved.
The Group will carefully interpret the policies and pay close attention to the
market situation, and flexibly adjust its corporate strategies and sales plans to
cope with the risks arising from the policy changes.

Exchange Rate Risks

There is a fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate. The Group’s main assets are
located in mainland China while the reporting currency of Group’s financial
reports is Hong Kong dollar. The fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate will
cause changes in the value of the Group’s assets and earnings denominated in
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, the reporting currency. The Group did not
adopt any financial instrument to hedge against exchange rate risk in the year.
In future, the Group will monitor the exchange rate fluctuations, enhance its risk
management capabilities, and actively address exchange rate risks through a
variety of ways.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operations may be affected by multiple risk factors related to its
business. Inadequate internal processes, personal misconduct, external partner's
breach behavior, delay in the schedule of construction projects caused by
climate change related factors, or other factors beyond control may have certain
negative impacts on the Group’s operation. The Group will continue to optimize
its management, improve its internal control system and enhance its operational
capabilities and customer satisfaction so as to avoid such risks.

Investment Risks

The Group involves in real estate project investment, equity investment and
emerging industry investment. Changes in external environment, such as
macroeconomic fluctuations, changes in social environment, industry policy
adjustments or other uncontrollable factors, may cause the invested projects not
meeting expectations, which will have impact on the Group’s net assets, sales
revenue and profitability. The Group has established corresponding management
and decision-making mechanisms for investment business, and will continue to
optimize the internal control system in the future, while closely monitoring market
dynamics and actively responding to risks from the external environment.
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In 2023, the Company continued to adhere to the sustainable development
strategy, actively respond to the national “dual carbon” layout, improve and
consolidate the environmental, social and governance system, implement the
“sustainable and leap forward” development philosophy, pursue the balanced
development of economic, environmental and social benefits, and promote the
realization of the enterprise vision of “Innovative Constructor of Industrial Cities,
Wealthy Livelihood Operator”.

We always keep in mind the corporate environmental, social and governance
responsibilities, aim to build sustainable development and value creation
capabilities, and “strive for excellence with great determination and vigor”. During
the year, the parent of the Company carried out the compliance management
system implementation certification (most of such systems are applicable to
the Group), improved the compliance risk assessment mechanism, developed
a three-year compliance management action plan, successfully passed “dual
standards” evaluation of the I1SO 37301:2021 and GB/T35770-2022 international
and national standards in November, and obtained the authentication certificate
issued by the British Standards Institution (BSI), an international authoritative
certification body; strengthened the integrity construction, implemented the
“rigorous and orderly, standardized and efficient” management philosophy, and
improved the level of corporate compliance governance. The Group attached
great importance to safety and health, actively sought occupational health and
safety management, quality management and environmental management system
certification, implemented the safety production responsibility of employees
and contractors, built an occupational health barrier, promoted digital-driven
quality and safety management, and fulfilled the core value of “Innovation and
Excellence”; understood customer needs, implemented responsible marketing
and brand management, carried out comprehensive risk control, and improved
customer experience and satisfaction; developed green and healthy buildings,
promoted green building certification, led urban renewal with the positioning
of “serving the city”, and created comfortable human settlements; established
sound human resources management system, made the career development
channel smooth, continued to improve the quality of talent team construction,
and achieved employee value and enterprise value; actively devoted itself into
the harmonious society and rural revitalization, regularly carried out community
services and public welfare activities, led urban grassroots governance with party
building, and promoted community harmony and integration.
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We highly valued responsible communication with stakeholders, thoroughly
studied their concerns and expectations, improved efficient communication
mechanism, safeguarded the stakeholders’ rights to know and privacy, and
were committed to creating long-term values for our stakeholders including
homeowners, tenants, investors, business partners, employees and broad
communities. During the year, the Company also maintained MSCI-ESG index A
rating, and was included in the “Listed State-owned Enterprises ESG e Pioneer
100 Index” of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council. It was also awarded the “Tianma Award for Investor
Relations of Hong Kong Listed Companies” in the 14th Tianma Award for Investor
Relations of Chinese Listed Companies, and the “Best Investor Relations Project’
and “Best Capital Market Communication Award” at the 7th China Outstanding
IR Awards. In particular, we continued to record outstanding performance in the
management of ESG issues such as green building opportunities, health and
safety, product safety and quality, corporate governance and corporate behavior,
indicating that the Company’s ESG management and actions were recognized by
the public and the capital market, and reflecting the Company’s long-term stable
growth and inherent investment value. We will proactively assume our corporate
responsibilities, continue to improve the sustainable management framework,
optimize ESG practices, and achieve the Company’s goals and prospects.

For details, please refer to the “2023 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” issued by the Company.

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements as appropriate, is set out on page 7. This summary
is not part of the audited financial statements.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 and 16 to the
financial statements respectively.

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are set out on pages 253 to
260.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to HK$628,516,000 of which HK$622,916,000 have been proposed
as final dividend for the year. Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity on pages 116 to 117 and note 41 to the financial statements
respectively.

Interest of approximately HK$1,886,078,000 was capitalised during the year in
respect of the Group’s property development projects.

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases
respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company'’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest of the Group’s five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

During the year, the Group has made donations of approximately HK$2,299,000
for charitable or other purposes.

The Directors as at the date of this report are listed on page 4 of this report.

In accordance with article 100 of the articles of association of the Company, Ms.
CAl Xun, Mr. LI Wai Keung and Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.

The list of directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of
the Company during the year is available on the Company’'s website at www.
shenzheninvestment.com under the “Corporate Governance” section.
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Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 41 to 50 of this report.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

None of the Directors or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group where were entered into by
the Group and subsisting during or at the end of the year.

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors has any direct or indirect interest
in a business which competes or may compete, with the business of the Group
as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Dr. LU Hua is the chairman and a director, Mr. WANG Yuwen, Ms. CAl Xun and
Ms. SHI Xiaomei are directors, of both Shum Yip Holdings Limited (“SYH") and
Shum Yip Group Limited (“SYG”"). SYH and SYG, through their subsidiaries and
associates, have interests in property investment and development businesses in
the PRC.

Ms. SHI Xiaomei is a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (000014.SZ), which
shares are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange and have interests in property
investment and development businesses in the PRC.

In addition, Ms. CAI Xun and Mr. XU Enli are non-executive directors of Road King
Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK), an associated company of the Company, whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and engages in
property investment and development businesses.

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in notes 10(b) and 10(c) to the financial
statements respectively.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 June 2012 (“Old Share
Option Scheme”), which had expired on 19 June 2022. No further options may be
granted under the Old Share Option Scheme but the 7,630,000 options granted
and outstanding thereunder as at the date of this report shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 31 May 2022 (“Share
Option Scheme”). No options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out
below:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants (‘Participant(s))”
and for such other purposes as the Board may approve from time to time,
and to provide the Participants with the opportunity to acquire propriety
interests in the Company to encourage the Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefits of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

2. The Participants of the Share Option Scheme are the employee or director
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the group comprising the Company, Shum
Yip Holdings Company Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
Shum Yip Group Limited, the holding company of Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited, and their respective subsidiaries and associated
companies from time to time (the “SY Group”), or any employee, partner or
director of any business consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser
and legal adviser of and to any member of the SY Group, as the Board may
at it absolute discretion determine.
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The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company, namely the Old Share Option Scheme,
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
as at the date of adopting the Share Option Scheme, being 889,879,311
shares. As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 882,249,311, representing
approximately 9.91% of the shares in issue of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to each Participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue, unless otherwise separately approved by the shareholders of the
Company in a general meeting. Further, any grant of option to a Participant
who is a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to him in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate more than
0.1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares of the
Company at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, is subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option Scheme
is to be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, and shall expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of the date upon which the option is
granted and accepted in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

There is neither any minimum period for which an option must be held, nor
any performance target which is needed to be achieved by the grantee,
before the option can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the
Board and specified at the time of the offer.

3.
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The period open for acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion provided that it shall
not be opened for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of the date the
Share Option Scheme is adopted or after the Share Option Scheme has
been terminated in accordance with the provisions thereof, whichever is
earlier. An amount of HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee on acceptance of
a grant.

The exercise price of options granted shall be a price determined solely
by the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share in the Company.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until 31 May 2032
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms stipulated
therein.

Please refer to note 30 to the financial statements for further information on the
share option schemes of the Company.

7.
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The particulars of, and movements in, the outstanding share options granted
under the Old Share Option Scheme during the year are set out below:
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EHE RN

TXEIFREBRES SR TEREERRITEZ
BREZFELES

Employee Partcipants 5160000 28092001 18/1/2022- 200 - - - 5160000 289021 18/1/2022- 200
5584 17/112025* 17112005
2470000 2892021 289/2022- 200 - - — Q40000 2892001 28192022 - 200
271902005 271902005
Tota 7,630,000 - - - 7630000
At

ke

Options are exercisable subject to performance review and the following vesting term:

Maximum percentage (and the corresponding number) of
Share Option exercisable (including Share Options previous exercised)

AfTEBRES S (REERE) (BERABTEZBRE)
40% (2,064,000 Share Options)

40% (2,064,00017 B A& 42 )

70% (3,612,000 Share Options)

70% (3,612,00017 B A1)

100% (5,160,000 Share Options)

100% (5,160,000 17 B8 A& 4% )

Options are exercisable subject to performance review and the following vesting term:

Maximum percentage (and the corresponding number) of
Share Option exercisable (including Share Options previous exercised)

ATEBRESSLA (RIEERE) (BEBACTEZBRE)
40% (988,000 Share Options)

40% (988,00017 B A 42

70% (1,729,000 Share Options)

70% (1,729,00017 B %4 )

100% (2,470,000 Share Options)

100% (2,470,00015 F& A& 42)

o BRERERRERNTYIRERITE

Exercise period of the relevant percentage of the Share Option
B BB RE 2 TR

at any time from 18 January 2022 to 17 January 2023

20224F1 A18 B & 2023451 A17 B 2 (E ] 5

at any time from 18 January 2023 to 17 January 2024

202351 18 B £ 202441 17 H 2 (£ ] 5

at any time from 18 January 2024 to 17 January 2025

20241 A18 B £ 202551 A17 B Z (EIH &

o BRESIERREZETYIRBRITE -

Exercise period of the relevant percentage of the Share Option
B AR RE 2 TR

at any time from 28 September 2022 to 27 September 2023
202249 A28 H Z 202349 A 27 H 2 (E ] 5

at any time from 28 September 2023 to 27 September 2024
20239 A28 B £ 202459 A27 B Z (E{IH

at any time from 28 September 2024 to 27 September 2025
20249 A28 H £ 202559 A27 B 2 (E{AIH &
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As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which were notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") adopted by the Company were as follows:

Long positions in the shares (“Shares”) and underlying shares of the Company:

Name of director Capacity

BEME a4

LU Hua Beneficial owner
B BEEEAA
LI Wai Keung Beneficial owner
ESE EREAA

R2023F12A31H * ARARIZEERERITHA
BRARA RAMAEEZE (T BEFRBE EH
([BHREED ) BXVE) 27 - AERG
BEHFFHEEREEFLBERAEXVEETRESD
BEAMEEARARREEBARIMERDA ([HR
Frl) 2EZRAR (BEREELFRBERNZZE
BEXRERSIRABEE AR ZER) - HLHNR
BEALEEROIEI2GATE 2Bz ERER
KB RBEARRRMNZ LMETAESHITES
RGHRETFR ([FETFA ) BREARARER
TRk RmT

ARaElfd (TR 1) kBB 2 FR

Number of Percentage of
Shares Shares in issue
HE BTN

BGESE ZBR
(Note)

(FE3E)

1,154,562 0.01
1,180,880 0.01

Note: The percentage was calculated based on 8,898,793,115 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2023, any interests or short positions in
any Shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (which is the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SF0), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code. Save as disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company or its associated
corporations and none of the Directors, or their spouse or children under the age
of 18, had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or
its associated corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

W : B IREEZE2023F12 8318 22 %7
198,898,793 115515 -

B EXFTHESEI - HE2023F128318 - HEX
DRBEERERTHRAERAR AN E TR EE
(EERBELRBEEOIEXVE) Z RGN RERER
NAEHFTFEEREELFLAERIEXNVTETRE
BHHEMEARR KR Emd AR (BERE
EHRBERO 2 BBR R EEIRARE KR
ZHER) - RSN RIEES R KA E35215A
ARAGEZELMz RS AR - RIREEETE
BHERRARBRIAERIAR o B EXFHEE
BN REREMER - AABSEEMNBARH
BREAMTH  SEFUENELR QA SR
BrRhsEBES (BEES) MER - TEER
B IRECRBIETN\GU T FEAEAN
RERRNEIHHEER LR R EBESF 2B K
BATEEMZEER -



Substantial Shareholders

So far as is known to any director or chief executive of the Company, as at 31
December 2023, the interests and short positions of the shareholders (other
than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:
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FEBOR

RADREANETHRRTHARMAM - R2023%F
12A318 » BR (ARBEZHRSTHARRM)
RARBBRG RABBR N T REAREEF LA K
PIEXVERE2 R B3N W2 EX AR RRE 2 K
KR REHERADAREE SR BE %HIFE336 1%
BREZERMEELXRIT

Shum Yip Group Limited * (‘SYG") Interest in controlled corporation 5,622,994,189 (te2) — 63.19
FEEMARAT ([RLEM]) TREEIERS i)
Shum Yip Holdings Company Beneficial owner 5,546,307,730 — 62.33
Limited (“SYH”)
R (£8) ARAR BERHBA
(MR% (5E) 1)
Interest in controlled corporation 76,686,459 Note 3) — 0.86
FHAE Y e
ALPHA-OMEGA CORPORATION Beneficial owner 981,486,312 — 11.03
ERBEAA
Notes: MiaE -
1. The percentage was calculated based on 8,898,793,115 Shares in issue as at 31 1. BALREEE2023F12A31 B 22 #TRNH

December 2023.

2. SYG is deemed to be interested in the 5,622,994,189 Shares which SYH is interested in 2.

by virtue of SYH being its direct 90%-owned subsidiary.

3. These 76,686,459 Shares were held by Goldclass Industrial Limited, a wholly-owned 3.
subsidiary of Successful Years Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Shum
Yip Finance Company Limited ("SYF"). SYF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SYH and

accordingly, SYH is deemed to be interested in these 76,686,459 Shares.

* For identification purpose only

8,898,793, 1151 H -

HR%E (5E) AREEEEERE0%ER 2 M
BAR MREEEWRANRE (£8) BEH#
#5,2.5,622,994,189 8% A% {7 A #E =S o

#%76,686,459 1% A% 17 H Successful Years Holdings
LimitedZz 2 EMBARMAEXARARRZE -
i Successful Years Holdings Limited B % ¥ £ B B4 75
BRAR ([FESR]) 2EHE - FESRAR
¥ (KE)WM2ENBRAR Bt - FE (@)
A8 R %55 76,686,459 B B () Fh 9 HE 2% o
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company had not been
notified by any person (other than directors and chief executives of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are provided under note 40 to the financial statements.
Some of these transactions also constituted non-exempt connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, for which the Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements.

Set out below is the information in relation to the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions carried out by the Group during the year,
particulars of which were previously disclosed by way of announcements and are
required under the Listing Rules to be disclosed in this report.

Connected Transaction

On 10 March 2023, Shenzhen International Qianhai Real Estate (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (the “Subsidiary”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Shenzhen International Qianhai Investment and Management (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (the “Non-controlling Shareholder”), a 50% equity holder of the Subsidiary,
entered into a renewal agreement in relation to the renewal of the loan in the
principal amount of RMB310 million advanced by the Subsidiary to the Non-
controlling Shareholder (the “Loan Renewal Agreement”) pursuant to which
the Subsidiary agreed to renew the loan and extend the repayment date of the
loan to 12 March 2024. As the Non-controlling Shareholder is a substantial
shareholder of the Subsidiary, it is a connected person of the Company at
the subsidiary level, the transaction contemplated under the Loan Renewal
Agreement constituted connected transaction of the Company and are subject to
the announcement and reporting requirements but are exempt from the circular
and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the transactions under the Loan Renewal Agreement were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 10 March 2023.

BEXFRREES  BE2023F12A318 » HET
AL (RARAEZREBTRABRIN) CHGEEL
BERARARD REEROTEEREEFLBEE
ERIEXVEE2REID 2 EXHERERAREFSH R
HEIEDIE336IKBETE 2 Bz ERRAR -

B LA 2 AR A 2 BRERTBISN  RERAREF
E&ERE » ARRMET LR FEEARSRTEHR
ARBBITBNDRBERARAFT LB ERAEHAR
AIBTTRA B R i O R R S hpik

REEXRHBRTETNEABB IS BERY
HHAMEL0 - ERETR TR EMRAATZ
FRCEERS - ARFCHUETERRERTE

TXARBENEAGERFAMETIRER S RIE
MERFHCEBIER  AFRCEANAETAR
BYRRE EMRRERARETHE -

3F3A108 - REEAEEE (ORI BRA
8 ([HBRAF]) (ANE]—EEEE2EHBAR)
BREABANEREEE ORI BRAR ([ IFEMRAER
R]) (BEHBARS0%ES) ;I ESHE - A5
EREMBARMEERBREE 2 AEBARES1E
TZERZRE ([EXEBHE]) @ Bt WER
AREREREY  THERZEERHTHE2024
FIF12H - ARFERBRAENBELRNEER
R HBARAEWBLREBEMNBEEAL - Al
EXRUBBETRETZRZBRADANEER
5 WEET EHRAF1AASHAERERETE
BEAPETRBALMBRRMERT - EREHHZE
TR G2 #BHEN AN B A2023F3A1082

R -



Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 March 2022, Shum Yip Terra Land Investment & Development (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Terra Land Company”, an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), Zhongshan Vanke Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“Zhongshan
Vanke’) and Zhongshan Shenye Wansheng Investment Co., Ltd. (the “Project
Company”, an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company owned as
to 50% by Shum Yip Terra Land Company and 50% by Hefei Vanke Ruixiang
Real Estate Company Limited (“Hefei Vanke")) respectively entered into a
development and construction services agreement regarding the provision by
Zhongshan Vanke of a full range of management services for the development,
construction, marketing and other affairs in relation to the piece of land situated
at Zhongshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC held by the Project Company
for the period commencing from 28 March 2022 to 28 March 2032 (or the day
on which Zhongshan Vanke completes all the work under the said agreement
(whichever is earlier) (the “Development and Construction Services Agreement”).
The annual cap of the service fee (“Service Fee”) payable by the Project Company
to Zhongshan Vanke for the services provided under the Development and
Construction Services Agreement is RMB250 million, RMB300 million, RMB320
million, RMB250 million, RMB170 million, RMB250 million and RMB95 million for
the years ending 31 December 2022, 2023, 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028
respectively. The annual cap for Service Fee for each of the four years ending 31
December 2029, 2030, 2031 and 2032 is set at zero because while Zhongshan
Vanke may be required to provide follow up services, it is expected that the
Service Fee would be fully settled and paid to Zhongshan Vanke by the year
ending 31 December 2028. As Hefei Vanke is a substantial shareholder of the
Project Company and both Hefei Vanke and Zhongshan Vanke are subsidiaries
of China Vanke Co., Ltd., Zhongshan Vanke is therefore an associate of a
substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company and thus a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Development and Construction Services Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions
under the Development and Construction Services Agreement were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Service Fee paid by the Project
Company to Zhongshan Vanke amounted to RMB147,887,000 (representing
approximately 49% of the annual cap for 2023).
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The Independent Non-executive Directors, having reviewed the continuing
connected transactions under the Development and Construction Services
Agreement, confirmed that such transactions had been entered into

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company has engaged its external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, to
report on the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company’s auditor
confirmed that:

() nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the continuing connected transactions have not been approved by the
Company'’s board of directors;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(i) with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing connected
transactions, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
annual cap as set by the Company.

RENFRERRBBHAETORERERH1E
UHRRTEERABHERINATER TR

() REEE-—REBTESBRES
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ARFEREBHIINEZHMMEZRKER M EBM
V%%@f%% ARG BB BEREHER
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ZETEB ] Y2REBHAF740% (BFT) [#
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Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, throughout the year and up to the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the Company'’s issued
Shares are held by the public.

Banking facilities with covenants in relation to specific performance of the
controlling shareholder:

On 26 June 2019, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“1st Facility Agreement’) relating to a revolving loan facility of up to
RMB1,000,000,000 (“1st Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The 1st Facility is
subject to annual review by the lender.

On 14 September 2020, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“2nd Facility Agreement”) relating to an uncommitted term loan facility of up to
US$185,000,000 (or its equivalent in Hong Kong dollars) (“2nd Facility”) offered
by a bank as lender. The last repayment date of the borrowing under the 2nd
Facility is 48 months from the date of the first drawdown under the 2nd Facility
Agreement.

On 17 September 2020, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“3rd Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$800,000,000
(“3rd Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 3rd Facility is 3 years
from the date of the first drawdown under the 3rd Facility Agreement.

On 7 April 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“4th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$500,000,000 (“4th
Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 4th Facility is 3 years from
the date of acceptance of the 4th Facility Agreement.

On 17 June 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“5th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$500,000,000
(“5th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 5th Facility is 35
months commencing from the date of the first drawdown under the 5th Facility
Agreement.
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On 29 June 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“6th
Facility Agreement’) relating to an uncommitted term loan facility of up to
HK$600,000,000 (or its equivalent in United States dollars) (“6th Facility”) offered
by a bank as lender. The term of the 6th Facility is 3 years commencing from the
signing date of the 6th Facility Agreement.

On 19 August 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“7th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$1,000,000,000
(“7th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 7th Facility is 36
months commencing from the date of acceptance of the 7th Facility Agreement.

On 30 August 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“8th
Facility Agreement’) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$600,000,000 ("8th
Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 8th Facility is 36 months
commencing from the first drawdown date of the 8th Facility Agreement.

On 23 November 2021, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (“9th Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to
HK$900,000,000 (“9th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. HK$600,000,000
of the 9th Facility is for a term of 36 months and HK$300,000,000 of the 9th
Facility is for a term of 12 months, both commencing from the date of the 9th
Facility Agreement.

On 9 December 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“10th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$1,000,000,000
(“10th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 10th Facility is 36
months commencing from the date of acceptance of the 10th Facility Agreement.

On 14 June 2022, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(“11th Facility Agreement”) with certain banks as lenders relating to a term loan
facility of HK$5,000,000,000 (“11th Facility") for a term of up to 3 years.

On 11 May 2023, the Company as borrower accepted a facility letter (“12th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a revolving loan facility of up to HK$500,000,000
(or its equivalent amount in RMB) (“12th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender.
The term of the 12th Facility is 3 years.
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On 12 May 2023, the Company as horrower accepted a facility letter (“13th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of HK$1,000,000,000 (“13th
Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 13th Facility is 3 years.

On 16 May 2023, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(“14th Facility Agreement”) with certain banks as lenders relating to a term loan
facility of HK$3,500,000,000 (“14th Facility”). The term of the 14th Facility is 3
years.

On 5 February 2024, the Company as borrower accepted a facility letter (“15th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of HK$1,000,000,000 (or its
equivalent in USD) (“15th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the
15th Facility is 3 years.

On 6 February 2024, the Company as borrower accepted a facility letter
(“16th Facility Agreement”), together with the 1st Facility Agreement, 2nd
Facility Agreement, 3rd Facility Agreement, 4th Facility Agreement, 5th
Facility Agreement, 6th Facility Agreement, 7th Facility Agreement, 8th Facility
Agreement, 9th Facility Agreement, 10th Facility Agreement, 11th Facility
Agreement, 12th Facility Agreement, 13th Facility Agreement, 14th Facility
Agreement and 15th Facility Agreement collectively referred to as the (“Facility
Agreements”) relating to a term loan facility of HK$300,000,000 (or its equivalent
in RMB) (“16th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 16th Facility
is 3 years.

Under each of the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited ceases to own beneficially at least 35% of the issued
share capital of the Company, ceases to be the single largest shareholder of
the Company, ceases to have management control of the Company, or ceases
to remain beneficially owned as to at least 51% by the Shenzhen Municipal
People’s Government of the People’s Republic of China and at any time after
the happening of an event of default, all sum payable under the facilities may
become immediately due and payable.

As at 31 December 2023, all advances made under the 3rd Facility Agreement,
5th Facility Agreement and 9th Facility Agreement had been fully repaid.
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The articles of association of the Company provides that each Director, Secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Ordinance) which he may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers (Certified Public
Accountants and Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance), who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By Order of the Board

LU Hua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance.
The board of Directors (the “Board”) strongly believes that good corporate
governance is essential for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The Company
has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code") as set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (‘Listing
Rules”) throughout the year 2023.

The Company adheres to the core values of “Sunshine and Honesty, Innovation
and Excellence, Diligence and Commitment, Harmony and Sharing” and acting in
a legal, ethical and responsible manner at all levels, and upholds the corporate
vision of “Innovation-Builder of the City, Operator of People’s Well-being” to
continuously improve corporate governance, strengthen risk controls, promote
a culture of integrity, and firmly establish the fundamentals of high-quality
sustainable development. The Board’s oversight of corporate culture covers
a range of long-term measures and approaches, including prudent financial
reporting, legal and regulatory compliance (including compliance with the code of
conduct and group policies), as well as employee engagement, employee safety
and well-being.

The primary objective of the Company is to bring overall stable returns to
shareholders and create value growth. To this end, the Group is committed
to the long-term sustainable development of its business to achieve recurring
sustainable profitability, focusing on revenue growth, disciplined cost
management and sound financial planning, as well as the integration of social
responsibility and sustainability into its operations. A discussion and analysis
of the Group’s annual performance is set out in the Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis in this report, and information on the
Group’s sustainability initiatives and key relationships with its stakeholders is set
out in the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group.

The Board considers the corporate culture of the Company is consistent with the
objectives, values and strategies of the Group.
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Role and Delegation

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for shaping and
overseeing the corporate culture, formulating overall strategies and policies of
the Company, supervising and evaluating business and financial performance of
the Company, determining appropriate corporate governance practices applicable
to the Company’s circumstances and ensuring operational efficiency and
effectiveness by establishing a comprehensive corporate governance framework
with appropriate risk control measures and aiming to enhance long-term
shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated certain functions to respective committees, including
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, the
details of the responsibilities, membership and activities during the year of
each of them are set out in the section headed “Board Committees” below.
These Board committees assist the Board to discharge its duties while the
responsibilities of the day-to-day operations and business management are
delegated to the Executive Directors and senior management. Matters specifically
reserved to the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant changes in corporate structure, mergers and acquisitions, major
investments, material acquisition and disposal of assets, selection of Directors,
changes to remuneration policy for Directors and senior management, terms of
reference of Board committees, as well as major corporate policies.

The Company has mechanisms in place to ensure independent views and
inputs from Directors are conveyed to the Board. In this regard, as part of the
established governance framework, the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors is reviewed by the Board regularly. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the management to make enquiries and
obtain information on the Group’s affairs. And, to facilitate effective and active
participation by the Directors, in particular the Independent Non-executive
Directors, Directors are provided with full and timely information about the
conduct of the business and development of the Group, including reports on
significant corporate matters, monthly management updates which contain
periodic financials with summaries of key events, outlook and business-related
matters of the Group. External independent professional advice is also available
to all Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) whenever they
deemed necessary. These mechanisms are kept under regular review to ensure
their effectiveness.
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The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Throughout the year, the number of Independent
Non-executive Directors on the Board meets the one-third requirement under the
Listing Rules.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships) between members of the Board. Biographical particulars of
the Directors are set out on pages 41 to 48 of this report.

Each Director has entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a term
of three years. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
One third of the Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office at each annual general
meeting and eligible for re-election by shareholders. Also, any Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy shall retire at the next general meeting of the Company
and be eligible for re-election by shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed
for the re-election of each Director.

Each Independent Non-executive Director has confirmed that there has been no
subsequent change of circumstances which may affect his independency under
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers each of them to be independent.

Mr. LI Wai Keung and Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David have served the Board for
more than nine years. The Board considers that they have continued to exercise
independent judgment on the matters of the Group and there is no evidence that
length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their independence. The Board
therefore considers that they remain independent notwithstanding the length of
their tenure.

EEgHAMALNTESR-EBUFNTESH
o REBAFER  EEQRNBULIFERTESASF
AEMBRABET =02 —EEHEMNBRT -
EEeNE HABEAR (BEUE - £5 - KERK
EEA/HABER) - E2MEABREFBHNAK
REEA1E4L8E o

BREZFCRARANYURMER - RY=F - REE
AREMARERAN - BRESEE=FEIHE
HEE—R - BERRBEFAGLAR=DZ—NE
2 (REEFARUF=2BEH - ANERI=0Z
—ZBARE)RE  YRERMBRERET - 5
o EREZENERERZRNESANALRAT
ERRAS LREYAERERREREE - ARF
PEEF-REFREBUMARER °

BEBUFRNTEFCHR - RELTRAE313K
BB ENES Y B REY BB MR AR
B - ESERARSZAAREYL -

FRETENEREBLIRBEZCECANF - EF
AR WERBEHAKENEHTEBELAE - &
BETNEREAESREEREBILBRINY
Z-Ritr EFERA - THIEPRRE - ®EDK

BB e



Chairman and President

The position of Chairman of the Board is held by Dr. LU Hua, and the position
of President of the Company is held by Mr. WANG Yuwen. The Chairman is
responsible for leading the Board to formulate Group-wide strategies and policies,
good corporate governance practices and procedures together with the directors,
determine the strategic directions, business plans and investment proposals of
the Company, assess its performance and supervise the business affairs of the
management in ensuring the effectiveness of the Board, whereas the President
is responsible for overseeing overall operations of the Company and ensuring the
implementation of plans efficiently.

Diversity

The Board recognizes the benefits of a diverse Board with members possessing
a balance of skills, experience and expertise which complement to the business
success of the Group, and seeks increasing diversity at Board level to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board, namely through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis having due regard
to the overall effective functioning of the Board as a whole. The Nomination
Committee will review at least annually the appropriateness of the structure, size
and composition of the Board and will take into account of, among others, the
Board Diversity Policy when considering proposals for appointment or reelection
of Directors. And, the Board will take into account the recommendations from
the Nomination Committee at its regular review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy.
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The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, a summary of their profile in terms of gender, age,
length of services and expertise/experience is set out below. The Nomination
Committee and the Board are of the view that Board diversity is achieved.
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In terms of gender diversity, female representation on the Board maintained at
25% and female representation of the workforce (including senior management)
of the Group represents approximately 37%, both of which is considered to be at
a reasonable level.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating performance of
the Company and to discuss future strategy. Four regular Board meetings and
three special Board meetings were held in 2023 to review and approve significant
corporate matters including the Company’s business development, the Group’s
corporate governance policies, proposals for final and interim dividends, annual
report and half-year report, connected transactions, discloseable transactions
and spin-off application. At least fourteen days’ notice of a regular Board meeting
was given to all Directors who were provided with an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and the accompanying Board
papers were sent to Directors at least three days before the intended date of a
Board meeting. Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board meeting were
circulated to Directors for their comment and record respectively. In addition to
the Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board also held a separate meeting with
the Independent Non-executive Directors without the present of other Directors
on an annual basis.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and general meeting in 2023 is set out below:

Board

Meeting

Exeed

No. of meetings held BONERRY 7

Executive Directors HTES

LU Hua (Chairman) GENE ) 7

WANG Yuwen (President) TEX (#7) 5/7

CAl Xun 2 6/7

XU Enli TREH 77

SHI Xiaomei b 6/7
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

LI Wai Keung FER 777

WONG Yau Kar David R 777

GONG Peng =8 4/7

N2023%F  RESHFETEEH
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e
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XEH
Jmo
Jis)3
Jis)3

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Enk8e RE%Z88 FHHZEe BRES
2 8 B /N
3 1 1 1
N/A R 17 N/A NER v/
NA MR NANER  NANER -
NATNER  NADER  NATER v/
NANER  NADER  NATNER v/
NA MR NADER NANER /
3/3 1 11 v/

3/3 11 11
33 N/ANER 17 -

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”) as the code of conduct of the Company for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all the Directors, all
Directors confirmed that throughout the year, they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.

Each newly appointed Director will be provided with necessary induction
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
and the Board’s operations, corporate governance practices as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

The Company will from time to time provide seminars to the Directors to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company also continuously
updates Directors on any latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. During the year, the
Company had arranged an in-house directors’ training on topic under the Listing
Rules. The Company had also arranged a site visit to the Group’s projects in
Shenzhen for the Directors.
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The Directors are required to provide the Company with their training records. A~ EFBRARFRERENEILHE - EE2HN
summary of the training records reported by the Directors for year 2023 is set 2023 #)EHIR2sE B &I T ¢
out below:

LU Hua EE= 1,23
WANG Yuwen TEX 12,3
CAl Xun £ 12,3
XU Enli BRI 1,2,3
SHI Xiaomei LS 1,2,3
LI Wai Keung ESEE 12,3
WONG Yau Kar David BERE 12,3
GONG Peng =i 1,2
# #
1. Attending briefing/training seminars/conferences relevant to the industry, business and 1. 2METE - EXREBEABROEN S FZ
their duties. Walg /& e
2. Reading industrial and regulatory updates/monthly management reports etc. 2. BMIETEREEEHEH EEEBSARES -
The Board is regularly kept up-to-date on key events, the performance, position and EFSAREEEGARETHNGEALAER
outlook of the Group through the monthly management reports. BEEMH KB RRARFROSEIEE ©

3. Site visit 3. EHER
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The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its functions. The
respective roles, responsibilities and activities of each Board committee are set
out below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, all being Independent
Non-executive Directors. It is chaired by Mr. LI Wai Keung, who has the
appropriate professional qualifications as required under the Listing Rules, and
other members are Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David and Prof. GONG Peng.

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Audit Committee include, but
not limited to, making recommendations on the appointment of external auditor
and monitoring the effectiveness of external audit, supervision of internal audit
and oversight of the integrity of financial information and the financial reporting
system, overseeing internal audit, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and ensuring such functions are adequately resourced. The
full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

The following is a summary of the major work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year and up to the date of this report:
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Financial reporting/internal review

Review of financial statements, annual report and results announcement for
years 2022 and 2023 and for the six months ended 30 June 2023;

Review of report submitted by external auditor on their statutory audit
of financial statements for years 2022 and 2023 respectively and their
independent review of the 2023 half-year financial statements;

Review of the observations and recommendations on the financial reporting
and control matters set out in the respective management letter for years
2022 and 2023 submitted by external auditor;

Review of the respective representation letter issued by management to
external auditor in connection with their audit of the financial statements for

years 2022 and 2023;

Review of audit plan for year 2023.

Risk management, internal control and internal audit

Review of the respective evaluation report on internal control and risk
management systems for years 2022 and 2023 issued by the risk
management department;

Reviewed with the risk management department on the risk management
and internal control systems and their effectiveness, the overall risk
management, internal control and internal audit work progress and findings,
and the adequacy of resources and staffing for such functions.

External auditor

Review of the independence of the external auditor, approval of the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor and making
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of external auditors;

Approval of the policy on engaging the external auditor to supply non-audit
services.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in
the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, all being Independent
Non-executive Directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David and other
members are Mr. LI Wai Keung and Prof. GONG Peng.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Director and senior management according to its
terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration matters of Non-executive
Directors, the setting up of adequate and transparent procedures for setting
such remuneration, reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share option
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The full terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

The Group's Remuneration Policy aims to ensure that the remuneration level is
appropriate and align with the Company’s goals, objectives and performance,
S0 as to facilitate the recruitment and retention of outstanding directors, senior
management and employees and to provide them with adequate incentive
for achieving business targets. When determining Directors’ and employees’
remuneration, factors including salary levels in the market as a whole and in
the real estate industry; market benchmarks for relevant positions and work
areas; the performance of the Group and the individual etc. shall be considered.
Bonuses and other incentives including share options will also be provided to
employees based on individual performance and the results of the Group. And,
remuneration packages are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure internal equity
and competitiveness.

No Director or any of his/her associates is allowed to determine their own
remuneration. In making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee will take into
account the factors set out in the Group’s Remuneration Policy.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration of
Executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee also
reviewed the overall remuneration structure of the Group and considered the
forms and adequacy of the various performance-based incentive arrangements
including share options.
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The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:
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Number of
Remuneration Bands Individuals
e E AE
HK$500,000 to HK$1,500,000 500,000 7L 1,500,0007%8 T 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 7L% 2,500,000/ T 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000 2,500,001 702 3,500,000/ 7T 1

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees are set out in notes 10(b) and 10(c) to the financial statements.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is
set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members of which two are
Independent Non-executive Directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David
and other members are Dr. LU Hua and Mr. LI Wai Keung.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, identifying and evaluating individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members as required and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors. The full terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and opined that it has the skills, experience and
diversity of perspective appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee also reviewed and recommended to the
Board in relation to the re-election of the retiring directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 29 May 2023 having due regard to the Board
Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee also assessed
the independency of the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set
out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

The Board Nomination Policy sets out the principles which guide the Nomination
Committee to identify and evaluate a candidate for nomination to (i) the Board
for appointment or (i) the shareholders of the Company for election, as a
Director with a view to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspective appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee shall propose a candidate for nomination
or a Director for re-election based on merit and other considerations including
the Board Diversity Policy, the expected contribution the candidate would add to
Board and whether the candidate is able to commit and devote sufficient time
and attention to the Company’s affairs etc. The Nomination Committee may take
such measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its identification
and evaluation of a candidate and make recommendation to the Board for the
Board’s consideration.

The Board is responsible for, and has performed during the year, the following
corporate governance duties:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e o review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and directors;

e o review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.
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Responsibility :EIE{I
The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems SEHARREERAREZZGEBE BEAR

=

and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems. Management is responsible for Tux—r%‘lrﬁ’]ﬁxﬁ( o mMEEBRAE&RTERITA
designing and implementing an internal control system to manage the risks to the ~ EFEEIRHIEUSABRENE BN ABH AR - &
Company to the maximum extent, in order to identify and manage these risks so i'JE%'J@EﬁD%‘IEL“HI‘ T LAER - BRIE - &
as to understand, reduce, mitigate, divert or avoid these risks. The Board hereby CERYRBELRR §$@éﬁﬁtfﬂiéiig
explains that the systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk ~ H 5 EEEMIEEBR RELER LK B ENER

of failure to meet business objectives, and only to provide reasonable, but not P\ﬁEEﬁT\@EEKS’U%ﬂ%ME&E%’Eﬁé@ﬁﬁ#%@

absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. HHIRE ©
Risk Management Structure J g 5 24
Board Oversight EZgEE
Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board REXEFRTEHELE
e Ensure that an appropriate and effective risk management framework is o EE%’D\ ARV RER—EGENE B E
established and maintained by the Company. REELEE -
e Oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring of . E'%E@FEH BREERENR « TR
the risk management framework. ERAHEMIIE ©
e Oversee management in their risk mitigation efforts. . BEEREARRAE S ENIE -
Risk Management, Reporting and Communication EREE - ERRER
Risk management department R EFEES
e Being the specialized risk management department, is responsible for o ABEREEZRIMN ARRAFZARRKRE
the establishment and operation of the comprehensive risk management BEZRRAEENAEIE: 58 BF
system of the Company; guide and supervise the overall risk HEZHBFIEEMBLERAREZARKEE
management of other departments and the respective enterprises which TIfE-
they belong to.
e Risk management: Regularly conduct systematic risk evaluation and o [EREE : THETFRRERFRG  HEX
carry out risk audit to major businesses in advance. EBETZARBRERZ
e Internal control: inspect, evaluate and optimize the implementation of o NEPEH - BB - FEMECAEHENH
internal control system, to avoid execution risks. IR iﬁL%ﬂﬁJ:E’JHI‘“ o
e Internal audit: conduct multi-level audit, implement auditing issues o  AHEA: HEZERNBNIE  Z8E
rectification work, prevent operational risks. SrEEEN - PEEERR o
e  Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the risk management s BRELSEFRI -—AEREBRERLNK
framework has been conducted at least annually and provide such M UERERLZECENESSIEL AHME
confirmation to the Board through the Audit Committee. o
e  Optimize dynamic monitoring and early warning of risks to facilitate o TEHEERENEEE - FAHERR 59
inspection and dynamic monitoring of potential risk hazards on a BHEMEEER - TR (FREARR
monthly basis. The “Quarterly Significant Risks Tracking and Monitoring HERR) - BURR RTEL[‘EAA“[‘H%M:%’:%
List" was also completed in an effort to establish, and effectively # - WEBCEEHIT °

implement, a sound risk prevention and resolution mechanism for the
Company.
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Performing Daily Risk and Monitoring Responsibility

Functional Departments, Risk Management Departments of Subsidiaries and
Individuals

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ&?fﬁi
BReEsrT - B ZERE

° Responsible for carrying out risk management procedures and internal
control measures in their daily operations.

e Regularly review the risk profile and report to the risk management
department and management on the risks within their respective
operating and functional areas.

1B R EENTAREREFRAHE
i -

o THERABRMARLLALE KB
ErmERARREESREREE TTE#& °

Risk Management Process

The Company adopts an integrated “bottom-up” and “top-down” risk review
process, requiring the heads of functional departments and business units of the
Company to participate in identifying operational risks and incorporate them into
various business and decision-making processes, including strategy formulation,
business development, business planning, capital allocation, investment
decisions, internal controls and daily operations, to enable

(1) comprehensive identification and prioritization of all significant risks within
the Company,

(2)  reporting of significant risks to the appropriate management level,

(3) the management to effectively communicate about the risks.
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fipatigfr - EXRDABESFIRERHHIEES
/\E%E‘JEU_L R MABBXBLRRRET © 25
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Bottom-up Process BTmLENER

Business units and functional departments of the Company conduct risk
identification and evaluation of specific businesses within the scope of
responsibility, propose and implement risk management solutions and
report annually to the risk management department of the Company the
significant risks identified during the risk management process.

All departments of the Company are responsible for sorting out their
own business processes, collecting and collating internal and external
risk initial information within their scope of functions extensively and
continuously. The risk management department regularly screens,
refines, compares, classifies and combines the initial risk information
collected by each department as necessary and draws the risk
coordinates map based on the risk evaluation results of each department
to initially determine the management priorities of various risks of the
Company, formulate risk management strategies, and propose and
implement risk management solutions.

The risk management department of the Company, through collection,
screening and sequencing and interview procedures, compiles the
annual comprehensive risk management work report and the “Evaluation
Report on Internal Control and Risk Management Systems”.

The risk management department of the Company reports their works to
the Audit Committee annually and submits “Evaluation Report on Internal
Control and Risk Management Systems” to the Audit Committee and the
Board for their review.

Top-down Process

PR R B DI RESEEAMNE
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The Audit Committee inspects and reviews the new risks or significant
strategic risks that may have a significant long-term impact on the
Company, and reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company on an annual basis.

In addition to the risk evaluation function, the management from the
functional departments is responsible for identifying and evaluating the
financial and other risks in different areas of the Company from the
aspects such as investment auditing and strategic planning, financial
management and legal compliance respectively, and forms a normalized
mechanism for risk evaluation to regularly conduct systematic significant
risk evaluation, so as to achieve dynamic management of significant
risks.

Formed a normalized mechanism for risk evaluation to regularly carry
out systematic significant risk evaluation, identify, evaluate and analyze
all kinds of existing or potential risks in current business development,
and timely track and monitor the moving trend of significant risks,
control the progress and effectiveness, so as to achieve dynamic
management of significant risks.

For major businesses such as land bidding, equity acquisition, joint
venture cooperation etc., a comprehensive risk assessment and audit
must be conducted in advance to achieve the operating mechanism
where audit opinions without prior risk evaluation may not be submitted
for approval so that significant business risks are effectively controlled.

Annual review is performed to strengthen the institutionalization and
standardization of internal audit work.
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Internal Control A B e

The internal control system of the Company is based on the principles under the AR AN ER ZLZBIECOSO (the Committee
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission). of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
The risk management department of the Company conducts an annual  Commission)JA FEIREIFFFI Y - ARIAEBER NS
assessment and review of the internal control and risk management systems.  FEHNEIMEE R EKR EIE R4 uLﬁE/uE%HEEﬁUﬁ

The review covers five aspects including control environment, risk assessment, & - IFDREERRE - ElTE - BEREH -
control activities, monitoring measures and information and communication, in =~ EEHEESEZBRSHEIE - LAIH:;:HE”&TW*B
order to assess whether the internal control and risk management systems of the ~ EMLEREEZGEAEME T - AUNEH -
Company are sound, appropriate, effective and sufficient. The risk management BB EREBEFEHK L AABER L AR EEZR

department annually prepares an evaluation report on internal control and risk FhwmE -
management systems of the Company.

Principal Policies and Measures of Internal Control

Control Environment

e The Company has established a corporate governance policy, a human e DRAGIELEERHEK ANBEREER
resource management policy, and a code of discipline to regulate % - BRI §1’E e LIEML RS
business operation and governance, and conducts regular reviews and LA R 9 8 B iR S E’\J Hig et (B35 o
refresher trainings on key ethical practices.

e The Company has developed and implemented a series of human o RAFETANERGEERLZENIT -
resource systems, so that the human resource concepts, policies, f?;/\ﬁé{ﬁ@ CER - HIEREG— AR
systems are unified and standardized, and the policies are more Eﬁlﬁ%}ﬂiﬁﬁﬂ HEHE T EAIES
transparent. Each employee is subject to an accountability system for aﬁt EiHEHE ©
internal control responsibilities.

e The Company has, based on the need of management, newly added or o PRAREEEFE  MEXBITLHER
amended a number of management measures, including the “Articles WE - BECRARER) - (EHERERE
of Association”, the “Management Measures for Centralized Project EEBEIE) - <<?€TT}7EE%EE¥¥)J¥}£>> <
Assets”, the “Management Measures for Tendering and Procurement’, BREEERIE) - CRYIERMR M RERE
the “Management Measures for Equity Participating Companies’, the ey <<ﬂ§ﬂ#ﬂ#l{’ﬁm§i¥#ﬂ#/£>># 5
“Share Repurchase Operation Rules of Shenzhen Investment” and the Fﬁﬁiéiﬁ TtEER EEEE - EAE
“Management Measures for Inspection and Supervision”, in an effort g EE %ET“T“’E%J ZHEHERNEZH
to improve and optimize a series of systems in respect of “corporate 7?::. PUOglb (b %EE - E—PREEBKH
governance, asset management, capital operation, operations, tendering EERE o
and procurement”, as well as to strengthen its business management
and further facilitate its standardized development.

e The Company has amended the “Management Measures for Internal . B T CBEHIBEEINE) - BT A
Control” to clarify the principles and specific requirements for the T&X}Sﬁémﬁﬁﬁﬁf‘lﬁ*ﬁ HEHAE - A
commencement of internal control self-evaluation and internal control L HIET TEMNFARRAMABE R - &
audit work of the Company and its subsidiaries and established the VYTUARBZESHERTIERARE &
“1+N” internal control system led by the construction and supervision IEEE‘@? TERREASTER [1+N ] EH Z e

system of the internal control system and supported by various specific %o
operation regulations.
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Risk Assessment R TE
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The risk management functional department identifies and assesses the
systemic risks faced by the Company through regular risk management;
controls the risk position of subsidiaries as well as identifies and
assesses changes that may have a significant impact on the internal
control system through periodic risk management reporting systems of
the subsidiaries and risk assessment and monitoring of major projects
and businesses.

The relevant functional departments of the Company are responsible for
identifying and assessing financial and other risks in different areas of
the Company from the aspects such as strategy planning and investment
auditing, financial management, capital operation and legal compliance.

Compile a comprehensive risk management report and submit it to the
Audit Committee for consideration and timely take corresponding risk
management measures.

Control Activities

Ensure that policies are implemented effectively through the
development of well-defined policies and procedures.

Key control systems and processes, including budget and cost control,
submitting management report, corporate policies and corporate daily
activities, for approval, review and division of duties through financial
reporting systems and processes. The internal control system of the
Company clearly defines the responsibilities and powers of each
unit. The Company has established policies and procedures for major
business functions and business units.

The Company established the “Administrative Rules on Supervision and
Management of Audit Rectification”, which included the completion
of audit rectification into annual appraisal indicators for related
subsidiaries, and complete a closed-loop management accountability
mechanism for auditing rectification supervision.

Through the “Request System on Key Issues’, the Company has
established strict decision-making mechanism for major businesses
and issues, such as major investments, appointments and removal of
key personnel and large-scale capital operations to ensure that the
Company’s major decision-making arrangements are in place.

Environment, social and governance risk is one of the major risk
categories monitored by the comprehensive risk management system
of the Company, and all the major ESG risk issues identified, such as
bribery and corruption, business ethics, product quality and safety,
occupational health and safety, and climate change, etc., have been
included in the periodic internal risk evaluation and control procedures.
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Monitoring Measures 12872

Continuously check compliance and conduct risk management and
internal control reviews.

The secretariat of the Board and relevant functional departments
are responsible for the overall assessment and monitoring for the
established procedures to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and
to monitor the compliance with applicable laws and other key provisions.

The internal audit is performed by the risk management department
of the Company, which is responsible for independent auditing of risk
management and internal control.

The Company developed the model clauses of contracts through the
‘Management Measures for Contracts” to finalize an integrated system
combining corporate decisions and legal risk prevention and control and
highlight the function of legal risk control.

The Company strictly follows the related published systems, such as the
‘Management Measures for Real Estate Investment” and the “Request
System on Key Issues”, for investments in real estate projects, as well
as implements the approval procedures required for project investments.

The Company implements business integrity risk prevention and control
over key areas, key processes and key posts. It oversees the entire
purchase bidding procedures for significant projects of the Company
and its subsidiaries and regulates the standard operation of evaluation
process to promote the company-wide application of the Sunshine
Procurement Platform and realize full coverage of sunshine transaction,
online information transparency and full-chain big data monitoring.

Information and Communication
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Implement, maintain and continuously develop business and information
management systems to support the business and operations of the
Company, including financial, information disclosure and collaborative
oversight.

Disseminate corporate information in a timely manner through the
intranet of the Company, collaborative office systems and e-mail system
of the Company.

Establish and implement the Company’'s website and shareholder
communication policies to ensure that shareholders receive
comprehensive, clear, transparent and timely information about the
Company.

Establish a unified stock property management information system to
make the stock asset management more transparent and instant.

The Company constructed the cloud platform to ensure data security
and realize the dynamic extension of the computing resources platform
in line with business demand.
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Internal Auditing ‘*‘Bgf“f
The risk management department is responsible for the internal audit of the BEEEARNIET - FJIHC(R
Company. It reviews the risks involved in daily operations of the Company ﬁ?ﬁ@%ﬂ%&@ﬂ*ﬁ%ﬁlf’ﬁaﬁ TT#J#/%'MJ

and its subsidiaries by using the audit plans and procedures set out in the /ﬁﬁleﬁﬂﬁ’Jﬁﬁﬁéﬂ&kr CREREI R B EN
“Comprehensive Risk Management Manual’ and the ‘Interim Measures for ~HEELEENER - WHANEEE MEE%ET
Internal Audit Management’ it established, and conducts regular post-evaluation Bzt AR Z E G E IR R HIAL AN o

reviews on internal audit items to ensure the effectiveness of risk management

framework.

Each year, the risk management department determines the internal audit work  EREESSFERBATNBKIE - RELLEEE
priorities and formulates annual internal audit plans according to the Company’s ﬁzﬂ"\ﬂ AMEREIIELH - BEANSEH LIEE
strategic deployment, business management needs and annual work schedule. & BIEFEAISEE o

The annual internal audit plan shall include the following basic elements: FENDBBHTEEREUTELRNS ¢

1) Annual work objectives of internal audit; 1) WPBEFFEIEBRE

2)  The specific audit items to be implemented and their sequence; 2 FERTWABFIBEERALEIES

3)  The audit resources allocated to each audit item. 3 SBEMEEMHIENENER -

According to the “Interim Measures for Internal Audit Management’, matters that XM NEME TIEBBRETHNE) - WEETEHH

must be audited shall include the following: EREBETIIEE
Type of Audit Content
Economic Responsibility Audit ° Expiration o]‘ the term of office of the principal leaders of the enterprise;
KEERTET o DEFZEEAEHERL

*  Due to redesignation, removal, dismissal, retirement, etc., during the term of office;
o [AHRNAGMT BB - BHR - BASF

e Assets reorganization of the enterprise such as transfer of control, mixed ownership
reform and change of ownership management level;

o DEETEHESE  RAMAHNE ERTEERBEZAESAN

e Bankruptcy or dissolution of the enterprise;

o DBXRBEMN - BEM

e  QOthers that are subject to economic responsibility audit.
© HipZEBEITEER IR o

Special Audit At least one special audit every three years on the subsidiaries is carried out to achieve
full coverage of audit supervision.

BIEE A HMBECEXB=FNEIRAR-—RBEEE:T EREAEELEE -

Post-Evaluation Audit After an investment project is completed, a comprehensive post-evaluation audit of its

operation and economic benefits is required.

&HEER REEBEHTHE - FEHHEENEERRSETEANRIERT -
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In addition to the above, the risk management department will also conduct
specialized internal audit on the operational priorities of each functional
departments and subsidiaries according to the actual operational and
management situation, the annual work priorities of the Company, as well as the
risks faced by the Company as assessed at the beginning of each year. The risk
management department conducts internal audit supervision on the following
matters of the wholly-owned and controlled enterprises of the Company:

e The implementation of the relevant financial laws, regulations, rules and
regimes by the state, government and superior authorities;

° The implementation of the operating guidelines, policies, rules and
regulations formulated by the wholly-owned and controlled enterprises of
the Company;

o The soundness, rationality, effectiveness and implementation of internal
control systems and regimes;

o Financial revenue and expenditure, asset quality, operating performance
and other related economic activities;

o The establishment and implementation of various operating plans and
planned budgets;

o Important economic contracts, investment projects, mortgages loans or
provision of guarantees, infrastructure projects, etc.

Review of Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control and
Main Procedures to Address the Lack of Internal Control

Based on the above risk management and internal control systems, the risk
management department of the Company conducts regular review and evaluation
in accordance with three aspects of risk management, internal control and
internal audit, to identify the deficiencies of internal control and improve the
system process.

The risk management department establishes a work plan for the coming year in
the later part of every year, which sets out the objectives and scope of the audit.

Internal audits include the testing of the Company’s financial, operational and
compliance controls. The risk management department engages an external
accounting firm to issue an annual internal audit report, and the risk management
department will, towards the deficiencies in monitoring raised by the accounting
firm, make rectification on the details of the audit disclosed by the internal audit
report and on the audit results of the department concerned.

Lo RRERHFITeRELEEERER -
RAFEIREE - URARSFFNFENARM

HERNER - BN MWELEXZEFHE
TREABES TE - ATEREEDHLAMELR

B BREE TV ERETARBESEE -

o BXR - BERLGEESHEENELE -
- RENHEHOEANTER

o HEZ2E  BROXFENLLETEH - BE -
REHENERRITER :

o AHEHEAMBENREME  AEM - BX
ERBITIER ;

o BN BEEE KEBEMUREMER
MRS

o BIEA

bl

* FFEIBENBEIMATER

£y

F

o EEBREAR - REABE  EWNERRREHE
R BRTRINEBENR

e i A L B R A A e R
RE LR

AREREERRE LAEREERNERS - RA
MEE - AEER  NBRAE=EIHETERE
TRt ERTE - BRNERRE - TEHERE o

RREEBNEFRENFIRFEZ TIEE - B
HABETES TENERRBE -

AEEERARARARRNE KERAATE
MEE - RRERMPIBFINBEHMEBAHASF
ERFEFRER - RRERDHHSHMEBMIR
HERNTRZE  RANBEARERENETT
ERFEBIARKAFI AR TEMBRETER -



In response to the identified internal control deficiencies, the risk management
department will promptly communicate the issues with the relevant functional
departments or subsidiaries, put forward measures of rectification and establish
corresponding policies after discussion with the management, and issue a
rectification notice to the functional departments or subsidiaries to urge them to
complete the rectification within the prescribed time.

The implementation of the rectification of various enterprises in the year
was good, and passed the second round of internal control conducted by the
accounting firm.

In the internal control work carried out during the year, the risk management
department did not find any significant deficiencies. According to the relevant
audit results and management responses, the management believes that the
existing internal control system is still valid as a whole.

Review on Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control in
2023

The risk management department has predicted and analyzed the possible risks
the Company’s operations and management may face in 2023. At the same
time, during the year, it continued to strengthen pre-supervision of key issues,
carried out annual in-depth special audits on significant risks, continued to track
and monitor the major risks, and regularly evaluated financial risk early warning
indicators such as solvency, asset operation capability, profitability and capital
operation capability to timely monitor changes in corporate financial risks.
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During the year, the risk management department has conducted internal audit
and examination on rectification of audit opinions for its subsidiaries:

Conducted special audit on construction in progress. In order to further
strengthen the management of construction in progress, standardize
construction behaviors, prevent and resolve construction risks, the risk
management department has conducted special audit on the construction
in progress of its subsidiaries. Based on existing audit resources, the
risk management department adopted a combination of cross-audit and
hierarchical audit, and established an audit working group composed
of various professionals including engineering management, cost
management, tendering and procurement management and internal audit
to carry out the audit. The audit focused on the important aspects of the
construction in progress, such as pre-project decision-making, project
bidding, contract management, project management, cost management,
internal control and risk management, and identified the management
defects, hidden dangers and potential risks existing in the project
construction, so as to help optimize and improve the management level of
the construction in progress, enhance project quality, accelerate progress,
save cost and improve project efficiency. It formulated the “Special Audit
Report on Construction in Progress”.

Conducted an evaluation of 2022 internal control and risk
management systems of the Company. In accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the five-factor
criteria for improving internal controls set out in the “Internal Controls
and Risk Management — A Basic Framework” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the risk management department
conducted a careful review and evaluation of the annual internal control
and risk management system of Shenzhen Investment Limited, completed
the “Evaluation Report of Shenzhen Investment Limited for Internal Control
and Risk Management System for the Year 2022" on time as required and
submitted it to the Audit Committee and the Board of the Company for
review and approval. After comprehensive evaluation of the five components
of the internal control system, the existing internal control and risk
management system of the Company was found to be sound and effective.
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Conducted post-evaluation of 2023 investment projects of the
Company. In order to further enhance the management of investment
projects and prevent investment risks, the risk management department
selected six real estate development projects with sales as the main focus
for review and evaluation. The department studied the discrepancies
between the actual state and the feasibility study report of the projects
and the reasons thereof, analyzed the present situation and benefits of
the project operations and disclosed the problems and risks associated
with the projects at different stages, from project establishment, feasibility
study, construction to sales and operation. The “Comprehensive Post-
evaluation Report” of six projects and the “Work Report on Post-evaluation
of Investment of 2023" were formulated.

Conducted economic responsibility audit during the term of office.
According to its arrangement, during the year, the Company carried out
an economic responsibility audit during the term of office on the legal
representatives of a subsidiary. The audit works focused on the truthfulness,
validity and efficiency of the assets, liabilities, equity and profits and losses,
major operational decisions and operating activities, the establishment
and implementation of internal control and risk management systems,
as well as the compliance with relevant national laws and regulations of
the enterprises during the term of office of the legal representatives. The
audit also identified problems in various aspects of the enterprises, such
as operation management, significant investment and internal control
management, so as to objectively evaluate the economic responsibility of
the legal representatives and check the implementation of the rectification
of the problems identified in the audit.

Conducted annual internal control audit. SYG, the controlling parent
company of the Company, conducted an audit for the year 2022 on the
internal control of the headquarters and some subsidiaries of Shenzhen
Investment. PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP issued the “2022
Internal Control Audit Report” with its unqualified opinion in April 2023 as
scheduled. As shown in the report, the Company has maintained effective
internal controls related to financial reporting in accordance with the “Basic
Norms for Enterprise Internal Control” and the relevant requirements in all
material aspects during the reporting period.
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During the vyear, the Audit Committee and the risk management department
reviewed the risk management and internal control system of the Company for
the year 2023, covering financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as
the progress of overall risk management and internal control. The annual review
has also taken into account the adequacy of the resources, qualification and
experience of staff in accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
of the Company; and the adequacy of the training courses received by the staff
and related budgets.

The Audit Committee and the Board have also reviewed the “Evaluation Report
for Internal Control and Risk Management System for the Year 2023 issued by
the risk management department. The Board is of the view that the existing risk
management and internal control system is effective and sufficient as a whole.

The Company requires any department or individual to keep any information
which may constitute inside information in strict confidentiality and not to leak
or report the contents involving inside information without the prior approval of
the Board. The Board makes timely disclosure decision on the inside information
(if necessary), and disclosure of the inside information is in charge by the Board
Office. In this connection, the management and other relevant employees who
are privy to unpublished inside information are reminded of their responsibilities
to comply with the provisions of the Model Code.

The Board has adopted a Whistleblowing Policy which provides employees of the
Group and those who deal with the Group with reporting channels and guidance
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about
possible improprieties related to the Group, a copy of which is available on the
Company's website. The Audit Committee had not received any whistleblowing
enquiry or complaint in 2023.

The Company has appointed a representative from an external secretarial
services provider as the company secretary of the Company, who has confirmed
his compliance with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Our primary corporate contact person is Ms. Edith Wong, our
General Counsel.
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During the year, with a view to provide flexibility to the Company in relation to
the conduct of general meetings, the Board proposed to amend the articles
of association of the Company to allow general meetings to be held as a fully
electronic meeting or a hybrid meeting where shareholders of the Company
may attend by electronic means in addition to as a physical meeting where
Shareholders attend in person. Other related and house-keeping amendments
in line with the proposed amendments were also proposed. A new article of
association of the Company (‘“New Articles”) with the proposed amendments were
adopted by a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 29 May 2023. The New Articles are available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group that give a true and fair view of the Group’s affairs, its
results and cash flows in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the Company is set out in
the Independent Auditor's Report in this report.

It is the Company’s long-term policy to provide stable ordinary dividends that are
linked to the underlying earnings performances of the business of the Group.
The Company aims to ensure that whilst allowing the shareholders to participate
in the Company’s earnings, adequate balance for future business expansion is
retained.

Generally, the Company pays dividends twice a year (annual interim dividend and
final dividend) regularly. The overall dividend plan including the amount and form
of any dividend is to be proposed/determined by the Board. The Board may also
declare/propose the payment of special dividends when there is special income
or circumstances and at any time as it deems appropriate.
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In determining/recommending any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account:

e the actual and expected financial performance of Group;

e  the cash-flow position, the expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans of the Group;

o the general economic conditions, business cycle and other internal and
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group;

e the contractual restrictions imposed on the payment of dividends (if any);
and

o any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

KPMG was engaged as the Company’s external auditor since 2016 and retired
at the close of annual general meeting held on 1 June 2021 (“2021 AGM’) as
the engagement period has reached the prescribed number of years according to
the relevant regulations issued by the Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government
State-owned Assets Supervisor and Administration Commission regarding the
audit work on financial statements of state-owned enterprises in Shenzhen, the
PRC. PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the Company’s external
auditor in place of KPMG with effect from the close of the 2021 AGM. During
the year, the services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers and the fees for such
services were as follows:

Audit fees:

Financial statements audit fees: HK$4,442,000 (2022: HK$4,655,000)

Other service fees:
Interim review and other services: HK$1,978,000 (2022: HK$2,110,000)
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The Board has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy in March 2022,
setting out the framework that the Company has put in place to promote effective
communication with shareholders. This Policy forms the basis for extensive and
ongoing engagement with our shareholders and the investment community via
multiple channels, including through the publication of notices, announcements,
circulars, interim and final and reports on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’'s website, making available a wide range of information on the
Company’s website, briefings and meetings with investment community and
face-to-face communication between the Board and the shareholders at the
Company’s general meeting, with the aim of ensuring shareholders are provided
with timely information about the Company and encouraging them to engage
actively in communication with the Company and to exercise their rights as
shareholders in an informed manner. The shareholders are also provided with
contact details of the Company to enable them to make enquiries and comments
on the affairs of the Company at any time.

The Board has conducted a review on the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholders Communication Policy. Having considered the multiple
channels available and the investor-relations-related engagement in place, the
Board is satisfied that the Shareholders Communication Policy has been properly
implemented during the year and is effective.

The Company recognizes its responsibility to update its business activities to
persons with legitimate interests and respond to their questions. We meet
with investors on a regular basis to update them on our business progress and
strategy. In addition, we endeavor to share both financial and non-financial
information that is relevant and material, for instance, we publish unaudited
contracted sales performance voluntarily on a monthly basis, and respond
promptly to enquiries arising from general public and individual shareholders.
And, in all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no inside information is
disclosed to selected parties.

Shenzhen Investment Limited ZY[ZRAERRE (099
Annual Report 3 2023

Corporate Governance Report
EE R RS

EZECMN2022F 3 ARMBRBABERTI S AR E
ARBERRZEANBRERMGIENER - ZBEK
BRBBSRREERRIRERETRZHERR
MER - SERBERLD RN AR E AR
o BE - PHRKRERS - EAQFR
RUESBER  EREA/ABTHNERESE - WRE
SERREARFBRAG LETAHERN » #
NHERBERESEREBALANES - RRBKER
R EARRRNER - WHENEZERTITREBRR
ZIER - BRITERBAARZBEER - WEKE
BEAAARZERLIEARERER

ESECRIRRBABRRNERBELRARE - &
ERAANZBREREREEHRABNZERBR
& EZEEM RFARRBARRCSIEZH
TRBEM

ARRHAAFAREERZ ATREEZBZDN
EHMEHLEORRERACEE - RATHERES
SH - ERQAAEBENRMERLRRE 15 R
PBEADFREREAZHBENRIERBEH - f
me BZABAERLAHAEERARHEERR - LR
BRI AR R ERBRZHAE - BARAERBRER
T ORBFREE - BRIEEEEMBRETAR
BEH -



100  Shenzhen Investment Limited RYIZERRAR A A
Annual Report 3% 2023

Corporate Governance Report
®EE IR HRE

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “CQ”), the
Listing Rules, and the articles of association of the Company as amended from
time to time, shareholders of the Company (‘Shareholders”) may call general
meeting, put forward proposals at annual general meetings (‘AGM”) and direct
enquiries to the Board in accordance with the following procedures:

- Convening of General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the Company may request the directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the
CO.

In accordance with Section 566 of the CO, the directors are required to
call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do so from
Shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state
the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company and attention
to the Company Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science
Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); and must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the CO, the
directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they become
subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting.
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BIERREAIES66(E - MAABMREEZEBEER
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Putting Forward Proposals at AGM
To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholders are requested to follow the
requirements and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice of a resolution
if it has received requests to do so from (a) the Shareholders representing at
least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM of the Company to which the requests relate;
or (b) at least 50 Shareholders who have the rights to vote on the resolution at
the AGM to which the requests relate.

Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the Company
Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the
Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in electronic
form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is
to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Section 616 of the CO provides that the Company that is required under
Section 615 of the CO to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at
the Company’s own expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the
AGM (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same
time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director can be found on “Corporate Information” under the section headed
‘Investor Relations” of the Company’s website.
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Procedures for directing enquiries to the Company

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board in writing through the Board
Office at the below contact details:

Address:  8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre,

No. 9 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: ir@shumyip.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2723 8113

Fax: (852) 2723 2263

Share registration related matters

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration,
change of name or address, loss of share certificates or dividend warrants, the
Shareholders can contact the Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at the
below contact details:

Address:  17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Ih) A2 w4 A A
/ﬂ %%EW ;é_'

MEFSEHEARRANED T NEATHEER
EREFERAENERSHEHENR -

il 2

ik BEAEADBREEER
FRAMmERLLE

BH - ir@shumyip.com.hk

B (852) 27238113

BE :  (852) 2723 2263
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T8 7. K% BB 4
Independent Auditor’s Report BIUREMERE
To the Members of Shenzhen Investment Limited BORYIER B R A RS iR
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (REBEMKIMERETAR)
Opinion =9
What we have audited RMCOHEFTHNE

The consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen Investment Limited (the  FIZERARAT (U TEBIERF]) RAKEL
“Company’) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 112to Al (MATHRE[EE£E ) FIERE1122 252 BH4

252, comprise: BHBHRE - B :
e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023; o 2023F12 31 HNGAPBMNE ¢
e the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended; o HEZALFENGABEE

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then o EZEZBIFFENGAEZENGER ;

ended;
e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended: o HEZALFEMNGARRZEHE
e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and o HEZHUIFENGARERER R

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material o  4SAMBHERME  BEEAGTHEEER
accounting policy information and other explanatory information. HfRRES -
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (‘the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Valuation of investment properties

o Assessment of net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

FME

BMRAE  ZERAUBRRERERASHAAE
BHER(EANBREEN)BEEMP S HRIET &
SEN2023F12 A31 HNERA BRI REEBEZ
AEFENGAVBERARGEEETE - WEER
BB CREED ZBEE -
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AL
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Bt 3 0H (B)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Valuation of investment properties

RENMEMSLE

Refer to note 4(b) fair value of investment properties and note 16
investment properties to the consolidated financial statements.
F2HEAMBREMTADREDEZ AABRIT16REY

o

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$33,451 million, which accounted for
approximately 19% of the Group’s total assets. An increase in fair
value of investment properties of HK$555 million was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended, which accounted for 31% of the Group’s profit before
income tax.
R20235612H310 - EXERERENMFE3ZJA1BERT -
ff BEBEBEEN19% - REMERAABEMSS5BEETE
REEXFENGABRERER & ESBERAGHINETM
31% °

The Group’s investment properties are measured at fair value.
Management engaged an independent external valuer to assist
them in measuring the fair value of investment properties.
The determination of the fair value for investment properties
involved critical accounting judgements in selection of valuation
methodology and critical accounting estimates on certain key
assumptions including prevailing market rents, capitalisation rates
and vacancy rates.
EEEMRBMENAAGIE - EREZEBUINIEERM G
SEREVMEN/AE - BERBUEAAES RN ERMEERER
fELER e HE R THRERELBRE It - BRI
sl BMEEREEX o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETOMERERENEE

We have performed the following audit procedures to address this
key audit matter: B )
AEEZBREFEE - ZM9TT TIERER

(i)  Understood, evaluated and validated the management’s
internal controls over the process to determine the fair
value of investment properties and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
including complexity and subjectivity;

() T8 FEEkBREFEEENETRENEAAENRIETE
HEAEEE - WERERMAG T REMNEERAMES
EREZ (BEEHENEEMN) 0K FERFEERERE L
HEA Rk

(i) Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessments of the
valuation of investment properties to assess the effectiveness
of management’s estimation process;

(i) AMEEREDEHEATHENTEER  UTEERER
FHBRRRE AL

(i)  Assessed the competence, capability and objectivity of the
gxternatvaluer and understood the scope of their work;

(i) FTMEINBEERMNER « e HNREEN - Y THREIES
;

(iv) Involved our internal valuation specialists in examining the
valuation results prepared by the external valuer, including
assessing the valuation methodology, key assumption
and parameters used by the external valuer based on our
knowledge and experience for similar types of properties
valuation;

(V) BMHAHNEEZR2AZEINDEERMBRNGELS
DREENEMERUMEREGEN TR IER - sV
ERMEANMGERE - BREBRR2H
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

B at 3E (B)

Key Audit Matter
HEETEE

Valuation of investment properties (continued)
REMEME (H)

We focused on auditing the valuation of investment properties
because the total balance of investment properties is significant
to the consolidated financial statements and the valuation of the
investment properties is subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty, as the inherent risk in relation to the valuation
is considered relatively higher due to the subjectivity of key
assumptions used in the valuation and significant judgements
involved in selecting the valuation methodology.

BT THRENEMEETET - REARENENARBLHER
BUBRAME EREA - BRNEERREARRRNOEEE IR
BEMERER P REAHE - BEEABNESRBRESR /B
Em HREAVEREFESERA T -

The valuation of investment properties is, therefore, considered as
a key audit matter.

At - RENEOHERGEBRETFE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RS MM EERESE

(v  Checked the key assumptions and parameters used in
the valuations, on a sample basis, to supporting evidence

including:
(v) ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ@¢ﬁ%%%%ﬁ%&%@vu&ﬁi%%%'
B H

° compared the prevailing market rents, capitalisation
rates and vacancy rates used in the valuations against
the published industry benchmarks and comparable
market transactions;

o BABEBPEANRITMSHE  BAMEREEXREN
HRTERERAEYBRMISER FHEITLLE

° checked, on a sample basis, the rental rates of the
leased properties used in the valuation against the key
terms of existing rental agreements and rental income
breakdown;

e MEREMETPEANEENEELERRAEHER
BNEZHEFIRESWARMA ;

° compared the key assumptions used in the valuation
against historical records and evaluated their
reasonableness based on our industry knowledge;

o  BEETPERNBRERERELDEETLR - WIRE
HFEOTENBTEESEMY

(vi) Assessed the adequacy of disclosures related to the valuation
of investment properties in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.

(vi) %@%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬁ&é%%ﬁ@ﬁ%mﬁﬁ%ﬁ

/Jj o

Based on the above, we considered that management’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the valuation of investment
properties were supportable by the available evidence obtained and
procedures performed.

LR - RMAREEERREMEGESRANERRES
TGN BERNMATNEFNSE
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Bt 3 0H (B)

Key Audit Matter
REETEHE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

BRTNERBEREZCRRNEZ TERFEFTME

Refer to note 4(a) estimates for net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale, note 23
properties under development and note 24 completed properties
held for sale to the consolidated financial statements.

FRRGEMBREAMNTIQBRPNERFEFEZEEXDE
g%gﬁ%ﬁmﬁ\W%%%E¢%¥&W%mﬁﬁﬁ%25%

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's properties under
development (‘PUD") and completed properties held for sale
(“PHS") amounted to HK$70,563 million and HK$19,745 million
respectively, which in total accounted for approximately 52% of the
Group’s total assets. The carrying amounts of PUD and PHS are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (‘NRV").
M2023512H318 © EXENRIHBRERME ([PUD]) &
FHEFEZEZKME ([PHS]) 70,563 BB TRk 19,7458 8
B Ay BREREELNS2% o PUDKRPHSKIBREE MM AR
HAEIFE ([NRV]) FIRIEETR ©

Management assessed the NRV based on existing selling and
construction plans, and a forecast of future selling price based on
prevailing market conditions, with reference to the current market
price of properties of comparable type, size and location. The
determination of NRV involved critical accounting estimates on the
selling price, selling expenses and the costs to completion of PUD.
EREENRITMARBRAHEE RERFTEIURRREEEH -
WHERL - BERAMBRENNERNERITETENRY o NRVA]
gggﬁ;ﬁ@; CHERA - LAREPUDR IR BB EHRANE
=®8allmal °

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHESt A EERRETEE

We have performed the following audit procedures to address this
key audit matter: B )
REBZBRETEE - KMWTT TIERER -

(i)  Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
controls over the process of the assessment of NRV and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level
of other inherent risk factors including complexity and
subjectivity;

() THEEEMNRVFLBREREENARES - WERER
B EEENEEREMEFRRAR (BEERENE
Bt Mk EARGHEER SRR EERR

(i) Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of net
realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale to assess the effectiveness
of management's estimation process;

(i) FHEHBRPOERFESEZEERNE LR FER
EHEMEER - U EEREATRENERL ;

(iiiy  Understood, evaluated and validated the management’s
internal controls over the process around the property
development cycle with particular focus on controls over cost
budgeting;

(i) TH  FHEEBREEREUMEREBERERBRNARE
#l - LHRHKAEE SRS
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

B at 3E (B)

Key Audit Matter
MEETTEE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
(continued)

BRTNERBEREZCERNE 2 TERFEFME (8)

We focused on auditing the assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS
because the total balances of PUD and PHS are significant and
the estimation of the NRV is subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS is, therefore,
considered as a key audit matter.

HMEEREEHPUD RPHSHINRVAT AL - R FAPUD K PHS#) &84
BEAX - ANRVEEE RERER M TREE - At - PUDK
PHSHINRVAT(E 4R (ERISE AT =8 o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMNESNMEERRETEE

(iv) Tested management’s key estimates, on a sample basis, for:

(v) FEAFAEEENERG -

° selling price which was estimated based on the
prevailing market conditions, we compared the
estimated selling price to recent transactions by
making reference to the Group’s selling price of pre-
sold units or the prevailing market price of properties
with comparable type, size and location;

o FREFRIMAGINEE H HM2E EEEEE
Eum%1iﬁﬁ RRRMERENMENRITH
B Bl EERIBRHETLR ;

° selling expenses which were estimated based on
a certain percentage of estimated selling price, we
compared the above estimated percentage with
the approved budget and the actual average selling
expenses to revenue ratio of the Group in recent years;

o HREBRMEHEEN-—TEBEILMBHMNFEERRME - &
P EAET e B H LR Eﬁgﬁ&imm&ﬁ
BTSSR AE BRI L RETTHLR

° estimated costs to completion for PUD, we reconciled
the estimated costs to completion to the approved
budget and examined the construction contracts.

o GLPUDMERTSERAAT S » HAIRHEE TR AR
FEEHETHER - TREZEARR -

Based on the above, we considered that management’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the assessment of NRV of PUD and
PHS were supportable by the available evidence obtained and
procedures performed.

ER ISR - BIFIRAEIEER £ PUD R PHSHINRVES P fE A
HAIETRMRRGE T EGMA AR RMITNIE TR o




Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform

audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

BRI 28 at A 5 B 35 Ak 0 A AT
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements (continued)

e  FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Lam Sung Wan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HABEEE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31ALEE
2023 2022
2023 20224F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FisE THERT FHET
Revenue I 15,832,132 31,540,226
Cost of sales and services SHE R BRI A (10,721,440)  (20,847,656)
Gross profit E 5,110,692 10,692,570
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDERY (514,590) (432,937)
Administrative expenses IBEYX (1,516,803) (1,873,721)
Decrease in fair value of financial assets BRBREANETEZEREE
at fair value through profit or loss DRERD 21 (75,025) (355,845)
Gains/(losses) result from changes in fair value of REVEAAEZPRERERE
and transfer to investment properties %%E‘%EZ*‘J%/(EET ) 16 554,651 (351,889)
Net impairment losses on financial assets SREEREBETF 3.1(b) (26,697) (77,138)
Other expenses HinfAx 7 (436,541) (310,744)
Other income H et A 8 408,173 438,589
Other (losses)/gains Hi (B18) /FIB 9 (3,916) 1,811
Operating profit R 3,499,944 7,730,696
Finance income BT 11 203,581 216,591
Finance costs BT AR 11 (1,244,915) (971,689)
Finance costs — net BT 11 (1,041,334) (755,098)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates ~ [EMEAZ A B MBS A RK SRR 19,20 (682,698) 391,441
Profit before income tax BRATEH AR 1,775,912 7,367,039
Income tax expenses FRRiAZ 12 (1,582,516) (4,911,695)
Profit for the year FREF 193,396 2,455,344
Profit for the year is attributable to THI (S F A&
— Owners of the Company — ARRIERRE (261,397) 2,085,418
— Non-controlling interests — RS 454,793 369,926
193,396 2,455,344
(Losses)/earnings per share for (loss)/ ARREZRREN (FE) /
profit attributable to owners of the A2 B R (ES?_& /B
Company (expressed in HK cents per share) (UABREWIR)
Basic EAR 13 (2.94) 23.43
Diluted g 13 (2.94) 23.43
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in conjunction iR A B R RN —HRE

with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HAaEmWER

Profit for the year FERRF 193,396 2,455,344
Other comprehensive income Hth2HE K
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AR EF PR A B
— Share of other comprehensive income of — EEREDRIREENA
joint ventures and associates Hi2EB (159,337) (422,176)
— Exchange differences on translation of foreign —BNEBRE ERETE
operations (699,679) (5,673,487)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax SR EM2E U - NBRBE (859,016) (6,095,663)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREARZAE (665,620) (3,640,319
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THEEZEKSHEE :
— Owners of the Company — RAREERE (1,048,633) (3,563,040
— Non-controlling interests — R 383,013 (77,279)
(665,620) (3,640,319)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Lita 2 EMGER RN GO -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MERRE

ASSETS gE
Non-current assets kREEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERR 15 6,181,723 6,159,776
Investment properties REME 16 33,450,507 35,126,999
Investments in joint ventures REBRRIZIKE 19 8,735,858 8,836,242
Investments in associates REBENRIZRE 20 4,545,599 5,610,595
Intangible assets BRAE 18 887,135 722,970
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss FBEFREARENEZEREE 21 131,365 107,455
Financial assets at fair value through other BREMZERREALETELZ
comprehensive income SRMEE 22 2,368 2,402
Trade and other receivables 25 REAMERK 26 277,026 419,737
Deferred income tax assets BREHEE 32 3,513,667 3,335,319
57,725,248 60,321,495
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development BRAYE 23 70,563,075 71,019,506
Completed properties held for sale RBERFE B AR ME 24 19,744,800 11,583,916
Inventories BE 25 266,208 342,177
Trade and other receivables EC e ER 26 11,665,380 6,833,278
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BBEREZAAENEZ SREE 21 906 1,594
Biological assets EWEE 4,512 4,021
Restricted cash and bank deposits X EIRE MRTFER 27 3,389,371 1,693,335
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEN 27 11,053,858 11,668,267
116,688,110 103,146,094
Total assets EEHAE 174,413,358 163,467,589
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &7 A% KRR EIL R
Share capital R 28 22,071,756 22,071,756
Capital reserve BARE 28 59,019 59,019
Other reserves HAi & 29 2,370,145 3,157,152
Retained earnings REBF 17,836,686 19,343,914
42,337,606 44,631,841
Non-controlling interests FERES 5,142,605 4,925,132
Total equity RSB 47,480,211 49,556,973
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AWM EARDLR

LIABILITIES &
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEE 31 24,897,499 28,138,776
Lease liabilities HEERE 17 269,430 128,177
Deferred income WA 20,219 19,714
Due to the immediate holding company e B R A B FA 35 700,651 699,483
Deferred income tax liabilities REFEHAE 32 7,319,668 7,899,606
33,207,467 36,885,756
Current liabilities RBEE
Bank and other borrowings R REMEE 31 14,141,603 12,083,433
Contract liabilities EHERE 33 24,303,239 6,328,458
Trade and other payables 25 REMERMZK 34 22,802,440 25,872,833
Lease liabilities HEERE 17 105,488 62,613
Due to the immediate holding company e B AR A B FA 35 3,194,490 2,454,966
Due to the ultimate holding company A SR AR R A B FIA 35 17,653,750 18,312,783
Tax payable FERTHEIR 36 11,524,670 11,909,774
93,725,680 77,024,860
Total liabilities BEEE 126,933,147 113,910,616
Total equity and liabilities EnAERaBEEE 174,413,358 163,467,589

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in iR A B TS AR R R FE R — BERIE o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 112 to 252 were approved by the Board of — $112ZE 252 BRI B RMAN2024FE3 27T ERES

Directors on 27 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf. eHtE - TREFE o
Dr. LU Hua Ms. SHI Xiaomei
RERL LEBRELT
Director Director

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HAREREE R

Balance at 1 January 2023 R2023E1B1A 2R 22,071,756 59,019 3,157,152 19,343,914 44,631,841 4,925,132 49,556,973
Comprehensive income 2HWE
(Loss)/profit for the year ER (B8])/ &F - - - (261,397)  (261,397) 454,793 193,396
Other comprehensive income:  Ef 2 E M -
Share of other comprehensive ~ [EEA S A e KB E A

income of joint ventures and EL ke

associates - - (159,337) - (159,337) - (159,337)
Exchange differences on BNEBREZELER

translation of foreign operations - - (627,899) - (627,899) (71,780)  (699,679)
Total comprehensive income ~ FR2E K258

for the year - - (787,236)  (261,397) (1,048,633) 383,013 (665,620)
Transactions with ownersin ~ EEERRUEEHES

their capacity as owners BRREBETZRS
Capital injections from FERERTE

non-controlling interests - - - - - 5,441 5,441
Dividends provided for or paid ~ E&ET Rz RE - - - (1,245,831) (1,245,831)  (170,981) (1,416,812)
Equity-settled share option IR 2 AR

expense - - 229 - 229 - 229
Total transactions with owners ~ EERFER 2R 545 - - 229 (1,245,831) (1,245,602)  (165,540) (1,411,142
Balance at 31 December 2023 2023512831 B2 &tk 22,071,756 59,019 2,370,145 17,836,686 42,337,606 5,142,605 47,480,211
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR E R

Balance at 1 January 2022 R2022F1 1B 28 22,071,756 59,019 8,913,918 18,130,233 49,174,926 5,194,954 54,369,880

Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year FRRF = =
Other comprehensive income; A2 EH A

Share of other comprehensive  JE(EA &7 Al R &
income of joint ventures and AREMEERE

2,085,418 2,085,418 369,926 2,455,344

associates - - (422,176) - (422,176) - (422,176)
Exchange differences on BINEBRE VERER
translation of foreign operations — - (5,226,282) - (5,226,282)  (447,205) (5,673,487)

Total comprehensive income  FR2HERHALE
for the year -

Transactions with owners in ~ BEZRFAEEAER
their capacity as owners BREBETZRS

(5,648,458 2,085,418 (3,563,040)  (77,279) (3,640,319)

Capital injections from FERERTE

non-controlling interests - - - - - 11,404 11,404
Dividends provided for or paid ~ BEEHIH 2R E - - ~  (978,867)  (978,867)  (203,947) (1,182,814)
Equity-settled share option AR 1 2 BE R 2

expense - - 676 - 676 - 676
Lapse of share options BRELN - - (108,984) 108,984 = = =
Share repurchase RIPEE - - = (1,854) (1,854) = (1,854)

Total transactions with owners ~ BEXRE 2 X 5258 -

(108,308)  (871,737)  (980,045)  (192,543) (1,172,588)

Balance at 31 December 2022 W2022E12A31 248k 22,071,756 59,019 3,157,152 19,343914 44,631,841 4,925,132 49,556,973

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in Py ARREERELNT—HEE o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

o

Year ended 31 December
HE12A1ALEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
fiisx THET TAT
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities &£&EEEL /(FH) 2BE&RE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations REEBEL/(FR) 28& 37(a) 10,847,030 (6,440,381)
Interest received BRI S 265,848 212,187
Interest paid ENME (3,391,157) (1,783,913)
Income tax paid BERAER (3,324,883) (5,227,665)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating ~ E&ZFBHEL /(FiH) 2BL3E
activities 4,396,838 (13,239,772)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEECHERE
Dividends received from financial assets fair value EWEBEZEALEFEZ SR
through profit or loss BERE 2,168 2,090
Dividends received from joint ventures BURAERBIRE 15,817 29,924
Dividends received from associates U A B E 7,949 52,223
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEME - FERREERE
equipment 206 49
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties  HEREYEMGTIA 2,410,727 =
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BAME - BEISE (443,300) (1,021,261)
Purchases of investment properties under BAREREENE
development (462,276) -
Capital injection to joint ventures RAEEAREER (198,332) (92,327)
Capital injection to associates B E AR EE (169,684) =
Payments of loans to joint ventures IR TEERRIZER (910,610) (523,665)
Repayments of loans to joint ventures BRTEERRIZEZER 199,890 1,163,700
Purchases of financial assets at fair value through EAZBEREZALENEL
profit or l0ss PREE (99,315) -
Repayments of loans to non-controlling interests 4 F3ERi% s 2 EFUER - 698,220
Net cash generated from investing activities REZHEECRETE 353,240 308,953
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEBESRER

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HILLEE

2023 2022
2023 20224
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
BisE FTAERT TAET
Cash flows (used in)/from financing activites BEEE (FfTA) /EEZBERE  370)
Capital element of lease payments BENRZBERE M (69,257) (171,401)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders XNARBBRRZ RS (1,245,831) (978,867)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests XIS 2 RS (170,981) (203,947)
Proceeds from loans from non-controlling interests  JE{RRkiES EZFT1S 708 67,316 340,655
Repayments of loans from non-controlling interests B2 3EE R ER (4,719,048) (40,573)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests R T & 5,441 11,404
Proceeds from loans from related parties B R ERERUA 16,081,443 27,811,891
Repayments of loans from related parties EEEY T ER (14,323,083)  (22,866,777)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMEEMEHRE 18,261,507 17,845,339
Repayments of bank and other borrowings EERTREMEE (19,103,456)  (14,158,203)
Share repurchase R in EfE - (1,854)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing ~ B&EEE (FTR) EE2BEFE
activities (5,215,949) 7,587,667
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERRSEEWALFE (465,871) (5,343,152)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £ 2RERELLEEY 11,668,267 19,917,256
Exchange differences on cash BeRBLSEENERESR
and cash equivalents (148,538) (2,905,837)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEAERBELEEY 27 11,053,858 11,668,267

The above consolidated cash flows statement should be read in conjunction with LGB S REREEN T —H6E -
the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&F A WS R M RE

WA

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + Fr & & S5 T A7)

General information

Shenzhen Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of the Company's registered office
is located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in property development, property investment, property
management and manufacture operation. The principal activities of the
Group's joint ventures and associates are disclosed in notes 19 and 20.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the
Company is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum Yip Holdings”, &
% (%[E)BR 2 7)), which is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong.
The ultimate holding company of the Company is &% & & A & /A &(“Shum
Yip Group”), which is a state-owned company established in Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The consolidated financial information is presented in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000)
except when otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 27 March 2024.

Basic of preparation

Going concern basis

Due to the volatility of the property market in the PRC and the unfavourable
impact on the presale performance during the year and subsequent
to the year end date, the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern for at least of
12 months from 31 December 2023.
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Basic of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections, which covers a period of twelve months from 31 December
2023. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account the anticipated cash flows generated from the Group’s operations
as well as the possible changes in its operating performance, the Group’s
plan of land acquisitions; and the continued availability of the Group’s bank
and other borrowings as well as the Group’s ability to raise new financing
under the prevailing rules and regulations, and the financial support from
the ultimate holding company, the Group will have sufficient working capital
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due within the coming
twelve months from 31 December 2023.

Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern.

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with applicable HKFRS as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and requirements under the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

HKFRS comprise the following authoritative literature:
e Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
e Hong Kong Accounting Standards

o Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants
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2
2.3

24l

Basic of preparation (continued)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), and investment properties, which are measured at fair
value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended standards for its
annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2023:

e Insurance Contracts — HKFRS 17

e Definition of Accounting Estimates — amendments to HKAS 8

e  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction — amendments to HKAS 12

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.
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Basic of preparation (continued)

New or amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain amendments to accounting standards and interpretation have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group, summarised as below:

R (A1)

2.5 MIARIRAN AT SR T R
BBz ETEHEARREZERT - RN
202312 A31 B EMMA BT - TAKA
SERARR - BT

N

Effective for the
annual periods
beginning on or after

RT5IAH

ZERGZ

FEABEN

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification for liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2024
BEETERE 1R 2B KEESBARBIIERD 202451 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024
BEGTERE 1R 2 BT MEZAAFERDAE 2024F1A1H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains 1 January 2024

a repayment on demand clause
BEREBEST (2020F) BRAHBEREREREERI ARER AR 20241 A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease liability in sales and lease back 1 January 2024
BB RERIE165 2185 ERMEZHERE 2024F1R1H
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier finance arrangements 1 January 2024
BEGRARTR LT BHBRE LR H e R A s 22 202451 A1H
FETHR BT
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
BEETRAE21R2B3] Tz Al 20251 A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and To be determined
and HKAS 28 its associate or joint venture

BEAUBRERNZ10RREBHENE28% RELELHBLEARRAE AR HNEELERTE FET

ZIERT

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new or amended standards and interpretations, certain of which are
relevant to the Group's operations. According to the preliminary assessment
made by the Group, no material impact on the financial performance and
position of the Group in the current or future reporting period and on
foreseeable future transactions is expected when they become effective.

AGEERRFBZFHTIEETENRRENY
g BETHR BB RRRLEARERKEA
B o REAKBELN LG - BRZEFHNTRE
BRI RRERERRTEHAREE I RKR
EHANMBERRLRRARE RN RARR HE
TEARE -
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3.1

Financial risk management

The Group’s major operations are mainly located in the PRC and is
subject to special considerations and significant risks. These include
risks associated with, among others, the political, economic and legal
environment, influence of national authorities over pricing regulation and
competition in the market.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(mainly including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The property market is highly sensitive to the economic environment in
the PRC, which will affect the volumes of property transactions and selling
prices. The Group mainly relies on sales of properties and debt financing
to fund its operations. The Group has alternative plans to monitor liquidity
risk should there be significant adverse changes on the Group’s cash flow
projections.

Financial risk factors
@  Market risk
(i)  Currency risk
Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) and the Group’s assets held and all of the
committed borrowings of the Group are mainly denominated in
RMB.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency
risk as it had minimal transactions denominated in foreign
currencies during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022 and the impact of foreign currency risk on the Group’s
operation is minimal.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s market risk arises mainly from interest rate risk
of long-term bank and other borrowings. Bank and other
borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Bank and other borrowings obtained at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group closely monitors trend of interest rate and its impact on
the Group’s interest rate risk exposure. The Group currently has
not used any interest rate swap arrangements and may consider
hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
@  Market risk (continued)

(il

Interest rate risk (continued)

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes
and the contractual re-pricing dates of the borrowings at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

3 WMEEkEE ()
3.1 MEEBEZE (5)
@ T5ER (&)

(il

FMERERE (8)
RBEMRAEBEEEHFREH
BB EEEZADEENEER SN
T

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
% of total % of total
HK$’000 borrowings HK$'000  borrowings

TR GERBE%

TAL HEFEES

Variable rate borrowings EERBE 25,413,309 65% 22,355,890 56%
Fixed rate borrowings— repricing TEMEE — EF
or maturity dates: TEHEHA

Less than 1 year kS 2,040,154 5% 4,535,146 11%

1 to 5 years 1-54F 4,023,289 10% 3,676,828 9%

Over 5 years 5 E 7,562,350 20% 9,654,345 24%

39,039,102 100% 40,222,209 100%

At 31 December 2023, the Group had HK$25,413,309,000
(2022: HK$22,355,890,000) variable interest rate borrowings
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. If the
interest rate of these borrowings had increased/decreased by
0.5% and all other factors remained unchanged, the profit
before tax for the year of the Group would have decreased/
increased by approximately HK$127,067,000 (2022:
HK$111,779,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit before tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and the impact on the Group’s profit
before tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as 2022.

R20235%12A831H - XEEFS
FEBAXHERENERR 2F
B1fE525,413,309,000/ 7T (2022
% :22,355,890,0008 ) © fif
ZEEENME LR/ TR0.5%
MArEEMERRETE  ZFE
AEE BB TSGR D /5
N#)127,067,0008 ¢ (20224 :
111,779,000/ 7T ) °
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a)  Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from listed
and unlisted equity investments held for trading and non-trading
purposes.

The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based on the
performance of individual securities compared to that of the
relevant stock market Index and other industry indicators, as
well as the Group’s liquidity needs. Listed equity investments
that are not held for trading purposes have been chosen
based on their longer term growth potential and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments are not held for trading
purposes and have been chosen based on their longer term
growth potential. Their performance is assessed regularly and
the decisions to buy or sell is based on the Group’s long term
strategic plans.

3 M#HEREEE (5)
3.1 HMEEEAE (5)
mEEE (&)

(@)

(iii)

ERER
FREEEREEREE AT
At E R TR E A
BREERD -

AEEN EMRERENEBY R
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HRRRARED SREE R BITRE
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BERENERDREERAAEE
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AEE -

AKERGEETBEREYFRER
BMmEE > MRREELREME
ENMERE - ERRGTEHFE -
B BERE N ERA R E & LR
AtElfEH

Increase =20 1%
Decrease s (1%)

992

(992)

18
(18)

818 18
(818) (18)

The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in the consolidated
statement of financial position either as FVOCI (note 22) or
FVTPL (note 21).

AEBZREFFBRRBRERSE
BEENEE  REAFBEMRAEEX
RO B ABBEMZARSRANE
SHEFVOCH) (BfiE22) siE B iRHR
NRAEFTEFVTPL) (Bi3E21) o
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Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

()

Credit risk

Credit risks refer to the risk of losses incurred by the inabilities of
debtors or counterparties to fulfil their contractual obligations or by
the adverse changes in their credit conditions. The Group is exposed
to credit risk in relation to its cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash and bank deposits, trade and other receivables and financial
guarantee contracts.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.

For trade receivables in respect of property development, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to purchasers with
an appropriate financial strength and appropriate percentage of down
payments. The Group also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivables to ensure that adequate loss allowance are made
for irrecoverable amounts.

For other trade receivables not related to property development
business, the Group’s customer base is diversified and has no
significant concentrations of credit risk. Trade receivables are due
from 30 to 180 days to from the date of billing. The Group has
policy to closely monitor the settlement of trade receivables and long
outstanding balances are requested to be settled before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

For the financial guarantee contracts provided by the Group to banks
in connection with the customers’ mortgage loans to finance their
purchase of properties, the Group measured the loss allowance on
financial guarantee contracts by reference to the historical default
rate of the purchasers, the loss given default based on the current
property value and the pre-sale deposits already received and the
forward-looking information. Detailed such financial guarantee is
disclosed in note 38.

2 L e A B ()
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the loss allowances on
financial guarantee contracts at 1 January 2023 and 31 December
2023 were insignificant to the Group. For properties which have
been pre-sold, or the completed properties that sold but the building
ownership certificate not yet issued, the Group typically provides
guarantees to banks in connection with the customers’ mortgage
loans to finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to
the unpaid purchase consideration of the properties. If a defaults on
the payment of mortgage of properties during the term of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount of the loan and any accrued interest thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the customer’s
deposit and sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the
Group to the bank on the purchasers’ behalf. Unless the selling price
would drop by more than the buyer's deposits received, the Group
may not be in a loss position for such financial guarantee contracts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk under such financial guarantee contracts is insignificant.

The credit risks of other receivables and deposits paid for acquisitions
are managed through internal control. The credit quality of each
counterparty is investigated before credit granted. The Group also
actively monitors the outstanding amounts owed by each debtor
and identifies any credit risks in a timely manner in order to reduce
the risk of a credit related loss. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of these receivables at each of the reporting period end.

Impairment assessment

The Group formulates the credit losses of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash and bank deposits, trade and other receivables, and
financial guarantees contracts using the expected credit loss (ECL)
models according to HKFRS 9 requirements.

3
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires lifetime expected credit
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach in measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables.

For financial assets whose impairment losses are measured using
three-stages general approach ECL assessment except for trade
receivables, the Group assesses whether their credit risk has
increased significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a
three-stage impairment model to calculate their impairment allowance
and recognise their ECL, as follows:

—  Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly since
its initial recognition, the financial asset is included in stage 1.

—  Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased significantly since its
initial recognition but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired,
the financial instrument is included in stage 2. The description
of how the Group determines when a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred is disclosed in the following section of
‘judgement of significant increase in credit risk”.

—  Stage 3: If the financial instruments are credit-impaired, the
financial instrument is included in stage 3. The definition of
credit-impaired financial assets is disclosed in the following
section of “the definition of credit-impaired assets”.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)

The Group considers the credit risk characteristics of different
financial instruments when determining if there is significant increase
in credit risk. For financial instruments with or without significant
increase in credit risk, 12-month or lifetime expected credit losses
are provided respectively.

The expected credit loss is the result of discounting the product of
exposure at default, probabilities of default (“PD") and loss given
default (‘LGD"). According to whether the credit risk has increased
significantly or whether the assets have been impaired, the Group
measures the loss allowance with the expected credit losses of
12-month or the lifetime due to the credit risk characteristics of
different assets.

Judgement of significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”)

Under HKFRS 9, when considering the impairment stages for financial
assets, the Group evaluates the credit risk at initial recognition and
also whether there is any significant increase in credit risk for each
reporting period. The Group considers various reasonable supporting
information to judge if there is significant increase in credit risk when
determining the ECL staging for financial assets. Major factors being
considered include solvency and operational capabilities. The Group
could base on individual financial instruments or portfolios of financial
instruments with similar credit risk characteristics to determine ECL
staging by comparing the credit risks of the financial instruments at
the reporting date with those at initial recognition.

The Group set quantitative and qualitative criteria to judge whether
the credit risk has SICR after initial recognition. The judgement
criteria mainly include the PD changes of the debtors, changes of
credit risk categories and other indicators of SICR, etc.
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Financial risk management (continued) 3 WEmEE (5)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEEEAEZE (&)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) b) EEER (&)

The definition of credit-impaired assets EEREEENTE

Under HKFRS 9, in order to determine whether credit impairment
occurs, the defined standards adopted by the Group are consistent
with the internal credit risk management objectives for relevant
financial assets, while considering quantitative and qualitative
indicators. When the Group assesses whether the debtor has credit
impairment, the following factors are mainly considered:

° The debt has overdue for more than 90 days after the contract
payment date.

e The lender gives the debtor concessions for economic or
contractual reasons due to the debtor’s financial difficulties,
where such concessions are normally reluctant to be made by
the lender.

e The debtor has significant financial difficulties.

e The debtor is likely to go bankrupt or needs other financial
restructuring.

The credit impairment of financial assets may be caused by the joint
effects of multiple events, and may not be caused by separately
identifiable events.

Forward-looking information

The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the debtors to settle the receivables.

The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data,
expert forecasts and statistical analysis to determine the relationship
between economic indicators with PD and LGD. The Group evaluates
and forecasts these economic indicators at least annually, provides
the best estimates for the future, and regularly evaluates the results.

REFAVMBHRELNER - RETE
SHREERE  FARENZEEURE
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Similar to other economic forecasts, the estimates of economic HEEMLER RN - CEREMNMETA
indicators have high inherent uncertainties, actual results may ERENEETETENE  AHERERY
have significant difference with estimates. The Group considered BREMFFAEEAZE - ARERANULE

the estimates above represented the optimal estimation of possible
outcomes.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

3 MEEkEE ()
3.1 MEEBEZE (5)

Credit risk (continued) ) EEER (&)
Credit risk exposure of financial assets FREEMERRREE D
Without considering the impact of collateral and other credit EAZEHAMRMEMERERNTEN
enhancement, for on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposures BRAT AREEABRANEE &K
are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the consolidated RO EMBHREANREFERE
financial statements. Concentration of credit risk reflects the e GREARETRM T AEELENR
sensitivity of the Group's operating results to a particular customer, HETRP - TERHMBMENGURE -
industry or geographic location.
()  Other receivables () EtmEYGIAE
The Group’s other receivables mainly include amounts due from AEBEMBENFEEERERKE
third parties, related parties and non-controlling interests. To =7 - @A RIEERERTUR
measure the expected credit losses of other receivables, other AitEEMEINFIE 2 BHERIE
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk K HMBEWHEEREXEZE
characteristics and the days past due. ARSI R e BRECE T -
For other receivables, management makes periodic collective TEMEKFIENS @ ERERE
assessments as well as individual assessment on the BEr@#ERHRBELER - THY
recoverability of outstanding balances based on historical REBEHRO TG E M ETRET
settlement records and past experience. KA R o
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of other FRHEMERFIBENEERERNE
receivables during the year is as follows: T :
Other
2023 receivables
2023%F HitE WA
HK$’000
TR
Balance at 1 January 2023 R2023%F1 A1 HE & 325,194
Impairment losses for the year FRRESRE 8,861
Exchange differences bE 58 (4,704)
Balance at 31 December 2023 12023F12 A31 BR&E# 329,351
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMEEEE (8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERKEHEZ (4)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) ) EEERE (&)
() Other receivables (continued) () EmrEEE (&)

Balance at 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1 BRI & 292,258
Impairment losses for the year FRREEE 21,139
Exchange differences b 5 =% 11,797
Balance at 31 December 2022 2022412 A31 K484 325,194
Trade receivables (i) FEUEBRFR
The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for AEEREE B BREEREIR
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits AT RABEHANGTRERER
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for trade BREE - ZEAFEEERRER
receivables. RAREFERERERES -
The following table provides information about the Group’s TR AEERBHEERRRE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: W TERERBANER

Less than one year past due BEHLR—F 2% 2,130,418 41,427
One to two years past due BE—FERE 14% 144,633 20,147
Two to three years past due BHMEE=F 60% 22,246 13,383
Over three years past due BH=FNE 70% 136,400 95,489

2,433,697 170,446
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)
(i) Trade receivables (continued)

3 M#HEREEE (5)
3.1 HMEEEAE (5)
ERER (&)
(i) FEMERAR ()

)

Less than one year past due BEHLOR—F 1% 2,100,863 24,799
One to two years past due BH—FEWF 31% 79,179 24,771
Two to three years past due BHWNFER=F 60% 22,299 13,401
Over three years past due BEH=F 72% 146,356 105,656

2,348,697 168,627

Expected loss rates are estimated using a provision matrix,
taking into account the past due status of the customers. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases. The expected loss rates are adjusted periodically to
reflect changes in current economic conditions and the Group's
view of forecast economic conditions over the expected lives of
the trade receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

BHRBEREXDERBRBREEM -
YERBETFPHOBBMNR o ARA
SENELERBRRAERIARRH
TREFENBABEAREREE
2 AnERBBRRNBRERE
TeE—FPRIFEENTRAERP
B BHBRXXEEHAR - UR
BAEERR MBI A RS REY
FEUR SR TSR R RO TR R B AOR &9
Bif o

ENEEENEREEREE 28
-

Balance at 1 January w1 A1 B 168,627 166,679
Impairment losses recognised during FNRERR

the year VERIER=ES 6,953 55,999
Exchange differences PE W =%A (5,134) (54,051)
Balance at 31 December H12 A31 BH & 170,446 168,627
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

(i) Cash and bank balances
The credit risks on cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash
and bank deposits are limited because the counterparties are
banks/financial institutions with acceptable credit ratings and
have no default records in the past.

Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current
liabilities that fall due. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of short
and long term bank loans and other borrowings. Through maintaining
a reasonable proportion in its asset and liability structure, the Group
is able to meet its ongoing financial needs.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

3.1

(c)

H ¢ T B B ()

WMERKEEE (5)
) =EER (&)
(i) HeRRTER
BERRZEFHREBAEZEET

ﬁﬂﬂ&ﬁé%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ/@@
wiE - JORE KRR EEY XR
HERERBTEROEERRER o

///L@/&Ln
EAREEARGEEHEENARY B ERA
EEXRBERR  AEBETERERRE
HRERPRTERREMEE - #K5E¢
REHEEREM 2 TE - BERHEE
BEABRBERELS - ARETRR
#ﬁmﬁﬁx°

TRETRBREPIRASENTHEE L
BTANEHAE - DREAHKRIRE
e (BRERGONEFEZAEN
o SMMATEFE - AREARESRR
ZERMAEGHE) REXAEEER L&
EHBmEDL -
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 MAEEBEE (8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEmEEEZE (8)
() Liquidity risk (continued) © TEMtEE (&)

Interest-bearing bank and other FTERTREMES
borrowings 14,923,046 10,587,032 9,461,379 4,667,051 39,638,508 39,039,102
Lease liabilities HEaRE 110,436 69,773 73,143 126,996 380,348 374,918
Trade payables SR 6,047,954 - - - 6,047,954 6,047,954
Other payables EfuERE 7,033,767 - - - 7,033767 7,033,767
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERZNBAR
LEF 2,097,254 97,660 - - 2194914 2,134,324
Loans from a joint venture RA-HEEAH
LER 227,285 - - - 227,285 224,479
Loans from an other related REAMHEGAT
company ZER 171,734 - - - T734 171,533
Loans from non-controlling RAFERER 7 EX
interests 832,145 170,244 580,686 2,192,564 3,775,639 3,209,714
Due to the immediate holding ERERERARNE
company 3,243,930 734,963 - - 3,978,893 3,895,141
Dug to the ultimate holding ERREERARE
company 18,604,080 - - - 18,604,080 17,653,750
Total k] 53,291,631 11,659,672 10,115,208 6,986,611 82,053,122 79,784,682
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMEEEE (8)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

()

Liquidity risk (continuea)

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Lease liabilities
Trade payables
QOther payables
Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Loans from a joint venture

Loans from an other related
company

Loans from non-controlling interests

Due to the immediate holding

3.1 HMEmEEHEZ (8)
© EEtEE (&)

FERIRAMEE

13,045,562 9,496,493 9858725 10,584,349 42,985,129 40,222,209
HERE 66,050 56,902 47,060 33,117 203,129 190,790
e 6,335,130 - - - 633,130 6335130
EftERTE 8,781,853 - - - 8,781,853 8781853

RARZHEAR
LER 1,668,765 188,059 = - 1,856,824 1803046
RA-HE4AH

LEF 231,870 = =
REAMERAF
ZER

231,870 228,904

175,320 = = = 175,320 175,189
REFAREZZER 1,418,879 475,740 475740 7,815,927 10,186,286 8,085,253
ERERERAANE

company 3,212,130 - - - 3212130 3,154,449
Due to the ultimate holding [ERRAERARNE
company 18,629,840 - - - 18,629,840 18,312,783
Total a5 53,565,399 10,217,194 10,381,525 18,433,393 92,597,511 87,289,606
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BEAREH
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ANEBEEENBEAERRNEFRELE LT
ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for shareholders B AAKREIREDSRAEMFIZEE RS
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital M TREBSZEEAGEHRUREESHAK -
structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to optimise the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount BELEREE  KREFUfeHEIREKE
of dividends paid to shareholders, repurchase of shares, issue new shares YTARKRESTE - LERD « HTHBIHE

or sell assets.

BE -
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 WEEEEE (4)
3.2 C(Capital management (continued) 3.2 BEAEH (5)
Consistent with other companies in the market, the Group monitors its AEEEREWNEBEXEREER - BME
capital by receiving its gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt J:Eﬁﬂ"ﬁ—ﬁl BEXRTIRERSFER AR
divided by equity attributable to owners of the company. Net debt is DRABERREGERE - FEHERERR
calculated as total borrowings (including bank and other borrowings as H(REGEVBRRRAMRET REAME
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and g) ﬁ%ﬁ%&iﬁéﬁ - XRHIRE RRT
cash equivalents, restricted cash and bank deposits. FHGE
The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows: N2023F [ 2022F12 A31BENEEXRMT ¢
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
Total borrowings (note 31) feE@E (H3E31) 39,039,102 40,222,209
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) w o RekReEEY (27) (11,053,858) (11,668,267)
Restricted cash and bank deposits (note 27) XRHHEE RRTFR (FE27) (3,389,371) (1,693,335)
Net debt E%FE 24,595,873 26,860,607
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARRIERRRE G ER 42,337,606 44,631,841
Gearing ratio BEX 58% 60%
The directors of the Company consider the Group's gearing ratio is within a ARREZRAFER A BREEREREE
healthy range. A e
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 ARfEfHE

The table below analyses financial instruments carried or presented at fair
value, by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The different levels are defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities. The quoted prices already incorporates the market's
assumptions with respect to changes in economic climate such
as rising interest rates and inflation, as well as changes due to
Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) risks (level 1)

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

o Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs). This is the case for
unlisted equity securities and for instruments where ESG risk gives
rise to a significant unobservable adjustment (level 3)

TREFGEARERRBETEZBAERSRD
TRAAEIIEXZIZERTE - TRER
REMT

e RZEEFABZERTHERE (ﬂii“
B) - IRERCHATHHEEREE
b (= EARBER) RERSE - 4
27512 ([ESG)) R FrEam et mER
(B—H)

o RE-MMEHEREN  BEXABZA
BRBAE  ARER (AMHIMER) %
& (REER) (F=4)

o BFLTREEFRESGRREEHER
TABEABRNTIAMNE - HEAERER
ZBANEIFFERABEMSHE (AT
ABREAE) (F=R)
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3 MHRBRAEHE (8)
3.3 Anfifhzt (8)

FVTPL

— Listed equity investments in Hong Kong

— Listed equity investments in
Mainland China

— Unlisted equity investments in Mainland China

FVOCI

— Unlisted equity investments in
Mainland China

ERBERANETE

—REBZ LTRERE 906 - - 906

— RRBEREZ
TR E 32,050 - - 32,050

— R REZ
ELEmRELE - - 99,315 99,315

BREMEAREEDN
R

— R BEREZ
JEEMRERE - - 2,368 2,368

32,956 - 101,683 134,639

FVTPL

— Listed equity investments in Hong Kong

— Listed equity investments in
Mainland China

— Unlisted equity investments in
Mainland China

FVOCI

— Unlisted equity investments in
Mainland China

BRBRRANEME

— REBZ EMIRERE 1,594 = = 1,594
— AP E KR

Z EmRERE 26,851 = - 26,851
— RPEREZ

FELETEELE - - 80,604 80,604

BREMPERSRAR
(ERE
— R AREZ
FEEMRIERE - = 2,402 2,402

28,445 = 83,006 111,451
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 MAEEBEE (8)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AnffhE ()
There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring fair value BE2023F R2022F12A31 B LEE - &5
measurements during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. HAREHEE—  ZR=H2ATEERE -
(@) Financial instruments in level 3 @ FE=RzHIA
The following table presents the changes in the level 3 financial TREJNEE2023F %2022F12 4317
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022: LHFEEZE=HemMTAE

At 1 January W1 A1H 83,006 465,365
Fair value changes DREEE (79,956) (355,845)
Additions Zm 99,315 -
Exchange differences PE N Z%R (682) (26,514)
At 31 December W12 A31H 101,683 83,006
There is no realised gain or loss recognised in profit or loss in the REBTENRERARAEBMMEE=R
current year (2022: nil) attributable to the level 3 financial assets held SREERMGZRERERZDEBH I
by the Group at the end of the reporting period. S E51E (20224 : &) o
There were also no changes made to any of the valuation techniques EZE2023F128318 « ERIFMERRG

applied as of 31 December 2023. EFENREFEFAES o
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are evaluated and based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimates for net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

The carrying amounts of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale amounted to HK$70,563 million and HK$19,745
million (2022: HK$71,020 million and HK$11,584 million) respectively as
at 31 December 2023, which in total accounted for approximately 52%
(2022: 51%) of the Group's total assets. The Group assesses the carrying
amounts of properties under development and completed properties held
for sale according to their net realisable values based on the realisability
of these properties. Net realisable value for properties under development
is determined by reference to management’s estimates of the selling price
based on prevailing market conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses based on certain percentage of estimated selling price and
the anticipated costs to completion. Net realisable value for completed
properties held for sale is determined by reference to management'’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing market conditions,
less applicable variable selling expenses. Based on management’s best
estimates, write-downs of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale to net realisable value amounted to HK$403 million
(2022: HK$367 million).

WA S 7t At M B

FHEER R A MR R A0 fh 5t kA& T
NBELRIEMRE (BREERER THRE
REENAREMANER) KKK - FREHAK
FAEH B RBR - RETE - AENSEHE
AL EERNERERAR o T @A E
HTEMREFENEENRERAEFEATE
BT ARR

B IR R 2 O A R I AT B
i

M2023F12A318 - BERPMERBEREZ
BEKMENKAEN A AT0,563EBEE TR
19,745 B BB (20224 : 71,020E 8B TR
11,584BE8#TT) * AR AEEBEEL52%
(2022%F : 51%) - AEERBEEEFMER
RBEGEZEERMENTERFE (ERZE
WENTEBRE D) FEEERE - ERIDE
M ERFENSEERBIIMAAERERT
MERE  MABERANTEHERS (BERGTE
BH—TEALE) RBHTIRAERE ° £
EFEZEERMENTERFEILEENE
THAREEEGANER  MRERNITE
HERYET - REEBEEBNREMT BB
HMERBESEZEERNEMRETERZF
ENLBEAL03BEET (20226F : 367EES
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(d)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined at
each reporting date by independent external valuers based on a market
value assessment. Fair values of investment properties are derived using
the income capitalisation method approach. The valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that require significant judgement, including
prevailing market rents, capitalisation rates and vacancy rates.

Significant judgement and assumptions are required in assessing the
fair value of the investment properties. Details of the judgement and
assumptions used in the valuation of the investment properties are
disclosed in note 16.

Current and deferred income tax

Significant judgements are required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers to be probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

Land appreciation taxes

PRC land appreciation tax (‘LAT") is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including land cost, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property development business
in Mainland China are subject to land appreciation taxes, which have been
included in the income tax expenses. However, the implementation of these
taxes varies amongst various PRC cities and the Group has not finalised
its land appreciation tax returns with various tax authorities for certain
projects. Accordingly, judgement is required in determining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes payable. The Group recognises
these liabilities based on management’s best estimates. Where the final
tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax expenses and provisions of land
appreciation taxes in the period in which such determination is made.

A St At oMU (A1)
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BRENEO DA ERBLINPEERMREDE
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Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by business units, which are organised
based on their products and services. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following five
reportable segments:

(@) the property development segment engages in the development of
properties;

(b)  the property investment segment invests in commercial properties for
rental;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management of
both properties developed by the Group and external parties;

(d) the manufacture segment engages in the manufacture and sale of
industrial products; and

(e) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the hotel operations, sale
of aluminum alloy products and agricultural products, provision of
construction services and other businesses.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets such as deferred tax assets,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a Group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities such as interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, an amount due to the ultimate holding
company, tax payable, an amount due to the immediate holding company,
deferred tax liabilities and other head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a Group basis.

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before taxation from continuing
operations. The adjusted profit before taxation is measured consistently
with the Group's profit before taxation except that other income and
other gains, finance costs, net fair value gain or loss on financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss as well as head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

SEER
AEBREGENTEEYR  MEKEMKRE
EREREES - RERNAEERSTHER

ABRFREEH (RIERRD B RRBE )
—B2hA  AEEEHATREZERIE ¢

(@ VEREHIBUFHRET

b) MEERENBEREAMEAFEET :

€ YEEEIENZTEERLEERIEA
TREZET

() SEENBUAFRENEEIXER: K
@ [EMISBRIBERFBEERE  HER

AEERMBEM - REBERB KAWL
E3

RO BRAFERSERERSEM
BRETHERABRTHIREERK
Bihz¥6E - BERGME :

AR
&N

REDER

-H:H— HH

m

ERETHBEE - XRHRE  Re kB
FEY  HAemEESAOEKREERE WA
MEELARBENREEEEEE - MO E
BEVTEBREALEE -

ERFRBTRAMES Fﬁﬁm?
PR - BAHR - RNERERARNEA - F

ERBEEEARIEEBEREMARERERA
BENREREEEE  MHoHEaBEYTe ﬁ
L/U:E\fﬁ °

PERBADRAZEDBEMNETAE - 72
BORENNSELEEBOLBERBAE
Mo ERBRBAGNIRERKEZ RN

AEN —B TG E - EEARAREAH
5 MERK  BRESRAREAEZER

BEARBREXEEFE -
RAAXE N BRELER

AR @R ER R

r

RERAT 143

&



§ 144  Shenzhen Investment Limited FY|ZRR AR A A)
)

Annual Report 43k 2023
&

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Ai A B R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (/%58 #5859) » FiE &1 ETTIIT)

5 Segment information (continued) 5 AEER (8)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to the B E2023FE R2022F 12 A1 B L EERET
Group’s most senior executive management for the purpose of resource AEESETHEEABURSREER LT ES
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the year ended 31 BRANAEETERDEEHMINTE ©

December 2023 and 2022 is set out in the following table.

Revenue from contracts with customers £ZF 2z BHAREE

M

Recognised at a point of time RE-EHRSER 9,585,487 - 10,965 470971 1,076,364 11,143,787

Recognised over time E-BREERNER - - 3,001,764 - 939211 3,940,975
Revenue from other sources Hip R R Es

Rental income AEWA - 1,463,868 - - - 1,463,868
Total segment revenue PRlhEeE 9,585,487 1,463,868 3,012,729 470,971 2,015,575 16,548,630
Inter-segment revenue P EENE - (43,684)  (219,150) - (453,664)  (716,498)
Revenue from external customers ~ RERMPEFHKE 9585487 1,420,184 2,793,579 470971 1,561,911 15,832,132
Segment results before increase in fair & ME R A EELNE

value of investment properties INEEE 2,089,950 650,683 211,811 23,767 (196,600) 2,779,611
Gains result from changes in fair RENENRAEEDR

value of and transfer to investment ~ ERZRENEEL

properties pdlj6: - 554,651 - - - 554,651
Segment results after increase in ~ RENEALBENE

fair value of investment properties 2P E¥& 2,089,950 1,205,334 211,811 23,767 (196,600) 3,334,262
Share of results of joint ventures and ~ EERERAAR

associates BENAEENE (318,925)  (196,562) 11,855 - (179,066)  (682,698)
Other income HipglA 408,173
Other losses HivEsE (3,916)
Fair value loss of financial assets BRBERRANLETE

measured at fair value through LEBEEALE

profit or loss, net EEFE (75,025)
Corporate and other unallocated ARREMRARER

expenses (163,550)
Finance costs — net BERAZE (1,041,334)

Profit before income tax BRAT BB ATRA 1,775,912
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5 ABEM (8)

Segment assets PEEE 103,357,510 41,371,361 1,087,391 368,357 4,551,910 150,736,529
Corporate and other unallocated assets 27 REAM AN BEE 23,676,829
Total assets BEE 174,413,358
Segment liabilities PEEE 72,869,502 7,489,618 1,171,382 96,836 1,131,771 82,759,109
Corporate and other unallocated NAREMAAEAE

liabilities 44,174,038
Total liabilities Baf 126,933,147
Other segment information: HaEEH
Depreciation and amortisation FERBH 176,848 70,749 47,466 3,271 157,202 455,536
Interests in associates RE &R AER 2,683,340 1,075,443 16,468 - 770,348 4,545,599
Interests in joint ventures ReERER 7,734,017 610,916 26,541 - 364,384 8,735,858
Additions to non-current segment FRREETD

assets during the year PREE 70,346 350,028 29,836 8,430 364,103 822,743
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5 Segment information (continued) 5

Revenue from contracts with customers & F 7 BHARES
SN

Recognised at a point of time RE-BHEZHED | 25,654,000 = 19,416 607,236 423,556 26,704,208

Recognised over time E-BEEARD - - 2,831,548 - 1,147,655 3,979,203
Revenue from other sources Hip R R

Rental income REWA - 1,250,912 - - - 1,250,912
Total segment revenue R EE 25,654,000 1,250,912 2,850,964 607,236 1,571,211 31,934,323
Inter-segment revenue plalies - (55,073)  (224,208) - (114,816)  (394,097)
Revenue from external customers RERMIZFMNME 25654000 1195839 2,626,756 607,236 1,456,395 31,540,226
Segment results before decrease in fair  RAWME A A ER DA

value of investment properties LNBEE 7,603,891 496,958 203,904 70920  (186,726) 8,188,947
Losses result from changes in fair REMEAAEEGR

value of and transfer to investment ERERENEELE

properties ER - (351,889) - - - (351,889)
Segment results after decrease in =~ RENEAAERI B2

fair value of investment properties ~ 2E¥%& 7,603,891 145,069 203,904 70,920 (186,726) 7,837,058
Share of results of joint ventures and {6 & = AT REFE AT

associates TEmR 425,514 (29,577) 23,222 - (27,718) 391,441
Other income HipA 438,589
Other gains Hi 75 1,811
Fair value loss of financial assets BRBRELNENE

measured at fair value through LEMEEDAE

profit or loss, net BRFE (355,845)
Corporate and other unallocated REREM

expenses ROMER (190,917)
Finance costs — net BENNTE (755,098)
Profit before income tax BRETEBATER 7,367,039
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Segment information (continued) 5 AEER (8)

Segment assets TEEE 97,504,174 40,189,051 975,102 426,117 3,694,078 142,788,522
Corporate and other unallocated assets A RIREMANBEE 20,679,067
Total assets BEE 163,467,589
Segment liabilities APEEE 63,519,440 5,592,412 1,084,712 128,417 583,446 70,908,427
Corporate and other unallocated NAREM
liabilities FAEEE 43,002,189
Total liabilities BafE 113,910,616
Other segment information: HaEEH
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 167,375 65,165 49,625 7525 152,647 442,337
Interests in associates RE SN AR 3,285,098 1,329,451 3,906 - 992140 5,610,595
Interests in joint ventures REERTER 8,569,576 139,122 33,508 - 94,036 8,836,242
Additions to non-current segment FERREERD
assets during the year PEEE 61,102 311,168 429,308 = 320,049 1,121,627
As the Group generates substantially all of its revenues from customers ARAEERB AL HKBEARCRPBRAREY
domiciled in the Mainland China and majority of its non-current assets are 2E - BABHIERBEEHUNTREARE -

located in Mainland China, no geographical information is presented. MU ASREER o
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Revenue 6
Revenue information (a)
Revenue, represents sale of completed properties, commercial and
industrial goods, rental income, property management fee income and
others.

Revenue from contracts with customers by major products and service lines
is as follows:

i
W B R

KEEEERNE  BERIXERIEE
B HEWA - DEEEZRBAREMKA -

BEIRERMRBEE D 2 RRPZRANGRE
ERRADT

Revenue from contracts with customers HEFZHENEGREENKA

Sales of properties HEWE 9,585,487 25,654,000

Property management service income MEEERBIA 2,793,579 2,626,756

Sales of industrial goods METHED 470,971 607,236

Others Hoh 1,561,911 1,456,395
14,411,948 30,344,387

Revenue from other sources Ht R =

Rental income He WA 1,420,184 1,195,839
15,832,132 31,540,226

No single customer contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

HZE2023F K2022F12 A31 BILEE » HiE
B-RPERMEAEEAME10%A £ o
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Revenue (continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale of
goods, the provision of services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred
to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method.

The Group applies advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or
less.

(i) Sales of properties
Revenue from sales of properties is recognised upon the point in time
when the customers has the ability to direct the use of the property
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included in the statement of financial
position under contract liabilities.

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products are a partial fulfilment of a
contract covering other goods and/or services, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.
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6  Revenue (continued)
(b) Accounting policies of revenue recognition (continued)

(1)

(W)

(V)

Construction income

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as a
construction contract when the contract relates to work on real
estate assets under the control of the customer and therefore the
Group’s construction activities create or enhance an asset under the
customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be reasonably
measured, revenue from the contract is recognised progressively over
time using the cost-to-cost method, i.e. based on the proportion of
the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses for early
completion or suffering contractual penalties for late completion are
taken into account in making these estimates, such that revenue
is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably measured,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are expected to be recovered.

Rental income from leases

Rental income receivable under leases is recognised in profit or loss
in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Property management service income

The Group provides property management services and bills the
property owners a fixed lump sum amount for services provided on a
monthly basis. Under this arrangement, the Group acts as a principal
and is primary responsible for providing the property management
services to the property owners. The Group recognises the fee
received or receivable from property owners as its revenue when the
Group has a right to invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value of performance completed, and all related property management
costs as its cost of services.

6
(b)

Wezs (4)
Wt WERR 2 Rt BOR (4)
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Expenses by nature
Expenses included in cost of sales and services, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses and other expenses were analysed as
follows:
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7 BMESBAER

SHANERBEASL - BERSWER - TH
EAREBLERANERS AT -

Cost of properties and inventories sold BEEMERTFERAE 6,449,564 16,734,967
Cost of services provided BREREAAE 4,271,876 4,112,689
Employee benefit expenses (note 10(a)) BEBMFEX (ME10() 1,163,545 1,519,594
Other taxes and levies HibFi 4 KA 227,142 155,678
Advertising and promotion costs EEREBHRERX 161,283 131,734
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ - BERZENE 142,590 127,378
Amortisation of intangible assets EF B EHE 3,762 3,035
Auditors’ remuneration ZERTE &
— Audit services — RERS 4,442 4,655
— Non-audit services — RS 1,978 2,110
Others Hit 763,192 673,218
Total cost of sales and services, selling and HERRBHRA - HERDHER -

distribution expenses, administrative expenses THERNREMERARE

and other expenses 13,189,374 23,465,058

Other income 8  HAtg A

Interest income FIEHA 253,863 161,476

Relocation compensation income FEBRHERA - 165,619

Government grant BT 58D 39,134 46,055
Dividend income from financial assets at FVIPL ~ #BESEANEFEZSREE

BEWA 2,168 2,090

Others Hth 113,008 63,349

408,173 438,589
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9  Other (losses)/gains 9 HAb (B#R) /FE

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and ~ HEM¥E - FiEREED
equipment % (B#R) /Fi5 (3,916) 1,811

10 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 10 EE®RAMEXUREREZEM RRES
directors

(a) Employee benefit expenses (a) 1B EFEA B

Wages and salaries IEkE® 890,466 1,240,576
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BREKAN — TS 272,850 278,342
Share options granted to directors and employee R FEZ R IEE v Mk HE 229 676

Total employee benefit expenses EERAFEX 2% 1,163,545 1,519,594
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10 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 10 f{EBEAM P DI REE 2 A MR (5)
directors (continued)

(b) Directors’ remuneration (b) EHHHNE
The remuneration of each director and chief executive officer of the ARRSEZRITRBHE 2 EMEFIMT -
Company is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2023: HE2023F12A31BILEE ¢

Executive directors HTEE
Lu Hua mE - 3,300 - 905 - 4,205
Wang Yuwen TEX - 3,135 - 592 - 3,727
Cal Xun &3 - 917 - 543 - 1,460
Xu Enli B - 917 - 538 - 1,455
Shi Xiaomei FEIE 330 - - - - 330
330 8,269 - 2,578 - 1,177
Independent B
non-executive directors FHITES
Li Wai Keung EXEE 380 - - - - 380
Wong Yau Kar, David ERE 380 - - - - 380
Gong Peng = 330 - - - - 330
1,090 - - - - 1,090
1,420 8,269 - 2,578 - 12,267
Salary paid to a director of the Company is generally an emolument paid ENARREESE SR AR KESEANT K
or payable in respect of that person's other services in connection with the HB A B S 757 B A E b PR A 1T <2 o ko fE A~

management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries. HEs -
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10 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 10 f{EB#EAM PP REE 2 A LR (5)
directors (continued)

(b) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (b) EHEHME ()
For the year ended 31 December 2022; HE2022F12 A31HILFE -

Executive directors HITEE

Lu Hua BE - 3,300 1,417 756 - 5,473

Wang Yuwen (ii) F 2 i) - 261 54 1 = 316

Huang Wei (i) =1&(i) = = 715 165 - 880

Cai Xun =4 - 687 1,472 378 - 2,537

Xu Enli (i) HRBR(i) - 1,030 2,301 623 = 3,954

Shi Xiaomei P 330 = = = = 330

330 5,278 5,959 1,923 - 13,490

Non-executive directors FHTES

Dong Fang (i) (i) Ew0100) - - 931 212 - 1,143

Independent B

non-executive directors FHTES

Li Wai Keung FEH 380 - - - - 380

Wu Wai Chung, Michael (iii) KRR 330 - - - - 330

Wong Yau Kar, David ERE 380 = = = = 380

Gong Peng (i) =18 (i) = = = = = =
1,090 - - - = 1,090

1,420 5,278 6,890 2,135 = 15,723
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10 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 10 BB AR ESE 2w LR ()
directors (continued)

(b) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (b) FHFEME () ‘

() On 30 March 2022, Huang Wei resigned as an executive director and president of () 2022438308 @ REBTARGNRT
the Company. On the same day, Re-designation of Dong Fang from an executive BEEMEER - RB  EARARERNTESR
director of the Company to a non-executive director of the Company. FHEBRRARIERITES -

(i) On 22 December 2022, Wang Yuwen appointed as an executive director and (i) PR2022F128228 - TEXNEZEAAR
president of the Company. On the same day, Xu Enli appointed as an executive FIFITESMEE - RB - REFNERETH
director. Dong Fang resigned as a non-executive director. In addition, Dong Fang HITES - EHFHEERTES - o E
voluntarily waives all compensation of 2022, including discretionary bonuses and HERNE2022FMEME - BIEBMIBE
retirement scheme contributions. ARRRS B o

(i)~ On 31 December 2022, Wu Wai Chung, Michael retired as an independent non- @iy H20226 128318 @ RIEBRETIBELIES
executive director. On the same day, Gong Peng was appointed as a independent TEZ-RAB SHEEZTEBYIERTE
non-executive director. Fo

Salary paid to a director of the Company is generally an emolument paid ENARAEZFH BT ARKHEEEANR K

or payable in respect of that person’s other services in connection with the E B B H 7575 B RO E A AR A% 0 S5 S RE A

management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries. RS o
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10 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 10 18 B AP L& E 2 mf K (4)
directors (continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees (c) HAEFAFREE
The five highest paid employees during the year included four directors AEEZh4RaHEEBENAES (2022
(2022: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note F:=RER) ZEEFIMEFBER EX
10(b) above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one BizE10(b) « 8T —% (20224 : WA ) IEARD
(2022: two) non-director highest paid employees of the Company are as REEVRAFEERAEEZMEFHBNT ¢
follows:

Basic salaries, housing allowances, share options, &EA#H4 - BEZH - BEUE -

other allowances and benefits in kind Hb#a REWHS 3,333 6,487
Contribution to pension scheme RIREFHEIER 12 716
Discretionary bonuses By BTEAL - 2,132

3,345 9,335
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration REEHN  HNEeBUTHEZZaHESEE
fell within the following bands is as follows: mE :
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 2,000,001 %75 £ 4,000,000/ T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 4,000,001/ 7L %£6,000,0005E 7T - 1
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11 Finance costs — net 11 MHEATH
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAL
Finance income g 10N
— Interest income from bank deposits — RITEHFIEMA (203,581) (216,591)
Finance costs: B
— Interest expenses of bank borrowings — RITEEZFIERY 1,466,572 1,024,613
— Interest expenses of other borrowings —HpEEZFIERAY 434,738 405,783
— Lease liabilities —HEER 8,438 10,759
— Loans from the ultimate holding company — REGERERAR ZER 548,420 565,184
— Loans from the immediate holding company — REERERARZER 145,531 61,573
— Loans from fellow subsidiaries — RERZKMBRARZEXR 63,866 71,536
— Loans from a joint venture —KE—HABRAIZER 5,596 7,492
— Loans from an other related company —RE—REMBEBARZER 6,187 7,699
— Loans from non-controlling interests — REFEREZZER 451,645 425142
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not ~ WIEEBEFEZ AL ETE Y
at fair value through profit or loss FREBRZHERSAE 3,130,993 2,579,781
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets W ABEREEEAN SR (1,886,078) (1,608,092)
1,244,915 971,689
Finance costs — net gy 9% NE R 1,041,334 755,098
Finance costs have been capitalised on qualifying assets at average rate of HZE2023F12A31HILEE - 6BREBENMERK

3.70% for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 3.85%).

REIR3.70% (20224 : 3.85%) FHLRER(L o



?%" 158  Shenzhen Investment Limited EY 2R AR AR
«’

Annual Report 43k 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&R A W AR M RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (/%58 #5859) » FiE &1 ETTIIT)

12 Income tax expenses 12 PFifdBiBd
(a) Income tax expenses (a) FIfSBiEA %

Current income tax B H
— Mainland China CIT — REAREREMER 1,488,777 2,165,554
— Withholding tax on dividend — R ETENH 105,456 112,208
— LAT in Mainland China — FEARE B ET 683,872 3,778,584
2,278,105 6,056,346

Deferred income tax EEMEH
— Mainland China CIT — REAREREMER (636,887) (824,491)
— Withholding tax on dividend — REFENH 32,598 17,038
— LAT in Mainland China — B AR LIS ET (91,300) (337,198)
(695,589) (1,144,651)

1,582,516 4,911,695
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Income tax expenses (continued) 12
Income tax expenses (continued) (a)
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount

that would arise using the tax rate applicable to profits of the entities of the

Group as follows:

P BB 3 (A1)
P B3 (1)
AEEBRBAEN 2 HEAINERAREEE
AATERMEELAZ BReE  FAWT ¢

2023 2022
2023F 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THT
Profit before income tax B BT 1554 Al A 1,775,912 7,367,039
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated — IZ& 30 i BT et E 7 B R AT &
at the rates applicable to the respective tax ZREHE
jurisdictions 595,568 1,683,799
Profits less losses attributable to joint ventures BERAINEE R TEGE R
and associates 3] 65,988 (111,060
Income not subject to tax BEMTL 2 A (25,286) (31,067)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AEBRZHEBBRHETE 140,779 452,532
Tax effect of prior years' tax losses utilised DRCBEFERBER BT E (4,821) (136,987
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised FEMER 7 T =5 7 kT & 34,495 189,964
Expenses not deductible for tax TENB 2 X 193,310 154,229
Effect of withholding tax on distributable profits of 75 Bl B A FER 8 A Rl Al 9 IR
the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China W BN E 138,054 129,246
LAT TR ER 592,572 3,441,386
LAT deductible for PRC CIT purpose S B> E AT SR A H0R 2 TS E R (148,143) (860,347)
Income tax expense PR X 1,582,516 4,911,695

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31 December
2023 is calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as
the Group has no assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong
for year (2022: nil).

No provision for taxation has been recognised for companies incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), as they are not subject to any tax during
the year (2022; nil).

Under the relevant income tax law, the Mainland China subsidiaries are
subject to corporate income tax (“CIT") at a statutory rate of 25% on their
respective taxable income during the year.

BE2023F12A31BLLFE - BENER
BEREBETAMGTERTEHZ16.5% (2022
F :16.5%) HEE - AR AKEREANT
BREBELIRIUERTES - MU ERE
BHEREHREE (2022F : &)

ERERBREAES ([REBRLES]) MK
VR RRRAEEBRGREFBE - Bt
EREZEMTUARRE (20225 : &) °

REEBRERE - FR - PEAEHRBER
fﬁﬁdc%Eﬁ‘éa%%ﬁﬂ&)\hmﬁﬂﬁ$25%?%%¢%ﬁﬁ
&5 ([REMEHR]) -
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12
(a)

Income tax expenses (continued)

Income tax expenses (continued)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale of properties less
deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use rights, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditures.

Dividend withholding tax

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for Implementation
of the Corporate Income Tax Law, dividends distributed from the profits
generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their foreign
investors shall be subject to a withholding income tax of 10%. A lower 5%
withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate holding companies
of the PRC subsidiaries are qualified as tax residents of Hong Kong
according to the tax treat arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, deferred
income tax liabilities had been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries in the PRC, as
these earnings are expected to be distributed by the PRC subsidiaries and
would be remitted to their overseas holding companies in the foreseeable
future.

Earnings per share

Basic (losses)/earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

ARAlESRREN

(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners of the
Company (HK$'000)

12
(a)

(E1#]) /&@F (FExT)

FirF3 B0 B 52 (7))

PR % (41)

TR ER T IS EE (D12 30% £60% RET
REW - TIIEEE A E D EFTS TR
BEIMERREE GERNARMENER
BT HERZ TMREAY

BB
RECEEMBHREAERARD) - PEAFR
200851 A1 AUREGNMED EKHERINE
EFHNRE - B10%MBEBNABH - WP E
WERAMERERARRETEEETE LR
REFBRHENTABEARBEREN - AIRE
FBEMS% T X o

B 22023F K%2022F12 A3 1 BILHHEE
AR EM B AR EIR AR RRDRARD IR
BAZEFMERAR - RAEECH BB
RAMZERAGIRENRBERARLEMEHE

f& e

B A
SREA (B8)/ BFVRBALDESRE
i R LA PO B 17 3 R A0 T M

=H o
ZAr

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
(261,397) 2,085,418

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year

FRERTEBBINEFHH

8,898,793,115 8,899,105,992

For the financial year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the effect of
conversion of share option scheme (note 30) were anti-dilutive and the
diluted earnings per share for the year is therefore equal to the basic
earnings per share.

BZE2023F K2022F12 A31 B ILHBEE -
ERBEIRETE (HFE30) MFEARES - T
NERSRESERFNEBTREARFEE -
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14 Dividends 14 KB
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THL
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: #ERAFADRZIKE :
Final dividend declared for 2022 — HK12 cents per 2022 & kA HIA% B — FAL1278
share (2022: declared for 2021 — HK8 cents per flli (2022% : 2021 55k RH
share) (note (a)) BB — =ikeBI) (MEa@)
Cash Re 1,067,855 711,903
1,067,855 711,903
Dividend declared in respect of current period: BRAHERIRE
Interim dividend for 2023 — HK2 cents per share 2023 TR ERE — FR2E
(2022: HK3 cents per share) (note (b)) (20224 : HRR3EL)
GEIOY 177,976 266,964
1,245,831 978,867

The Company declared a final dividend of HK12.00 cents per share in respect of
year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$1,067,855,000.
The final dividend has been paid in cash on 5 July 2023.

The Company declared a final dividend of HK8.00 cents per share in respect of year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$711,903,000. The final
dividend has been paid in cash on 6 July 2022.

The Company declared an interim dividend of HK2.00 cents (2022: HK3.00 cents)
per share amounted to HK$177,976,000 (2022: HK$266,964,000), which were
fully paid in cash (2022: HK$266,964,000 were fully paid in cash).

On 27 March 2024, the board of directors recommends a final dividend of HK7.00
cents per share, amounted to HK$622,916,000, for the financial year ended 31
December 2023. The proposed final dividends for the year are subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period. The
amount of the final dividend for 2023 was calculated on the basis of 8,898,793,115
shares in issue as at 27 March 2024.

RAAREIREZE2022412A31 B It&E
BZRPBEFTIK12.0081 - & HH
1,067,855,0007 7T ° AR BARR B B M 20237
A5ALE S f -

ARAREREE2021E12A31BIEFEZ
REARR B & A%8.0078 (L - & #£49711,903,000
BT o REIIREER2022F7 A6 A AR &
St e

RRABEIRP RS FR2.00/810 (2022
& :3.0081L) » 53£177,976,000% 7T
(20224 : 266,964,000/ 7C) * BEBHIAR
& (20224 : 266,964,000 7T 2 FEHUA
REFT) o

R2024F3F27H - EEEHEZ2023F12
A31B L BFEREZERETRT.008(L
4 #£622,916,0008 75 2 KHIR &, - KAEF#E
KR B AE B A AN A R AR 3R A FE B AR R A
FASGERATRFRERRAAEREE
& ° 2023 F 2 R B &5 H iR B 2024
3 A27H 2 B %178,898,793,115 % A% &t
ﬁ °
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15 Property, plant and equipment 15 93 ~ BRE KE

Year ended 31 December 2023 BZ2023512A318
LFE

Opening net book amount HREFE 4,898,914 50,955 12,616 I 1,122,520 6,159,776
Additions AE 303,611 28,812 5,658 134,723 120,152 592,956
Transfer from construction in progress ~ EEBARIR 389,580 - - 32,869 (422,449) -
Transfer from investment properties BEERENE 55,727 - - - - 55,727
Derecognition of right-of-Use assets RIIERERELE (47,358) - - - - (47,358)
Other decreases A (50,805) (9,832) (687) (16,250) (2,474) (80,048)
Depreciation it} (224,956) (14,034) (4435 (176,283) - (419,708)
Exchange differences ELER (68,125) (733) (170) (632) (9,962) (79,622)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 5,256,588 55,168 12,982 49,198 807,787 6,181,723
At 31 December 2023 R2023512A31R

Cost KA 7,443,956 141,618 111,979 586,827 807,787 9,092,167
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (2,187,368) (86,450) (98,997)  (537,629) - (2,910,444)

Net book amount BEFE 5,256,588 55,168 12,982 49,198 807,787 6,181,723
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5475) - FrE £ B ETIR)

15 43 - R Rt (A1)

Year ended 31 December 2022 BZ2022512A31R
LEE

Opening net book amount BOREFE 3,473,667 45,988 16,028 81739 2729787 6,347,209
Additions RE 141,711 18,226 1,795 18,474 679,221 859,427
Transfer from construction in progress ~ EEBEHRIR 2,008,400 1,166 = 40 (2,009,606) =
Derecognition of right-of-use assets ~ RI-EREREAE (16,401) - - - - (16,401)
Other decreases £t (29,189) (497) (456) (1,062) (50,646) (81,850)
Depreciation & (396,700) (11,209) (4,077) (20,738) - 47y
Exchange differences ELEE (282,574) (2,725) (674) (3,682) (226,236) (515,891)
Closing net book amount HRABEFE 4,898,914 50,955 12,616 74,771 1122520 6,159,776
At 31 December 2022 #2022%12F31H

Cost KA 6,861,326 123,371 107,178 436,117 1,122,520 8,650,512
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (1,962,412) (72,416) (94,562) (361,346) - (2,490,736)
Net book amount REFE 4,898,914 50,955 12,616 74,771 1,122,520 6,159,776
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15 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 15 ¥ -~ B Rakfs (8)
Depreciation charge was capitalised or expensed in the following categories NEERNRINGEMBRRERRGABRERIL
in the consolidated statement of financial position or the consolidated AT EERIE A b

statement of profit or loss respectively:

Cost of sales HERA 223,737 247,261
Administrative expenses TR 130,009 117,263
Properties under development BEPYE 53,381 58,079
Selling and marketing costs BHERMIGERER 12,581 10,115
419,708 432,718
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s land and buildings in Mainland N2023FE 128310 » REERT R KER
China with a net book value of HK$1,074,000 (2022:HK$22,844,000) were BZEREFEAT1,074,00087T (20224 -
pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank and other borrowings to secure 22,844,000 ) 2 AT EREFDIEA -
bank borrowings of the Group (note 31(b)). ERARERITEE 2R (MEE31(0) ©
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has not yet obtained the RN2023FE12 8310 - AEENANEGREEE
ownership title certificates in respect of buildings with net book value of /469,869,000 7T (20224 : 2,043,816,000

HK$69,869,000 (2022: HK$2,043,816,000). BIL) ZEFIAREE -
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16 Investment properties 16 HEMHE
Investment properties at fair value: BAREHEZRENS
2023 2022
2023F 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THEL
At 1 January M B1RH 35,126,999 37,327,911
Transfer from property under development EREERERYE 567,648 671,722
Transfer from completed properties held for sale ERARERE L EERDE 473,584 2,079,100
Transfer to completed properties held for sale ERERHERE L EERDE (170,601) (1,563,709)
Transfer to properties under development EREREPYE (126,130) =
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BREVE - BEREE (65,727) -
Recognition of change in fair value upon transfer o~ ER TR ENEEHEAR N EE
investment properties (248,853) 42,023
Addition of investment properties under development REEEHHRENE 462,276 =
Disposal of investment properties HEREYE (2,876,660) =
Increase/(decrease) in fair value of investment REMELREEM,/ CRD)
properties 803,504 (393,912)
Exchange differences e ER (505,533) (3,036,136)
33,450,507 35,126,999
Amounts recognised in profit or loss related to KEMERBERRAZEE
investment properties:
— Rental income —HEWA 1,420,184 1,195,839
Gain/(loss) arising from changes in fair value of and ~ REMXALEZBHREHTRE
transfer to investment properties represent: MEEE WG/ (BX) 5
— Recognition of change in fair value upon transfer to — Mﬁéﬁxﬁ%%éﬁ@ﬁ RAE
investment propertes & 2E) (248,853) 42,023
— Increase/(decrease) in fair value of investment —REMEAAEEM, CRD)
properties 803,504 (393,912)

554,651 (351,889
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16

Investment properties (continued)

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties of the
Group with a net carrying amount of approximately HK$4,200,362,000
as at 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$10,357,339,000) have not yet been
issued by the relevant authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining
the relevant certificates.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's investment properties with
a net carrying value of approximately HK$7,119,481,000 (2022:
HK$14,282,804,000) was pledged to secure bank borrowings granted to
the Group (note 31(b)).

Fair value hierarchy

The Group’s investment properties are located in Mainland China and are
held under medium lease terms. The Group’s investment properties were
revalued at 31 December 2023 based on valuation performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (*JLL”).

The Group's investment properties are all at level 3 valuation. The Group’s
property managers and the general manager of financial management
department have discussed with JLL on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at each reporting date.

16

BREME ()
M2023F12A31BZEHEEFEN
#4,200,362,0008 L (2022 F
10,357,339,000/870) Z NEBE TR EME M
REBBIFIRBEMEREE - ASENENRE
HEEE L FE -

M2023F12A31H  "&EEKEFE
#E7.119,481,0008 T (20224 :
14,282,804,000%870) 2 EMEC T - {E
AASEERRITER ZER (HEE310) -

O A0 M 25 A

AEE 2 BB YEHRIRA A BARE K AR EHRAL
AAFE o AREZIREMENR20235F12 A 31
AREMERTCETERAAEGRAA ([
EBT]) BT EETIRER -

AEECRENEEHRBEAE=AME -1
FREAHETHRER - AREYELE R
BEEMALEeRMERTHRBERR
fhERER -
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16 #EYE (F)

Investment properties (continued)

(20224 : 7% — 8%)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) (a) AR HEH (4)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques and the key inputs to the UTAREMELEZHEREREERAEL
valuation of investment properties: BE :
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range
HERE BRRAHRHARE il
Investment properties -commercial Income capitalisation Vacancy rate 3% — 20%
properties and others method (2022: 2% — 25%)
REME — BEMERAM WABER A EEX 3% — 20%
(2022% : 2% — 25%)
Capitalisation rate 3% — 7%
(2022: 3% —7%)
B 3% — 7%
(2022%F : 3% —7%)
Monthly rental 18 — 425
(RMB/square meter/month) (2022: 15 - 502)
A& \ 18 — 425
(AR®/¥RX/A) (20224 : 15 - 502)
Residual method Vacancy rate 5% — 15%
(2022: 10% — 15%)
R FEX 5% — 15%
(20224 : 10% — 15%)
Capitalisation rate 3% — 6%
(2022: 5% — 6%)
B = 3% — 6%
(20224 : 5% — 6%)
Monthly rental 30 — 200
(RMB/square meter/month)  (2022: 30 — 140)
Afe (AR¥% /FHK,/ 30-200
A) (20224 : 30 — 140)
Estimated developer’s profit 6% — 8%
margins (2022: 7% — 8%)
EEEEEREES 6% — 8%
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16 Investment properties (continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation
techniques

EER %

Investment properties — car parking
space

REME — FEM

Income capitalisation
method

WAB R

Residual method

P

16 &EME ()
(a) AREFHIRH ()

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTABERHAE

Vacancy rate

B3

TEX
Capitalisation rate

LN

Monthly rental

(RMB per car parking spaces

per month)
Alg

(BEFEAEAARKT)

Vacancy rate

E

EEX
Capitalisation rate

BAER

Monthly rental

(RMB/square meter/month)

AlE
(ARE /F1K/R)

Estimated developer's profit

margins

et m A

Range

EiE

5% — 25%

(2022: 3% — 25%)

5% — 25%

(20224 : 3% — 25%)
4%

(2022: 4%)

4%

(20224 : 4%)

295 — 850
(2022: 250 — 850)

295 — 850
(20224 : 250 — 850)
20% — 25%

(2022: 20% — 25%)
20% — 25%

(20224 : 20% — 25%)

3% — 4%
(2022; 3% — 4%)

3% — 4%

(20224F : 3% — 4%)
250 — 300

(2022; 250 — 300)

250 — 300

(20224 : 250 — 300)
6% — 8%

(20222 7% — 8%)

6% — 8%

(20224 : 7% — 8%)
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Investment properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties is determined using
income capitalisation method and residual method.

Income capitalisation method determines fair values by discounting the
projected cash flows associated with the properties using capitalisation
rates. The valuation takes into account the expected market rental and
vacancy rate of the respective properties. The discount rates used have
been adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings and the tenant
credit quality. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
expected market rental, and negatively correlated to the vacancy rate and
the capitalisation rate.

The residual method takes into account the residual value of the gross
development value (“GDV”) after deduction of the outstanding construction
costs and expenses as well as profit element. It involves firstly the
assessment of the aggregate GDV of the proposed development, as if
completed, as at the valuation date. Estimated costs of the proposed
development include construction costs, marketing expense, professional
fee, finance charges and associated costs, plus an allowance for the
developer’s risk and profit. The outstanding development costs are then
deducted from the GDV and the resultant figure is the residual value of the
subject property.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases

The Group leases out its investment properties under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 20 years, with an option to
renew the leases after the date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased annually to reflect market rentals.
Certain leases of the group contain variable lease payment terms that are
based on the revenue of tenants.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
place at the reporting date will be receivable by the Group in future periods
as follows:

16
(a)

&¥Em*E (8)

O RS AR (D)
AEBZRENE AR ERBBAERNMEERF
BETAERE -

BRABRMOEERRRERCETRBB@NEL
RAREREETANE - FRBEEEYE
NEZBATSHEREER - FRARARD
REFTHEXRRMHARBFPEEE RELS
- pnEFEERSNEES AN - HE
TEXREAMEREMA -

KR EZ BARREEL MR M AR EAOREK
K AXURERMBEOFGEE - MHE
BRAERRESEREBNGERDERNA
AHREREEE - RRERBENMGIARARE
BEKA - MBHEXL - BXER - MKE
FRARARRERK A » 55 050 3 75 A0 LB e R B
o MARENRERARBEEREEDH
B WRERONENRIHEE

AT B AR B 2 R BB Ak

AEERBEEHEHBERENE - BH—
RIS RN ZE20F - YERNIHEEE -
REEHEA A GR - BENR—REFE
=R ARBRTHEE - AEEETHOE
FEREP Wk ey A ZHE MK -

AKENRKBRBENEE APRET LA
BB EHEZABBEENFMT

2023 2022
2023%F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAL

Within one year —FR 1,109,081 1,015,247
Over one year but within five years —EZBRER 2,328,831 1,883,750
Over five years hFE 224,056 675,902
3,661,968 3,574,899
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16
(c)

Investment properties (continued)

Accounting policies of Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office buildings, are held for
long-term rental yields and are not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are carried at
fair value.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets. Changes in fair values are
presented in profit or loss as part of other income.

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is treated in
the same way as a revaluation under HKAS 16. Any resulting increase in
the carrying amount of the property is recognised in profit or loss to the
extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss, with any remaining
increase recognised in other comprehensive income and increase directly
to equity in revaluation surplus within equity. Any resulting decrease in the
carrying amount of the property is initially charged in other comprehensive
income against any previously recognised revaluation surplus, with any
remaining decrease charged to profit or loss. For a transfer from completed
properties held for sale or properties under development to investment
properties that will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount shall be
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group shall transfer a property from investment properties to properties
under development when it commences related development with a view to
sale. For a transfer from investment properties that is carried at fair value
to properties under development, related properties under development
shall be recognised at fair value at the date of transfer.

The Group classifies cash outflows to acquire or construct investment
property as investing and rental inflows as operating cash flows.

16 HEWE (H)

(c)

BB Tt HR
RENEIZRERIRAERTE - DARHAE
shEMHE - LHEAKREGER - REME
NIRRT E - BRABR ZMARE T
A (WER) » BREAAETE -

ARENERTHER/EE  YEAREN
BRTREFTEECHE - A HIFH T
MEFNABAAE - WEEZRBGHIEH - K
SESRMEMGBETE  fIPNERERET
SO MER - AREEPHRETAIIEL L
WAZ 810

A AMERMERE RBEREMKAREN
¥ o AZAAREZAMNEABREANEL
MELNEERERET B ERE16RE
ERRNTARE - ZNEELNENREE
BERNBHETRR - HARBZARERSS -
ERRBEERNEM2ARETER > YEE
BARSTNEMRBAR - ZNEELENEIMER
HERD BEREM2EKED B EAERNE
MERBRTHR - MEAFKBERBZET
k- HRARGESELCERMELBRES
NEBEBRAABIRNEEDE - ZAY
FONEREBAERAENTIAZENREARE

e

E-ENERBEELENERARE - A&
ERRENZERERTNE - BRELRE
NERNEENFERERTNE - HHEZEY
FRARBHBHNORLERER o

AEBREEIREREMENRSRENER
REMRSRE  MESRARNDBEREER

DB
FIilE °
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17 Leases 17 ME
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial  (a) WA MERRERZZ L5
position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the following SAVBHRRARERATEHEEM &5 ¢

amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Buildings BF 288,287 164,114
288,287 164,114
Lease liabilities HESE
Current e 105,488 62,613
Non-current FERE 269,430 128,177
374,918 190,790
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the financial year were RV BEERN REEZHFRBREES
HK$303,470,000 (2022: HK$65,746,000). 303,470,000 c (20224 : 65,746,000/

L) °

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or (b) MEABEEEERZEH

loss

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets was HK$99,205,000 (2022: FREEEZHEREA99,205,000% T
HK$100,549,000). Expenses relating to short-term leases and low-value (20224 : 100,549,000 7L)  MEHEER
assets was HK$21,874,000 (2022: HK$23,650,000) and HK$2,034,000 REEEERB 2RISR A21,874,000%8 T
(2022: HK$2,064,000) respectively. (20224 : 23,650,000/7T) %2,034,000% T

(20224 : 2,064,000/87T) °

The total cash outflow for leases during the financial year was REBEER  BHEZHSEHLETE A
HK$69,257,000 (2022: HK$171,401,000). 69,257,000/ 7T (20224 : 171,401,000/

L) °
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18 HEEERE

18 Intangible assets

Year ended 31 December 2023 8220235128318
ILERE

Opening net book amount HREFE 16,991 48,560 20,202 637,217 722,970
Additions RE 5,128 40,668 - 183,944 229,740
Amortisation By (24) (16,771) - (19,033) (35,828)
Exchange differences ERES (726) (2,380) (289) (26,352) (29,747)
Closing net book amount BRREFE 21,369 70,077 19,913 775,776 887,135
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A318

Cost AR 25,374 127,902 381,982 864,751 1,400,009
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2zt RAE (4,005) (57,825) (362,069) (88,975) (512,874)
Net book amount REFE 21,369 70,077 19,913 775,776 887,135
Year ended 31 December 2022 8220225127318

JI:3:5

Opening net book amount R FE 4,451 53,889 22,072 437,700 518,112
Additions NE 13,407 5,333 = 243,107 261,847
Amortisation i (18) (8,099) - (10,131) (18,248)
Exchange differences ERES (849) (2,563) (1,870) (33,459) (38,741)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 16,991 48,560 20,202 637,217 722,970
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A318

Cost KA 20,246 87,234 381,982 680,807 1,170,269
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  E:tE i RAE (3,255) (38,674) (361,780) (43,590) (447,299)
Net book amount REFE 16,991 48,560 20,202 637,217 722,970

19 Investments in joint ventures

Unlisted

A

19 REBAFZEE

8,735,858

8,836,242




19 Investments in joint ventures (continued)
Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures, which is accounted for
using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as

follows:
Nominal value of
Name registered capital
£ aMEREE
Shenzhen Langtong Property RMB100,000,000

Hok

Development Company Limited
(‘Langtong”)

FImPEEHEREERAR AK100,000,0007T
([ l)

Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park US$62,000,000
(Group) Company Limited*

(“Tianan”)

ARG (
(TX%])

Taizhou Shum Yip Investment
Development Limited (“Taizhou
Shum Yip")

EMMAXRERRARDA
(TERMA%])

Shum King Company Limited
("Shum King")

£8) 5B AH 62,000,000% 7T

RMB100,000,000

AK#100,000,0007C

HK$2

ASBERAR ([RS)) 28T

Guangzhou Pik Sum Real Estate RMB69,832,402
Development Company

Limited** (‘Pik Sum’)

BNEHRERERXEBR A
(IE%])

ANE#69,832,4027C
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Place of
registration

A fi e B

PRC

FE

PRC

FE

PRC

PE

Hong Kong

Bk

PRC

PE

Ownership
interest

FiEggs
%

50

50

37.53

37.53

51

51

50

50

14.28

14.28

The 50% ownership interest in Tianan is held by Shum Yip Terra (Holdings)
Company Limited (“Shum Yip Terra”), a 75.05% non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. Therefore, the Group's effective ownership interest and profit sharing ratio is

37.53%.

On 9 February 2018, the Group entered into investment agreements with
Guangzhou Pik Sum Real Estate Development Company Limited (‘Pik Sum’) by
contributing RMB9,972,000 (equivalent to HK$11,381,000) for joint control of Pik
Sum to engage in a property development project in Panyu, Guangzhou. Although
the Group's effective ownership interests in Pik Sum was only 14.28%, all the
decisions about significant operating, financing and investing activities of Pik Sum
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control and as such, Pik Sum

is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.

19 RE#E
[
/‘5\

AZBRE (F)
%“ﬁf MRS REAB 2 ASEZEE
NElFEMT
Profit
Voting sharing  Principal activities
power ratio  and place of operation
REE RASEE FTEXEREEMY
% %
50 50  Property development and
property investment in the
PRC
50 50 RPEESNRFAER
NERE
50 37.53*  Property investment and
development in the PRC
50 3753 RAEREMERERFAR
50 51 Provision of land development
service in the PRC
50 51 RPERETIHEERS
50 50  Property development and
property investment in Hong
Kong
50 50 %g%m%%%%ﬁ&%%&
14.28 14.28  Property development and
property investment in the
PRC
14.28 1428 RAERENEFAERDER
A
* RE50%FTAEEZBE —BAREEFR
75.05% Z IR EWE A 7%%%%9* (@)
RHBERAT (RERALD #F4A - Bt -
REBERMARE#ER &/ﬁnﬂ9$$ (=
37.53% °
* 20184 2H9 E $ FEHEEMNERE

WERZEARAR (BRI VRER
& %éi@;‘fé/\ﬁ%9 972,0007T (A& R
11,381,00078 7T ) £ Fﬁ*%im*%ﬁy“m%
Bz —EYEXFREIEE - BEAKEREBR
zaW%ﬁ%% S1E1514.28% - BETE B E
fe’”iﬁ B RIEEEZREY
ﬁ&%ﬂﬁsz R AEH—BEE -
BREAEEEERAIALR ©
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19 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 19 REBEARZERE ()
(a) The movement of investments in joint ventures is as follows: (a) REERRZREZHNT :

Share of net assets: EEEETE
Opening balances 4 8,836,242 8,887,001
Addition NE 186,244 150,163
Share of results JEfh¥E 381,846 530,151
Share of other comprehensive income e EM2EKE (258) (31,821)
Dividends 35 (590,404) (41,165)
Exchange differences I X ZE (77,812) (658,087)
Closing balances HiR 64 8,735,858 8,836,242
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had an outstanding capital R2023F12A31 8 » AEEBEBH A ZHEK

commitment to Shum King (note 39). 172 BARFESE (FH5E39) ©
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19 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 19 REBEARAZEE (&)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information for  (b) TEFIREESE A v HME GRS
material joint ventures

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in TRITHMBEERBE - NEGERAEREMNE
respect of Langtong adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and MR EREL AR T URARERAUKRE
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: N RHEE :
2023 2022
2023% 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THT
Current assets mEEE 334,033 654,614
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,049,555 1,803,904
Current liabilities MENBE (59,913) (112,046)
Non-current liabilities FREaE (5,505) (9,212)
Net assets BEFE 2,318,170 2,337,260
Included in the above assets and liabilities: SIALAEERERE -
Cash and cash equivalents BehREEEY 176,337 255,009
Revenue Yezs 151,862 133,661
Profit for the year FR A 13,917 65,582
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEN BT 13,917 65,582
Included in the above profit: FIA_EEF]
Depreciation and amortisation IE RE#H (24,494) (28,281)
Interest income ISEON 12,106 19,582
Income tax expense FrEBiMx% (4,596) (21,937)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HEREZAEENREE AT Z
joint venture: 5
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEBRARE L 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEESEEEAREEFE 1,159,085 1,168,630
Goodwill on acquisition recognised by the Group AEERRZWEEE 6,116 6,116

Carrying amount of the investment KEZREE 1,165,201 1,174,746
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19
(b)

Investments in joint ventures (continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information for

material joint ventures (continued)

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect
of Tianan adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled

to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

19 REBARZHE (8)
(b) THRIREEAE AT M EERHE (8)

TRINGHBENRE - DERALHENS
ARRERELBEY HRBEEEAMBERE
MZEREE :

2023 2022
20235 20225
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Current assets MEEE 21,923,714 22,562,652
Non-current assets FRBEE 10,909,894 10,008,819
Current liabilities mEBE (13,841,875) (14,405,130)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (9,281,784) (8,924,296)
Net assets BEFE 9,709,949 9,242,045
Less: non-controlling interests B IR (421,951) (374,189)
Net assets attributable to equity shareholders of the &% A Al R (L EE FE
joint venture 9,287,998 8,867,856
Included in the above assets and liabilities: SIALAEERARE
Cash and cash equivalents ReKREEEY 2,620,281 2,790,146
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other  HEIS AR (TREE S LM
payables and provisions) e R ) (4,625,268) (5,430,307)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ FEAESREE (TEEEF LA
other payables and provisions) i FERT R R B4 ) (9,040,901) 8,742,016
Revenue Wz 6,214,949 4,814,509
Profit for the year FRmA 396,644 457,369
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZEMEETR 396,644 457,369
Included in the above profit: FTAFHEF) -
Depreciation and amortisation & R (23,800) (28,066)
Interest income FSWA 14,757 13,603
Interest expense FERE (163,993) (192,663)
Income tax expense FTS#Ax (125,245) (182,766)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the joint HEARZAEBMREAE AT
venture: R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBFEEZ LG 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEBDIEEENRIBEEFE 4,643,998 4,433,928
Loans to the joint venture BTYARERRIZER 165,920 168,325
Carrying amount of the investment KEZEHE 4,809,918 4,602,253
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19 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 19 REBEARAZEE (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information for  (b) TFEIIREESEAMMEERHE (8)
material joint ventures (continued)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect
of Taizhou Shum Yip adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and

TRITHBERARE - DAERRMNAERE
e HRERELARL HRAEZHBERR

reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:

AZARETE :

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAL
Current assets MENEE 5,038,445 3,957,802
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,989,231 3,263,721
Current liabilities MENBE (5,237,459) (3,568,818)
Non-current liabilities FREaE (937,975) (1,175,456)
Net assets BESE 1,852,242 2,477,249
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FIALIEEREBRE
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 232,930 373,020
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ JEREISREE (FTREEH R
other payables and provisions) Hib AR EE) (937,975) (1,175,456)
Revenue Wiz 1,723,083 1,378,246
Profit for the year F R F| 531,442 450,686
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEN B 531,442 450,686
Included in the above profit: FIA_EEF]
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH (119) (117)
Interest income FEWA 587 =
Interest expense FEMAXZ (69,786) (64,256)
Income tax expense FiEHiA% (177,147 (150,229)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HEREZAEEREEATZ
joint venture: B
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBFEEZ L 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the investment REZREE 944,643 1,263,397
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19 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 19 REBEARZERE ()
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information for  (b) TFEIIREESEAMMEERNE (6)
material joint ventures (continued)

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect TRITHBEERBE - NEBAIREMNE
of Shum King adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and MR ERELARTURARENBHRERALZ
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements: REE :
2023 2022
2023 2022F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET THT
Current assets MBEE 5,588,401 5,103,953
Current liabilities mBAE (167,406) (84,881)
Non-current liabilities FREBERE (5,815,219) (5,089,350)
Net liabilities BEFE (394,224) (70,278)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALMEEREE -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 31,926 29,346
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other  HRE&RAE (TREEI R
payables and provisions) Hib R ks (5,815,219) (5,089,350)
Loss for the year FREE (23,945) (43,083)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEMEEE (23,945) (43,083)
Included in the above loss: FALMETR -
Interest income FEMA 429 79
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HEREZAEEREEATZ
joint venture: i
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEMARE LA 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEBHHAEERAIEEFE (197,112) (35,139)
Loan to the joint venture BTREDNRIZER 1,689,856 1,504,538

Carrying amount of the investment KEZEHE 1,492,744 1,469,399
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19 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 19 REBEARAZEE (&)

(c) Individually immaterial joint ventures (c) MRAERAEAF
In addition to the interests in joint ventures disclosed above, the group also BREXFBEBEREGE AR ZERIN - AEET
has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint ventures that are REREEREARNENTEREEDRES
accounted for using the equity method. T o

Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial BRI EAAEL AT 2 REEE

joint ventures 323,352 326,447
Aggregate amounts of the group’s share of: REESEATEE -
Profit from continuing operations BELEEE 2ER 14,059 20,265
Other comprehensive income H2mhas - -

Total comprehensive income 2HKRGEAE 14,059 20,265
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20 REEAFZEE

20 Investments in associates

Unlisted FLEm 307,798 144,090
Listed in Hong Kong REE LT 5,053,801 6,282,505
Provision for impairment R ER (816,000) (816,000

4,545,599 5,610,595

Particulars of the material associate, which is accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

BRESENR AN RRAEZ T EBELT)
ST

Road King Corporate Bermuda 749,336,566
ordinary shares of

$0.1 each

B NG BRE FREHEO.1TTH)
749,336,566

Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
ordinary shares with a nominal value of $0.10 each are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal location
of Road King's business is PRC.

The Group's shareholdings in the associates comprise equity shares held
by the Company, except for Road King, the shareholdings of which are held
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Market value of stakes in listed associates as at 31 December 2023
is HK$293,351,000 (31 December 2022: HK$822,795,000), which
approximate its fair value.

27.00 Development, operation and
management of toll roads
and property development
and investment in the PRC

27.00 RPEER 2ENEEKE
REARMERERRE

BRODRBREEIMRLZEREELA &
BREBI0TZ EBBATERARSMAER
ARERLD - B2 TREXUHDTE -

REERBE DR ZRERRARNRRA 2 #i
Bt - BREDZIN - ZRRZBEDERAD
AlZ2EMBRARE

M2023F12A31H » FH¥ 2R RNKGH
1A A293,351,0007 7T (2022F12 8318 -
822,795,000/% ) + HEAAERE °
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20 Investments in associates (continued) 20 REEARZEZE ()
Both external and internal sources of information of associates are EHEREEDRERPRETEHRAER -
considered in assessing whether there is any indication that the investment SEEBME RN RABER TR - 81
may be impaired, including but not limited to financial position, business BARAIBRR - EBRARTE - A5E
performance and market capitalisation. The Group carries out impairment HEREFZNEBEETRETE - L2RBA
assessment on those investments with impairment indications, and the NERHEENAEFRAEENESEBETRERN
respective recoverable amounts of investments are determined with A E G5 o

reference to the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

As a result, the Group made an aggregate impairment provision of Al @ ZEEREARRARBBHERRERA
approximately HK$816,000,000 (2022: HK$816,000,000) which is related A2 w2 5E4816,000,000% T
to the Company's interest in Coastal Greenland Limited. The impairment (20224 : 816,000,000/87T)  WEREGTE
provision mainly resulted from revisions of financial/business outlook of RERBEARGE /B S0FAEURA
the associates and changes in the market environment of the underlying BEBOMSRRZCK -
business.
(a) The movement of investments in associates is as follows: (a) REERRZIRELHIT :
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAL
Share of net assets: EEEESE :
Opening balances kIR 5,610,595 6,201,291
Share of results 15 %% (1,064,544) (138,710)
Share of other comprehensive income FEMhE 2 e (159,079) (390,355)
Dividends ] (7,949) (52,223)
Additions NE 169,684 -
Exchange differences fEHER (3,108) (9,408)
Closing balances HiR 45 4,545,599 5,610,595
There were no significant capital commitments relating to the Group’s AEEREBREAREEREFEHERE LA
investments in the associates. o
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20 Investments in associates (continued) 20 RBEARZEE (H)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information for Road  (b) T 35 & S i i 15 R
King
Summarised consolidated statement of financial position HEUBMEEEE

Current assets MENEE 45,567,991 55,594,533
Non-current assets ERBEE 27,578,322 34,407,835
Current liabilities REAE (31,401,987) (33,885,879)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (14,546,662) (23,356,011)
Net assets BESE 27,197,664 32,760,478
Less: non-controlling interests A IR R (11,502,106) (12,514,163)
Net assets attributable to equity shareholders of BERNAREREBLEEFE

the associate 15,695,558 20,246,315
Revenue Yzs 13,075,348 17,155,976
(Loss)/profit for the year ERN (BE) /H5 (3,760,547) 458,612
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 (712,297) (1,789,490
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEREEE (4,472,844) (1,330,878)
Dividend received from Road King BIES 2 RE - 40,467
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HEAEEREBRGEE R A]

in the associate: L
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEMEEZLH 27% 27%

Carrying amount of the investment KEZEHE 4,237,801 5,466,505
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20 Investments in associates (continued) 20 REEAFZERE (8)

(c) Individually immaterial associates (c) MHBIAE AT A7
In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the Group also BREXFBEBERE SRR 2B - REBT
has interests in a number of individually immaterial associates that are REEEEREARNERNTNERBEARER
accounted for using the equity method. s o

Aggregate carrying amount of individually (ERIRNE PN =N

immaterial associates B ARE 307,798 144,090
Aggregate amounts of the group’s share of: REBEDEATHEEE -
Profit from continuing operations BB EER 25T 5,084 (4,958)
Other comprehensive income H 2wl - -

Total comprehensive income 2HKHEE 5,084 (4,958)
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21 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

21 BREGEA G T SMEE

2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAL
Non-current: FRE :
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BRBREAAENEZEREE
— Listed equity investments in Mainland China — R EIREE 2 EERE 32,050 26,851
— Unlisted equity investments in Mainland China — R BEIAREZ JE EMRIERE 99,315 80,604
131,365 107,455
Current: e
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BRBREANENEZEREE
— Listed equity investments in Hong Kong — REBZ EMRERE 906 1,594
(i) Accounting policies of financial assets (i) SR EesHBok
(a)  Classification @ 7
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement AEEBECRHEERUTAESRND
categories: i
e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (gither through . E éi AnERtE GEARMEEYK

other comprehensive income (“OCI"), or through profit or loss),
and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in debt instruments,
this will depend on the business model in which the investment
is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

S

& Fﬂﬂéﬁéﬂi

m %@ij) jiﬁ-l-)\ig\ml

o HREHRIHENEREE

ZOEMAREREREMEERS NS

SREFHZEBEA

RERAREFEZEEMS
RN B EMEEREAR o
TANKREME -
BAME - HRERTARE -
RSB R

REFEZBRREAR

ERER

RREH

RRFRHERENES

EBEUR

SEAOy ChrR NIk 6
MEEMGAERERE b2 E K

2R

BERREAEL KBEARLE

B ARETEHEHRESR

-

TEH
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BRBRLEAAET L EMEE (8)

(continued)
(i) Accounting policies of financial assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

SRS EE B (8)

(b) BRI R
FHBERLENCSREECRS AR
R RHGAEAEEAFEERLEZE
EZH - Bt EREERBR S NEMNE
FEFMHEEE  MASEEEE
AERNMERRENGHERE - /&
)% Bp HZZ i ﬁE gfu\ °©

© itZE

BRI RO BRERBRRRANEHNE

TREE - NRRRR - AEEUER
REMLTEERBENEGZASREE
MR HEMETIHE - BBBRELAE
AEZEREBECRXHIRARNBRIIER
e

EREAERATETIANGREENSR
CRERGEXNEERMER - Fie
REENERETER -

EHTA
BREIAZREFEIARASBEERE
ELEBEARZEZEECLRERER
B REBBEERIADEA=EHE
Al

o HWEHEAAL : BEKEANEATR
EVEE MEEREREBEARX
MRS RFEE - BIREHR ARG
B RTERMEEZNBRATIE
ERMEEFAABBRA - RILHE
REE 2 FAREHERERINER
mREERBRERRER - IRE
ME25 - REBERESRA
EREBERRIIR
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21

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)
Accounting policies of financial assets (continued)
(c)  Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains and impairment expenses or reversals
are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which it
arises.

21 BBBRHBHAREHHZEMEE (5)

(i)

SRS EE B (8)
irE (&)
EBHTA (&)

(c)

EBEM2ERERANE]E
RUBENRERERAHETR
BEMRANEE  MAFEEN
RenEBERAERANBMT - Al
EREEERAEANERANE
AEEE - FEEZPA AR MR
Hiez - EREEER R ERS
HER M ERARIMNE K s KB
BZHERRIN - SHEERLER
B EAIRHEMEEREER R
AR EmESEN DB E RS
YREMMNEHER - Z5eREE
ZHBWATHEBRRF R AT AR5
WA o B S et R BRI A&
% - MRERX S BEERBRR
AEREFEBIIR -

ERBRRRANEFE  THER
BHRATERBBEMEAKER
ARABEHERENEE - BBRS
ZARABENERNE - REFREBR
ZRAEEENEBREN KR
AEERBRRER  YTRELF
ERRDRNEREREEJIROE
B o

O o
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

(c)

Accounting policies of financial assets (continued)

Measurement (continuea)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
in ‘other income and other gains — net’ in profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at financial assets at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

at fair value through other comprehensive

income

Equity securities designated at FVOCI

— Unlisted equity investments in mainland China

21 BBRBEAREFHZEMEE (5)

(i)

B Tt BOR (A1)

(c)

itE (&)
BETA
AEBRERAAEFEMAERERE -
WAEEE EFL&KEWIEWmWﬁ
BEREZARBRERER @ KRIERER
BE® - ﬁﬂéfiﬁ“%ﬁﬁﬁwm&
BEZER - EXASEBRKERENK
B ZSREZREBBENEZRRAE
el gND

ERRSRANEFEZEREEZAR
EEPRBERNRRAR [HERA R

ﬂ%%ﬁJ(Wkﬁ) WERAMEEK

BRnEitEz eREEFENBRR
ﬁZM@%E(&M@EE%@)$EIE
R AELB T A F5IR

22 BRI WREEAREHTZEME

7

EEREBEMEERGEZEA
REFEZBEARES

— R BIRRE Z JE EmAHE
&

2023 2022
2023F 2028 1=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAL
2,368 2,402

BERAT 187
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23 Properties under development 23 BREPYE
2023 2022
2023% 20225
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THT
Within one operating cycle included under current R—EZERBHAYAREE
assets EET
— Expected to be completed within twelve months — FEHER @ ARET 40,913,149 12,168,819
— Expected to be completed after more than twelve
months — FEHER T ZEREERT 29,649,926 58,850,687
70,563,075 71,019,506
Properties under development comprise: EEPMESR :
— Construction costs — FEEERA 13,164,210 12,707,805
— Land costs — A A 57,596,861 58,494,517
Less: write-down provision R MU (197,996) (182,816)
70,563,075 71,019,506
Representing K&
— At cost — A 66,999,586 67,708,477
— At net realisable value — LA IR (A 3,563,489 3,311,029
70,563,075 71,019,506
During the year, the write-down of properties under development located FR - ARETERTMENMGHATZEFE
in Mainland China of HK$17,720,000(2022: HK$182,816,000) was WD AR R BIKRE R E R YE MR
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss due to 17,720,000 70 (20224 : 182,816,000/%
the decrease in the estimated net realisable value of certain properties 7U) ERAEEGA BRRER ©
under development.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, properties under development BZE2023F12A31HILFE - RALENA
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$567,648,000 567,648,000/ 7T (20224 : 671,722,000/8
(2022: HK$671,722,000) were transferred to investment properties ) ZBERPNELRBES -T2 KERE
upon change in use evidenced by the inception of operating leases with HEAGNER  CEREZREVE - NEXH
another party. The differences of the fair value of these properties at the B ZEMEZRAAERARAELZER
date of transfer from their carrying amounts, amounting to net loss of 5185 %843,769,000/8 7T (20224 : Wiz 5
HK$43,769,000 (2022: net gain of HK$28,749,000), was recognised in the 28,749,000 ) * EREGEERRARER
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s properties under development with R2023F12A318 - A5EEREFEA
a net carrying amount of HK$4,529,724,000 (2022: HK$7,823,220,000) 4,529,724,00078 7T (20224 : 7,823,220,000
were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 31(b)). B ZERTMECER - ERAEEERR

TERZER (BEE31(0)) °
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Properties under development (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the application for land certificates in
Mainland China for land with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,256,773,000 (2022: HK$5,947,463,000) was still in progress.

The properties under development include costs of acquiring land use rights
in Mainland China, for property development over fixed periods. Land use
rights are held on leases term of 40 to 70 years.

Accounting policies of properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing conditions.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land use rights,
construction costs, depreciation of machinery and equipment, borrowing
costs capitalised for qualifying assets and professional fees incurred during
the development period. On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets when the
construction of the relevant properties commences unless the construction
period of the relevant property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle. The normal operating cycle is usually within
3 years.

Costs to fulfill a contract comprise the development cost and land use
right cost directly related to an existing contract that will be used to
satisfy performance obligations in the future. The costs to fulfill a contract
are recorded in properties under development if they are expected to be
recovered. The amount is amortised on a systematic basis, consistent
with the pattern of revenue recognition of the contract to which the asset
relates.

23 EEhmE (E)

(i)

R2023%12A31H © EEZEFEHD
2,256,773,000 ¢ (20224 : 5,947,463,000
BIL) ZRHABIRERE 2 L1tz T EEDNE
HEH ©

FRANZBEREE ARAMDEAERHE
RERG T ERE KA - L ARERH
ARA - FHNT40E70F -

B2 AR
BREERA AR R SANE 2 REEF
B ARRFENSERBREFHEE Y
E R AR S AN B EE R RIS
IRAEE - FERERATRESTEEE
stad -

MERBERABE L HMEREAR - BEK
K- BERRENE BN EREE
EERTRAERREINERZER - RET
% HEANFEREREREZLCERDE

RIERHABYERRAANEERRN—RE
BB DRBREFMERARENENEZES
HRERIERRDEE - ~REERNAER
RIER °

BITaANRABRERBANERARNRE
RARLIERERA - BRRETRKNE
WET - METROMKAERATKE - AIA
BIBBRETNE - BTANNKREIER RS
MIRETEE  RREERBORNKRAR
BEA—H -
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24 Completed properties held for sale

24 FiEfrEZCERM

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TAL

Completed properties held for sale BEFEZEENDE 19,949,310 11,767,724
Less: write-down provision B WORE A (204,510) (183,808)
19,744,800 11,583,916

During the year, the write-down of completed properties held for sale
located in Mainland China of HK$33,421,000 (2022:HK$38,944,000) was
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, completed properties held for
sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$473,584,000
(2022: HK$2,079,100,000) were transferred to investment properties upon
change in use as evidenced by the signing of relevant tenancy agreements.
The differences of the fair value of these properties at the date of transfer
from their carrying amounts, amounting to net loss of HK$205,084,000
(2022: net gain of HK$11,678,000), was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s completed properties held for sale
with a net carrying amount of HK$0 (2022: HK$2,051,394,000) were
pledged to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 31(b)).

The completed properties include costs of acquiring rights to use certain
lands, which are located in the Mainland China, for property development
over fixed periods. Land use rights are held on leases term of 40 to 70
years.

FN - NRFBEAENSERE ZEEKRTE
Z #0m33,421,0005% 7T (20224 : 38,944,000
BL) ERAEBMGEBRRER

HBE2023F12A31BLFE - EARELE
473,584,00058 7T (20224 : 2,079,100,00078
) ZBEREZEERMERRAMAER
FEERRNER  CHEZREWE - RE
BEH 2EWECANERERAEZED
AIE1EH%205,084,00078 T (20224 : Uik
$%11,678,0008 L) - ERRABRERNE

27
o

R2023F12A31H » AREEEFERET
(20224 : 2,051,394,000/8 ) 2 HEFEZ
BERMECHER  FALSEERBITEE
2R (BEE31(0) ©

BEERNEERNETHRARNEREREGSE
TRURFEAEZ L HEREZAR - L
REREORE - FHANTFL0ETOF -
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24 Completed properties held for sale (continued) 24 FEREZCHERME ()

(i) Accounting policies of completed properties held for sale (i) FEFEZOHERDEZ GiTER
Completed properties remaining unsold at year end are stated at the lower RERMAE 2 BEK Y EIZK AR EI7)%F
of cost and net realisable value. BEMEBRIEETER o
Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold properties. PRABIER L EWEEEMRAERA o
Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds of ERFEN2ENARERPEELYENSE
properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling EMBHERLZERANHEERIER - &R
expenses, or by management estimates based on prevailing marketing BRATMALAEEEMEN -
conditions.

25 Inventories 25 #H#

Raw materials JR 75,088 171,470
Work in progress EEM 96,149 71,964
Finished goods LIRK om 94,971 98,743
266,208 342177

During the year, the write-down of inventory of HK$569,000 was £R - FEMFS69,000E TERAEERZAE

recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss. BRIER ©
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26 Trade and other receivables

26 B5 RIAl WK

Included in non-current assets FTASEMENE E

— Other receivables — net — Hfb U GRIE — F5E 277,026 419,737

Included in current assets STARBEE

— Trade receivables — net (note (a)) — FEYER SR — JF 8 (FisE(a)) 2,263,251 2,180,070

— Other receivables — net (note (b)) — Huh e sRIE — 558 (FiFED)) 7,944,492 4,394,087

— Prepayments (note (c)) — FERTEIE (FiEE()) 1,457,637 259,121
11,665,380 6,833,278

As at 31 December 2023, due to the short maturity of the current
receivables, the carrying amount is considered to be approximate as their
fair value.

(a) Trade receivables

P2023F12 4318 - BRENER e R TR IR RS ER R
8 REERGAEERAEES

(a) MEWERZK

Trade receivables JE U BR 3R 2,433,697 2,348,697
Less: provision for loss allowance B BREE (170,446) (168,627)
Trade receivables — net JEUGER TR — /%58 2,263,251 2,180,070

The Group normally does not grant any credit terms to its customers for
the sale of properties. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivables.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEERFTEARPHNEHERLEMEE
B o REBRRY RKE BRFTIRRS BIRE
# o ERELRRARARE 2 BEEF RS
ET%(2R%8F  HAKEYBBESETZ
EERR - REEY EpHERR R EM
BERRIEMEEAR - REERATHER
g o
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26 Trade and other receivables (continued) 26 BRI (8)

(a) Trade receivables (continued) (a) MEWERZ (&)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group's trade receivables with a net M2023%12A318 - AEEEEFED
carrying value of approximately HK$40,116,000 (31 December 2022: £40,116,000/8 7L (2022F12A31H :
HK$51,404,000) was pledged to secure other borrowings of the Group (note 51,404,000 ) 2 EBUERREEE - EARE
31(b)). SEEMEE ZER (HE31(0)) ©
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting RIBEIRAG N BB E 2 BT RER DT
period, based on the contract date, is as follows: N

Within 1 year —FR 2,130,418 2,100,863
1 t0 2 years —FEMFNR 144,633 79,179
2 to 3 years MEE=FR 22,246 22,299
Over 3 years =FE 136,400 146,356

2,433,697 2,348,697
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26 Trade and other receivables (continued)
(b) Details of other receivables are as follows:

26 B 5 R (81)
(b) EfEWRFIRZFENOT :

Prepaid tax TEBBIIE 3,436,714 1,832,090
Loans to joint ventures BTEERRIZER 1,589,468 566,585
Due from non-controlling interests FEUR FEI2 I 4 25 5K T8 511,296 506,352
Due from the ultimate holding company i3s3 e S 2 /NEIE /O] 39,124 28,865
Due from the immediate holding company IR BRI A B 8 9,364 1,185
Others (i) H fth () 2,687,877 1,784,204

8,273,843 4,719,281
Less: allowance for impairment W R E RS (329,351) (325,194)
Other receivables — net H b e FRIE — 58 7,944,492 4,394,087

(i) Others mainly included deposits and current accounts due from fellow subsidiaries (i)

of the Group and independent third parties.

(c) Details of prepayments are as follows:

Hit+ R BERIKRARER ZKHE AR KLE

SE=TTHIRE S RAERFOR

(c) BENREZFHBEMT :

For acquisitions of land W iE b 1,293,142 30,076
For construction costs and construction materials REERK AR N2 EM B 120,134 186,231
Others Efh 44,361 42,814

1,457,637 259,121
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27 B&RBEFEY

27 Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022

2023F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FEL

Cash and bank balances B RIRTT4 R 14,443,229 13,361,602
Less: restricted cash (a) B ZRFIIRE (a) (3,340,931) (1,687,484)
bank deposits (b) $FITER () (48,440) (5,851)

Cash and cash equivalents RERBFEFEY 11,053,858 11,668,267

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents did not include
housing maintenance funds of HK$58,417,000 (2022: HK$58,602,000)
which were owned by the property owners but were deposited in the bank
accounts in the name of the Group. Such deposits can be used by the
Group for the purpose of public maintenance expenditures to be incurred at
the sole discretion and approval of the relevant government authorities.

(@)

Restricted cash mainly represented unreleased guarantee deposits
for construction of pre-sale properties denominated in RMB placed
in designated bank accounts as at 31 December 2023, and will be
released in accordance with certain construction progress milestones.

In 2021, two subsidiaries of the Company received a statement of
claim from the Intermediate People’s Court of Wuhan City (the “Court”)
for the claims by Hubei Province Livestock and Poultry Breeding
Center against the two subsidiaries (the “Litigation”) regarding the
contractual disputes under the agreements entered into by two
subsidiaries, with a total claims amount of approximately RMB900
million. In connection with the Litigation, certain bank accounts with
an aggregate balance of approximately RMB640 million was frozen by
the Court. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the litigation
has been settled and accordingly, this restricted bank balance has
been unfrozen.

These bank deposits were with original maturity over three months.
The effective interest rate of these deposits as at 31 December 2023
was 3.18% per annum (2022: 2.22% per annum).

R2023F12A31H ' ReRReZFEBEYITE
EERE®EES58,417,0008 T (20224 :
58,602,000/87L) @ ZFBAETEE - KR
BRAEBEZNRTES - BAGERTAKX
SERARKHEBRTEEEEREIEN AR
HBRZ -

(@)

REHBELTEAN2023F12A318F
ENEERITREPUARKENTEEY

FREABBRES - HREETRRE
JERRES o

R2021F - ARRMENB AR ZEREZ
mHREARER ([ZAR ) BHORE
R BNt REREERLRAR
B A B ET W i B0 A K94t 9 B
RfBRRRENHRR ([FR]) - BR
BEBOARBIEL - ARKFR - &2
ERNAARE640EBTNE TRITER
Bz ERRL - B Z22023F12A31H
LEE - FREFER - Al - ZXBHIE
TRHBERR -

ZERNEFRIBBABB=MA - %
EHEFZN2023F12 831 BNERFIR A
3.18%EVER| K (20224 : 2.22%F
K)o
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27 Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 27 B&RBEEEY (H)

(c)  The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies  (0) AREHENEAINE N RZSIINENRITHER
and the remittance of such foreign currencies denominated bank TR S IE NP BAKRTEBFEAEBEINEE
balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules and HIEARRI RER ©
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Cash and deposits were denominated in the following currencies: ReRFHUATHEEE -

Denominated in RMB AARKBHE 13,662,005 12,112,422
Denominated in US$ AZETTEME 308,626 491,617
Denominated in HK$ LA Tt E 472,598 757,563
14,443,229 13,361,602
28 Share capital and reserves 28 AR Kfk
(a) Share capital (a) A

Issued and fully paid: BETEHR :
8,898,793,115 (31 December 2022: 8,898,793,115%
8,898,793,115) ordinary shares (2022F12H31H -

8,898,793,115% ) E i@ 22,071,756 22,071,756
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28 Share capital and reserves (continued) 28 AR fkfE (%)
(a) Share capital (continued) (@) MeA (%)
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: FR - RABHNT -

At 1 January M A1H 8,898,793,115 22,071,756  8,899,893,115 22,071,756

Share repurchase B in g - - (1,100,000) =

At 31 December W12 A31H 8,898,793,115 22,071,756  8,898,793,115 22,071,756
(b) Capital reserve (b)  FEAhEd

Capital reserve BAREE 59,019 59,019
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29 Other reserves 29 o AbfE
Share Exchange
Statutory option Other fluctuation
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
TERE BRERE HittEE EXLBREE Fok]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TRT TET TART
As at 1 January 2023 120231 A18 3,951,954 1,170 218,899 (1,014,871) 3,157,152
Share of other comprehensive k=N
income of joint ventures and DRI EAMEE S
associates - - (159,337) - (159,337)
Equity-settled share option expense ARRZR 2 1+ 7 B R4
X - 229 - - 229
Exchange differences PEHERR - - - (627,899) (627,899)
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 3,951,954 1,399 59,562 (1,642,770) 2,370,145
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1H 3,951,954 109,478 641,075 4,211,411 8,913,918
Share of other comprehensive FiEE DR REE
income of joint ventures and AR EMZERE
associates — — (422,176) — (422,176)
Transfer of reserves upon lapse of  BERRIE L RS E LS
share options — (108,984) — — (108,984)
Equity-settled share option expense  LARRAN S v 2 B A 4
X - 676 - - 676
Exchange differences PE Y Z%R - - - (5,226,282) (5,226,282)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 3,951,954 1,170 218,899 (1,014,871) 3,157,152

30 Share option scheme

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
approved and adopted on 22 June 2012 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to directors and employees of the Group who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. The Scheme became
effective on 22 June 2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 year from that date, after
which period no further options will be issued but in all other respects the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

30

S J -

ARRRE-—BBERETE ([58]) R2012
FeA22 AR ERRM - UHAEEEBAK
NEREERZASEESRES RERD KT
B o sT2IN20126F6 B22 BAR » Mk IEHER
HREBET - BRIZFTEBREB B +ER
BY - BHHBERE - AITZBERLEMER
EBREMAEMAE  HEEXDATER
HRAER -

o
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Share option scheme (continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period

The terms and conditions of the share options outstanding as at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

30 et H (41)

() TR A 0 AR AT 2 T
RS HIR AT BB 2 R R T -

Contractual
Number of Exercise Vesting Expiry life of
instruments price date date options
fBREL
IEZAR fE BEEH ZMAH BRER
At 31 December 2023 12023612 A31H
Options granted to employees: BYREE ZBE
on 28 September 2021 202159 H28H 2,064,000 2.0000 18/01/2022 17/01/2025 0.33
on 28 September 2021 R2021F9H28H 1,548,000 2.0000 18/01/2023 17/01/2025 1.33
on 28 September 2021 R2021469H28H 1,548,000 2.0000 18/01/2024 17/01/2025 2.33
Options granted to employees: BTEE ZERE
on 28 September 2021 R2021F9H28H 988,000 2.0000 28/09/2022 27/09/2025 1.00
on 28 September 2021 R2021F9H28H 741,000 2.0000 28/09/2023 27/09/2025 2.00
on 28 September 2021 R2021F9H28H 741,000 2.0000 28/09/2024 27/09/2025 3.00
Total share options outstanding AT TR AR S 7,630,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 7,630,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, representing approximately 0.09%
of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 7,630,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and an increase in share capital
and reserve of HK$16,696,000 (before issue expenses).

RIREER - BIEFTE - RAFE7,630,0001
BRE (EARAINZBERITRM%0.09%)
WARITE ©

BRAR L ADABRARE - BEITEHAKT
B2 BRERBEHITRIN, 630,000 AR

A% A

NI R R B 016,696,000 7T
(RINBRETHET) °
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30
(b)

(c)

Share option scheme (continued)

Share options movement during the year

The number and weighted average exercise price of share options under
the Scheme are as follows:

(b)

30 EMBCHERTHE (4)

A 1R Ji JB 5 )

RBE B LB AR AE < BB RNE T 91T E
T

At 1 January R1A1R 2.0000 7,630,000 2.8530 161,234,958

Lapsed during the year RERLKR - - 2.8968  (153,604,958)

Outstanding at the end of the year ~ MEREARITE 2.0000 7,630,000 2.0000 7,630,000

Exercisable at the end of the year RERT FIT6E 2.0000 5,341,000 2.0000 3,052,000
Share options movement during the year (C)  4F 1 Ik JB il 5t )

The options outstanding at 31 December 2023 had an exercise price of
HK$2.000 (2022: HK$2.000) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 1.27 years (2022: 2.27 years).

(i)  The Company had no share options lapsed during the reporting period
(2022: 153,604,958 share options).

(i) ~ The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$229,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$676,000).

R2023412 A31 B MR TEERENTEES
2.0008 7T (20224 : 2.000/7T) * METFH
FIBANFERA1.275 (20224F : 2.27%F) ©

() RB|EHA - ARAWEKBERE
(20224 : 153,604,958 (P BER&1E) o

(i) FZE2023F12A31BILEE - AEERE
REBMAER % 229,000/ 7T (20224 -
676,000&7T) °
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31 Bank and other borrowings 31  HUT RICAbf R
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAL
Non-current JEENER
Bank loans — secured (b) RITER — BHEA(D) 718,369 461,159
Bank loans — unsecured BITER — EER 20,186,326 18,023,270
Other borrowings — secured CMBS ((a), (b)) HifgE — AEARERASE
E4 (@) - () 3,092,804 9,654,347
24,897,499 28,138,776
Current BN &
Bank loans — secured (b) RITER — BEA(D) 434,530 89,832
Bank loans — unsecured RITEN — EEH 10,104,577 11,859,576
Other borrowings — secured CMBS ((a), (b)) HifEE — AEARERASE
E5((a) ~ () 3,602,496 134,025
14,141,603 12,083,433
39,039,102 40,222,209

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised

cost.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its borrowing
facilities during the financial year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(@

As at 31 December 2023, other borrowings included Commercial
Mortgage-backed Securities (‘CMBS”) as below:

At 1 March 2021, RMB1,800,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,986,300,000) was issued in China Interbank Bond Market,
which was secured by certain property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and its receivables of future rental incomes.
The interest rate of the CMBS classified as Priority Level with a
principal amount of RMB1,790,000,000 was fixed at 3.88% per
annum. The term of the CMBS was 18 years. At the end of the third
year, the sixth year and the ninth year, the Group shall be entitled to
adjust the interest rate of the CMBS or repurchase the outstanding
balance, and the holders of the CMBS shall be entitled to require the
Group to redeem the outstanding balance.

FA FEEN G B A B B RS -

AEEENEZE2023F %2022F12A31H1E
VREEEBTEETBENHTBERY -

(@ F2023F12A31H @ ST ABEEALHE
BH ([ BERBPYEES]) ZHEMBEE
mr

R2021F3818 - RHBERITHES
mi5%T AR1,800,000,0007T (HHE
71,986,300,000% ) + EAETY
¥ BEREE BREVMERERKA
SWAREIFBEER - K& ARE
1,790,000,000 TR D EABEREER
BERBEFMENEETE A3.88% ° B
BEIHESNFHA18F c REZF -
ERNFRENFR - AEBHRAZGE
BERTHERFOFI RS BEOREERE -
MAEBRATHELFOREABGRERK
SEBRAEEHE
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31 Bank and other borrowings (continued)

(@)

(continued)

At 7 May 2021, RMB2,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,207,000,000) was issued in China Interbank Bond Market,
which was secured by certain property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and its receivables of future rental incomes.
The interest rate of the CMBS classified as Priority Level with a
principal amount of RMB1,999,000,000 was fixed at 3.80% per
annum. The term of the CMBS was 18 years. At the end of the third
year, the sixth year and the ninth year, the Group shall be entitled to
adjust the interest rate of the CMBS or repurchase the outstanding
balance, and the holders of the CMBS shall be entitled to require the
Group to redeem the outstanding balance.

At 24 February 2022, RMB3,200,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,531,200,000) was issued in China Interbank Bond Market,
which was secured by investment properties and its receivables of
future rental incomes. The interest rate of the CMBS classified as
Priority Level with a principal amount of RMB3,190,000,000 was
fixed at 3.40% per annum. The term of the CMBS was 18 years. At
the end of the third year, the sixth year and the ninth year, the Group
shall be entitled to adjust the interest rate of the CMBS or repurchase
the outstanding balance, and the holders of the CMBS shall be
entitled to require the Group to redeem the outstanding balance.

At 16 June 2020, RMB1,900,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,096,650,000) was issued in China Interbank Bond Market,
which was secured by certain property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and its receivables of future rental incomes. At
26 May 2023, the CMBS was early redeemed.

31 &1
(@)

TR Al B ()

(8)

R2021F5878 © RHPBERITHES
mi5%T AR 2,000,000,0007T (HE
#%2,207,000,000% ) + EAETY
¥ BERLE BREMERERKA
SWAREKFIEERR - K& ARE
1,999,000,000 tH D EABELEREER
REREHFMENEETE A3.80% ° B
BEYHEENFHA18F c REZF -
ENFRENFER - AEBHEAZDE
ERTHERFOF RS BOREEHE -
MAEERTHEFOREAGRERK
SEBREAEEHRE

R2022%2 B 248 » WHBISRITREST
15217 AR#3,200,000,0007T (FHER
3,531,200,000% ) + EREEMERE
RAEASWAREUGRIBIERIR o A& A
R#3,190,000,000 TH D B ABERE
EERLRBELFNEFIRET/R3.40% ©
BERBIHBELFNTHRRI18F - RE=
FENFRENFR + NEEBRARE
Fﬂ’%ﬁﬁimﬁmﬁﬂ%@ﬁ BH
CMAEER T RRANRAEARRS
IK%I%@*&@%@O

R2020%F6 5168 @ WABISRITREST
5317 AR#1,900,000,0007T (HE R
2,096,650,000/%7L) + EMETHE -
BEREE REDERERRBSIA
R JEMEIBEIE IR - 120235 H26H -
DEEERTFEFDRAER -
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31

(b) At 31 December 2023, loans amounting to approximately
HK$8,748,199,000 (2022: HK$10,339,363,000) were secured by
certain of the Group’s assets with carrying amounts as below:

AT RIS & (5)

) M2023F12A31H ' £8Y
8,748,199,000%& L (20224 :
10,339,363,000/870) 2 EFSA TFIERE
BZETAEEEEERS -

2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT

Property, plant and equipment (included land ME - BELKEE (BEIHR
and buildings) (note 15) BF) (MizE15) 1,074 22,844
Properties under development (note 23) ERPME (H7E23) 4,529,724 7,823,220
Completed properties held for sale (note 24) BEFE 2B ME (H3E24) - 2,051,394
Trade receivables (note 26(a)) FEUBR SR (FT=E26(a)) 40,116 51,404
Investment properties (note 16) REME (HE16) 7,119,481 14,282,804
11,690,395 24,231,666

(c) At 31 December 2023, bank borrowings of approximately
HK$25,413,309,000 (2022: HK$22,355,890,000) were bearing

floating interest rates.

(d)  Except for bank borrowings of approximately HK$15,708,478,000
(2022: HK$16,351,337,000), which are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, all borrowings as at 31 December 2023 are denominated in

RMB.

(e) As at 31 December 2023, the average effective interest rate of
borrowings was 4.42% per annum (2022: 3.32% per annum).

) F2023%F12A318 * 425,413,309,000
T (20224 : 22,355,890,000/87C) 7
RITEE R IHFIRS -

d B4L£E#A15708,478,0005 T (2022
£ 1 16,351,337,000587T) ZRITEE N
WITEHESN - R2023FE12 A31BFARE
EYUAREE -

€ T12023%F12A31H » BEZFHERA
RAEEA.42% (20224 : F£83.32%) °
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32 Deferred income tax 32 BEREFTARAL
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows: EEFREHEEREEANAT

Deferred income tax assets EEFTSHEE 3,513,667 3,335,319
Deferred income tax liabilities ELRENER (7,319,668) (7,899,606)
(3,806,001) (4,564,287)

The movement on the net deferred income tax is as follows: BIEFEREREEFHNT -

At 1 January W1 A1H (4,564,287) (6,468,076)
Credited to profit or loss FABZ 695,589 1,144,651
Exchange differences R EH 62,697 759,138

At 31 December M12A31H (3,806,001) (4,564,287)
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32 Deferred income tax (continued) 32 BEREFAAL ()
Movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities without taking into RTAR—BWEEEANHERENBELT -
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction is EEFMEHEERAEEDNT -
as follows:
Deferred income tax assets: EREFMBREE :

At 1 January 2023 120235118 80,080 2,570,376 38,508 403,452 133,221 109,682 3,335,319
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to~ AEEFA /(114 15
profit or loss during the year A BIERA 70,248 35,124 52,185 56,269 14,081 (1,891) 226,016
Exchange differences EXZR (1,145) (36,736) (550) (5,764) (1,904) (1,569) (47,668)
At 31 December 2023 202351231 F 149,183 2,568,764 90,143 453,957 145,398 106,222 3,513,667
At 1 January 2022 R2022%51A1R 6,862 2,287,230 216,499 175,566 136,673 130724 2,953,554
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to ~ AE[E (1) /3t ABE
profit or loss during the year R EIERE 73799 476,914 (159,650) 242,760 8,127 (9,961) 631,989
Exchange differences ENZR (681) (193,768) (18,341) (14,874) (11,579 (11,081) (250,224)
At 31 December 2022 2022512431 B 80080 2,570,376 38,508 403,452 133,221 109682 3,335,319
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to BEMEHEERASEENTUIEL - B
the extent that the realisation of the related benefit through future taxable AERBARRERHENEREENZ - BE
profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets 2023%12A31H » AEBEU ARG EF 20234
as at 31 December 2023 of HK$3,370,773,000 (2022: HK$3,234,815,000) 12 A31 B Rt T 75 &51513,483,093,000%
in respect of accumulated tax losses amounting to HK$13,483,093,000 as 7T (20224 : 12,939,261,000/ 1) R
at 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$12,939,261,000). EFEREES,370,773,000% 7T (20224 :

3,234,815,000/&7T) ©
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32 Deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities:

32 BB (H)
EEMEHAR :

At 1 January 2023 202381 A18 675,208 3,267,694 177,627 3,110,379 535,009 133,689 7,899,606
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to~ AEEMB / GIA) B3

profit or loss during the year Mz EERR 32,598 (422,640) 1,405 (182,052) 22,170 76,946 (469,573)
Bxchange differences B8 @ (6702 (2539 (44450 (7,646) (1910)  (10365)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31H 700,692 2,798,352 176,493 2,883,873 551,533 208,725 7,319,668
At 1 January 2022 1202251 A1H 706,778 3,787,442 193,902 4121677 537,304 74,627 9,421,630
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to -~ REEHk / (GFA) Bz

profit or loss during the year mZEREFE 17,038 (87,972) 152 (550,488) 43,204 65,384 (512,662)
Bxchange diferences B8 @860y (31776 (642) (460710 (45519 6322 (1,036
At 31 December 2022 R2022£12A31H 675,208 3,267,694 177,627 3,110,379 535,009 133,689 7,899,606

33 Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities B

33 AMEM

24,303,239

6,328,458
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Contract liabilities (continued)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities of
property development recognised are as follows:

The Group receives certain amount of deposit from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreements. These deposits are recognised as
contract liabilities until the relevant properties are completed and ready for
hand-over to the customers.

The Group may require the customers to pay off the remaining balance of
the consideration within an agreed timeframe while constructions are still
ongoing, rather than on the completion of the relevant properties. Such
advance payment schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the remaining property construction period for the full amount of
the contract price.

33

AR (8)
HERRMFRAZRORAESERARTEZ R
SAEFWT

ARENEFRERRHER ARSI URETR]
T S EHABANEE  EEABDE
ERLATHBERTRP AL

AEETEREFRBETRINEETZHER
AAMFRERNEEZNEEERSRKE - B
BRI AT Bl @ SN B ARG X2 E SR
REEANERERLNAR -

Movements in contract liabilities (a) AAARFED
2023 2022
2023%F 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TEL
Balance at 1 January W1 A1 Bz &% 6,328,458 13,892,262
Recognition of revenue that was included in the RREFIABNEE 2 MR
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (3,562,945) (13,557,586)
Receiving forward sales deposits and instalments WEFEERT € ko HFE 27,508,734 13,019,409
Recognition of revenue that was included in the BRRFERFTAEHEREZ W E
contract liabilities during the year (5,971,008) (7,025,627)
Balance at 31 December W12 A31 Bz &8 24,303,239 6,328,458

The amount of billings in advance of performance and forward sales
deposits and instalments received expected to be recognised as
income after more than one year is HK$13,690,094,000 (2022:
HK$2,242,032,000).

BHRBRE - FHEERABRAZEY
BRHHFE BEITSREW BFHE
£13,690,094,0008 T (20224 :
2,242,032,000587T) °
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34 Trade and other payables 34 5 KA ER

Current liabilities MEBE
Trade payables (a) FERTBRR () 6,047,954 6,335,130
Other payables and accruals (b) H A eI R ERTE A (b) 16,482,215 19,074,245
Other taxes payables (c) HEAHIE () 272,271 463,458
22,802,440 25,872,833
(a) Trade payables (a) MEATERE
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date was as FEAEFREZZAHNRESTIIRAOT ¢
follows:

Within 1 year —ER 5,134,335 5,098,345
1 to 2 years —FEREN 438,086 735,675
2 to 3 years MEE=FA 319,905 380,447
Over 3 years =EF 155,628 120,663
6,047,954 6,335,130

The total amounts of the trade payables are non-interest-bearing. All the ERRRERATHERE - IERNERNE

trade payables are expected to be settled within one year. HR—FREE -
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34 Trade and other payables (continued) 34 H5LRIMEM® ()

(b) Other payables and accruals (b) A A k0 e e 2
Other payables and accruals mainly included deposits received from EMENFBEREAERAEIZBEEIMEER
property buyers and amount due to joint ventures, fellow subsidiaries, an BRRESNENAEBEE LR - ARWE
other related company and non-controlling interests of the Group. NA] ~ —FREMBH AR RIS FIE

Accruals and other payables FEEHE A R E AT FUE 10,742,165 8,781,853
Loans from a joint venture RE—HEERRZER 224,479 228,904
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERZMBRRIZER 2,134,324 1,803,046
Loans from an other related company RE—HEMBEB AR ZER 171,533 175,189
Loans from non-controlling interests REFERER 2 ER 3,209,714 8,085,253
16,482,215 19,074,245
(c) Other taxes payables (c) HAbKEABIHE
Other taxes payables mainly included output value-added taxes related to HiEAH BT EREEBEYXaMrEE
receipt in advance from customers, value-added taxes payables and other B - EAEER R EMFE -

taxes.
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35 Due to immediate and ultimate holding company 85 WA B A IR A W AR OE

Non-current JERNER
Due to the immediate holding company e BBt A B FOE 700,651 699,483
700,651 699,483
Current BNER
Due to the immediate holding company JE S BB R A Bl FR0R 3,194,490 2,454,966
Due to the ultimate holding company JE S fR AR AR A R FIE 17,653,750 18,312,783
20,848,240 20,767,749
21,548,891 21,467,232
36 Tax payable 36 MEMBIHE

Current tax in the consolidated statement of financial 434 B # k& A 2 BN HAFA B 15
position represents:

Provision for CIT CEMSHEE 983,053 1,176,923
Provision for LAT TS ER B 10,541,617 10,732,851

11,524,670 11,909,774
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37 Cash flow information 37 B&WEEH
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REEBEAEZIS

Profit before taxation B A5 A A 1,775,912 7,367,039
Adjustments for: BT EERAE

Finance costs BN 1,244,915 971,689
Interest income B dA (253,863) (378,067)
Depreciation and amortisation e N 5 401,847 450,966
(Increase)/decrease in fair value of investment BEMEANE GEM) /R

properties (803,504) 393,912
Recognition of change in fair value upon transfer to ~ EREREVMEEHAALE

investment properties ) 248,853 (42,023)
Dividend income from other financial assets REHMEREEZREKA (2,168) (2,090)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures and ML & & AR R & AR RF

associates HEE 682,698 (391,441)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEME - BERSEEE 2

plant and equipment EE /(M) 3,916 (1,811)
Loss allowance of trade receivables, net JEMBR SR IB K BB 53R 6,953 55,999
Loss allowance of prepayments, deposits and other ~ FERIZUE « 314 M fh U FIE

receivables, net BABRETSE 8,861 21,139
Loss allowance of finance guarantees M EREERE 10,883 =
Write-down of inventory FEMR 51,710 246,888
Decrease in fair value of financial assets at fair BRBERANENE 2SR

value through profit or loss, net BEARERDFHE 75,025 355,845
Equity-settled share option expense VAR 15 2 BE AR =2 229 676

3,452,267 9,048,721
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37 Cash flow information (continued) 37 B&WEER (8)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) REEEEAEZHE (H)

Changes in working capital:

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables and other

BEELRD)
ERERRAMEREERD

financial assets (&) 426,426 (1,427,083)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other BARE - e REMENZE

receivables byl (2,394,002) (26,205)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERLD /(3E) 70,509 (101,505)
Increase in trading biological assets EFEM YA EE M (548) (543)
(Increase)/decrease in completed properties held for — #{E/F&E 2 2 &KME (&) /

sale A (8,662,847) 4,344,060
Decrease/(increase) in properties under development  EEHMER D /(&) 921,942 (23,501,879)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERBRR ORlD) / #10 (186,462) 2,290,063
Increase in other payables and accruals Hoth B 3B K JE T B L0 873,967 8,138,546
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AiaEEmn,/ (Rd) 18,065,228 (6,126,862)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income ELRAE, i) 787 (558)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash RRERE GEm) R (1,720,237) 922,864
Cash generated from/(used in) operations meEBmG,/ (FA) B 10,847,030 (6,440,381)
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37

BlemsEr ()
B H B 2 A HIR

At 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A1H 40,222,209 190,790 18,092,832 1,803,046 228,904 8,260,442 68,798,223
Changes from financing cash ~~ REBERSHEZED :

flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans ~ #T{TE G 18,261,507 - - - - - 18,261,507
Repayment of bank loans BERNER (19,103,456) - - - - - (19,103,456)
Proceeds from loans from non-  FEERERERFIEEA

controlling interests - - - - - 67,316 67,316
Repayments of loans from non- (& FFERER &3

controlling interests - - - - - (4,719,048)  (4,719,048)
Proceeds from related parties  RE R 2 FEHE - - 15,688,326 393,117 - - 16,081,443
Repayments of related parties BB 2 B3t - - (14,225412) (97,671) - - (14,323,083)
Capital element of lease rentals  EAHERE 2 EAE

paid - (69,257) - - - - (69,257)
Total changes from financing ~ REBEREHEZEH

cash flows B (841,949) (69,257) 1,462,914 295,446 - (4,651,732)  (3,804,578)
Interest paid included as change  FIfEE&RLFEEE 2

in operating cash flows: BRI : (1,893,969) (8,438)  (884,557) - (6,756) (597,437)  (3,391,157)
Non-cash movement FRe% - 256,112 - - - - 256,112
Exchange differences EiZR (348,499) @721) (224,587 (28,034) (3,265) (87,858)  (694,970)
Finance costs I 1,901,310 8,438 693,951 63,866 5,596 457,832 3,130,993
As at 31 December 2023 R202312A31H 39,039,102 374918 19,140,553 2,134,324 224,479 3,381,247 64,294,623
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37 Cash flow information (continued) 37 B&WEER (8)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities  (b) KHAMEEHZAEZHE (5)
(continued)

At 1 January 2022 R202F1 518 38,097,234 395,715 16,656,226 2,683,482 124,757 803,957 58,761,371
Changes from financing cash ~~ REBEREHE228

flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans ¥R {TE R EZE 17,845,339 = = = = - 17,845,339
Repayment of bank loans EESKIER (14,158,203) - - - - - (14158,203)
Proceeds from loans from non- ~ JFEREREFFIEE

controlling interests - - - - - 340,655 340,655
Repayments of loans from non- ~ (BE A REREH

controlling interests - - - - - (40,573) (40,573)
Proceeds from related parties  REEEA 2ME5E - - 22749796 4945725 116,370 - 27,811,891
Repayments of related parties 7 2850 - - (17405033  (5461744) - - (22,866,777)
Capital element of lease rentals  BRHER S 2 &R

paid - (171,40 - - - - (71400
Total changes from financing ~ REBARSHEZEY

cash flows &% 3,687,136 (171,401) 5,344,763 (516,019) 116,370 300,082 8,760,931
Interest paid included as change  FIfEEERLFEEE 2

in operating cash flows: EfffI8 : (1,385,968) (10759 (140426  (234,442) (4619 (7,699 (1,783,913
Non-cash movement #REEY - - (2,706,770) - - 6826904 4,120,134
Exchange differences EiER (1,606,589) (33,524)  (1,687,718) (201,511) (15,096) (95,643)  (3,640,081)
Finance costs BHRSRLA 1,430,396 10,759 626,757 71,536 7,492 432,841 2,579,781

As at 31 December 2022 120225124318 40,222,209 190,790 18,092832 1,803,046 228,904 8,260,442 68,798,223
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37 Cash flow information (continued) Hemagr (4)
(c) Acquisition of right-of-use assets WLt R
2023 2022
2023% 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Acquisition of right-of-use assets et AREE 303,470 65,746
38 Financial guarantees WE R
2023 2022
2023% 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRT FAL
Financial guarantees to purchasers of the Group’s RASEY % E RIRE 2 B ER
properties (a) (a) 12,778,057 6,926,523
Financial guarantees to related parties of the Group — [FIZR &= [BI B EE 7 IR (B SRR
(b) (b) 1,938,357 1,400,718
Financial guarantees to the parties affected by the [ T & #1IE B 1R85 AR
urban renewal project, using their demolished FENMFERERN 2 ER
properties as collateral for the loan (c) REFBKERC) 282,139 =

Pursuant to the terms of the financial guarantees, if there is default of the
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the
outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal
title of the related properties. The Group's guarantee period commences from the
date of grant of the relevant mortgage loan and ends after the buyer of the Group’s
properties obtained the individual property ownership certificate.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net realizable value
of the related properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty and therefore no provision has
been made in connection with the guarantees.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has given guarantees amounted to
HK$1,938,357,000 (31 December 2022: HK$1,400,718,000) in respect of bank
loans and other borrowings to Guangzhou Pik Zeon Real Estate Development
Company Limited, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development Limited and Shum
King Company Limited, all of which are joint ventures of the Group.

During the year, the group provided loan guarantees to the parties affected by the
urban renewal project, using their demolished properties as collateral for the loan.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default on repayment by these
affected parties, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding bank loans
with any accrued interest and penalties owed to the bank. The group is then
entitled to take over the legal ownership of the repossessed properties. The Group's
guarantee period extends from the date of signing the guarantee contract until the
affected parties obtain the ownership certificate of the repossessed properties.

The directors consider that in case of default in payment, the net realizable value
of the related properties is sufficient to repay the outstanding loans along with any
accrued interest and penalties, and therefore no provisions have been made in
connection with the guarantees.

(@)

RIBEMIEHRERIG - WZFERIERIZBN
B AEEEEEENRNZIRBETAR
R RIRE KR R1T 2 T EET 7 B % 5
Ko REEBERAIREBENE L SEMA
o AEH BREARKEAFIRBERE
B RS A E A KB YR E KIS ER Y
BREEREM

BE=R5  MERERRE - BEYE2LT
S FERIABN H AR EER 2 RIS EFER
%gﬁ?ﬁﬂ%&%ﬂ?ﬂ C MORBRZF ERIEH

R2023F12A31H  REEREMNBE
EHEREERAT  TMHIFLKRE
BEAERARRFYERAR (2HH 5
AEBEERQA) ZRITREME KR
£1,938,357,000/8 T (2022412 318 :

FR o AEE KT E B W E T AR
}fﬁ?ﬁ%%%?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%Z%%ﬂ%ﬁT%?A’ﬁ%
R o

RIBRERIGR  WEIFE T HBRER - AE
BB EEEMRFED R ZRITERAK
HRAVRIT 2 E RS REIRK  BEIRA
SEEEZULDBEYEZQEMEE - A
SEZ ERABRE SRR Z BBEHIF
B BEREREMEMEREEREM o

E=RR - WRRFUR  GRMEZAIRR
TFE R AE R W R EE 2 BFGE R o] 5T
MBRENR - MARMZEERME B -
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39 Commitments 39 A&
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2023 not provided for in K2023F12 A31 B iMARITE R AR B EREE
the financial report were as follows: HEENEAAENT

Commitments in respect of the acquisition of land and  FEUt#E + 3t RAE T M B R Fh ) %

buildings, and development costs attributable to BN 2 R -

properties under development: EHEIEES 35

Contracted, but not provided for 12,313,696 8,324,329
The Group agreed a maximum capital contribution to a related party, AEEREMBH I AIERAAZLEE
Shum King Company Limited, of HK$3,000,000,000 for its development 3,000,000,000 B LAt EHEAE B 2 — R+
of a piece of land in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had # o M2023F12A318 - AEEHAIAR
an outstanding capital commitment to Shum King Company Limited of DA WARITHE 2 BAESE £1,562,500,0005%

HK$1,562,500,000 (2022: HK$1,757,500,000). 7T (20224 : 1,757,500,000557) ©
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40 Related-party transactions 40 BRBEHRS
In addition to the financial guarantees provided to joint ventures disclosed BRI EE38(b) FTIRE MM A & A R IR A B S 12
in note 38(h) and the capital commitments provided to a joint venture REMESIMBEENR—FAEE R ARENE
disclosed in note 39, the Group had the following significant related party FEEI  NEBMEABB AR ZMT ¢
transactions:
(a) Financing arrangements (a) RbEZH
() The Group entered certain financing arrangements with its related () AEEHEREGHELTIETHELZY - 57
parties, as follows: BT :
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T
Loans from the ultimate holding company REFLEBRRZER 15,889,902 15,543,349
Loans from the immediate holding company REERERDRZER 3,250,651 2,549,483
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERZMBRAIZER 2,134,324 1,803,046
Loans from a joint venture KE—THAERAIZER 224,479 228,904
Loans from an other related company KE—MEMBBR LR ZER 171,533 175,189
Loans from non-controlling interests RE LR ER 2 ER 3,209,714 8,085,253
24,880,603 28,385,224
Except for balances of HK$109,364,000 (2022: HK$110,950,000), Br#££109,364,000/8 T (20227 :
which are interest-free, the remaining balance in interest bearing at 110,950,000/ 7T ) AR L - FISRERE
interest rates ranging from 2.50% to 6.65% per annum (2022: 1.94% NF2.50%%6.65%HFF = (20224 :
to 6.65% per annum). The relevant finance costs are disclosed in NT1.94%Z26.65% 0 FFIR) 58 o 48

note 11. B A BRI -
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40 Related-party transactions (continued) 40 BBHR S (%)
(a) Financing arrangements (continued) (a) REZH (H)
(i) The Group had provided loans to its related parties, as follows: (i) FEEREGHTIEEEN - FIEHMT -

Loans to joint ventures BTEERRZER 1,546,522 566,585
Loans to non-controlling interests BT IEERES 2 EX 459,465 451,573
2,005,987 1,018,158
The interest income from the joint ventures and non-controlling HZE2023F12R831HILEE » kB
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2023 were AEDNRIREERBRENNERAD
HK$242,067,000 (2022: HK$132,910,000) and HK$11,525,000 Bl A242,067,0008 L (20224
(2022: HK$28,574,000) respectively. 132,910,000 7T) K& 11,525,000% T

(20224 : 28,574,00057T) ©

The balances are interest bearing at rates ranging from 5.00% to HEARIENT5.00%E8.00%H) F F =
8.00% per annum (2022: from 5.00% to 8.00% per annum). (2022% : N F5.00%Z8.00% &) 4 7
R)FE ©
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40 BBHR S (8)

The Group entered leases in respect of certain leasehold properties
from its related parties, with lease terms ranging from 1 year to
3 years. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the amounts
of rent payable by the Group under these leases to its ultimate
holding company, immediate holding company and associates were
HK$5,098,000 (2022: nil), HK$7,859,000 (2022: HK$13,306,000),
and HK$26,318,000 (2022: HK$29,368,000) respectively. The
interest expenses paid to its ultimate holding company, immediate
holding company and associates for the year ended 31 December
2023 were HK$357,000 (2022: nil), HK$14,000 (2022: HK$265,000),
and HK$557,000 (2022: HK$1,612,000) respectively.

The Group also entered into a lease arrangement with its ultimate
holding company as a lessor. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the rental income in respect of the lease arrangement was
HK$7,869,000 (2022: HK$8,246,000).

The prices for the above transactions were determined based on
mutual agreement between the Group and related parties.

Other related party transactions

U

The Group entered arrangements with its ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries in which the Group provides management
services (training and property management) on their behalf. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, the management fee income
in respect of the management services provided to the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries were HK$3,396,000 and
HK$2,660,000 (2022: HK$4,563,000 and HK$3,001,000).

(b) BB RRL

(

(i

)

(c)

(

)

)

AEEREBHANETHENET VA
4 AEHNT1E3F - HE2023F12
ASTHLTFE  A4EREZEHOE
mMERKERDR - BEEERDQF R
ZNEENHNEE 5 R A5,098,0008 T
(20224 : £) + 7,859,000 7T (2022
% 113,306,000/ 7T) 126,318,000/
7t (20224 : 29,368,000 7T) ° B &
2023F12A31HLEFE @ N FERK
TRAE C ERERARREE QAR
F BRI 5 R A357,0008 T (20224 :
) ~ 14,0007 7T (20224F : 265,000
70) K557,0005% 7T (20224 : 1,612,000
L) o

AEBEADBANEESEZRAA
SVHAERY - HE2023F12A31H
LFE FEAEZHENASKAL
7,869,000 7T (20224 : 8,246,0005%
L) °

TR BRTERRE R LY A
EHERET -

Al A Bk 5 22 5

AEBEEEZEERADREZRKE AR
AR Bl ARERBESREE
BRE (FIIRMEER) - HE2023F
12A31ALLEE  BRRKEERAA
LAZRMEARRREERBHEEEIW
A% 553,396,000 7T % 2,660,000 % T
(20224 : 4,563,000 7T 523,001,000
L) °
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40
(c)

Related-party transactions (continued)
Other related party transactions (continued)

(it

)

)

(vil)

The Group entered into arrangements with its ultimate holding
company in which the Group provides management services on
its behalf in respect of certain agricultural lands and property
development projects. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
management fee income in respect of these management services
was HK$66,000 (2022: HK$837,000).

The Group entered into the Development and Construction Services
Agreement with the parent of its non-controlling interest. The parent
of its non-controlling interest will provide development, construction,
marketing and other services to the Group. The service fee shall be
determined and accrued and payable by the Group to the parent of
its non-controlling interest. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
the cost in respect of these services was HK$59,192,000, included
value-added tax (2022: HK$84,979,000).

The Group also entered arrangements with its fellow subsidiaries in
which the Group receives event management services on their behalf.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the management fee in
respect of these event management services was HK$258,000 (2022:
HK$174,000).

The Group entered into the Digital Platform Development Agreements
and the Digital Platform Repair and Maintenance Services Agreements
with its ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries for the
provision of services of development and maintenance of digital
platforms and systems. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
service fee income in respect of the development and maintenance
services provided to the ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries were HK$8,818,000 and HK$12,190,000 respectively
(2022: HK$9,828,000 and HK$5,651,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group provided
development and construction services to the subsidiaries of its joint
venture, Tian An Cyber Park (Group) Co., Ltd, the relevant revenue
earned is HK$45,538,000 (2022: HK$142,821,000).

The prices for the above mentioned transactions with related parties
were determined based on mutual agreement between the Group and
related parties.

40
(c)

A 05 22 5 ()
Al B 5 28 5 (A1)

(i

)

()

(vi)

(vii)

AEEHESKRERAR VLY B
W AEBRERETRERM RYEH
BIEBREEERK - 21E2023F12A
NBLFE  BHZSERRBENERE
WA £66,000/ 7T (20224 : 837,00075
JT) °

AEEEEFERER B AR UAE
BEBRBRE o FERERZERAIER
AEBEIRMAE BR - SEREAR
%o REEERAEEBET Y ARSIA
FTEHEZFRER ZBAR - B E2023F
12A31BLLEE  BHEZERE 25
BRI R 559,192,000 7T (20224 :
84,979,000/87T) °

AEENEARZMBRARTYRH @ &
o AEERREEESEHEERE -
HE2023F12A31BILEE © 2558
EERBHEREA258,000/8 T (2022
£ : 174,000/ 7T) °

AEBHEZERIER DR RARKBA A
FREE T T A RZFHOME K 4EER
BmalLBFFEERER RIRES
RARETTREERBAR - HE2023
F12ANALEFE  BEARNGKRERA
ARRZN BB RE 2R &R ER
B2 RBERA S R 58,818,000 T &
12,190,000 7T (20224 : 9,828,000
7T} 5,651,000587T) °

HEZE2023F12A31BILFE - KEER
HAERAARLHEEY (58) 8RB A7
2B ARREMERRRS - FTRRZ
RIS A 45,538,00058 T (20224 :
142,821,000/87T) °

LB X5 2 B T E AR B K
THEBERETE
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40 BB 5 ()

Short term employee benefits SHRERA 14,398 21,751
Post-employment benefits RIREF 3,193 2,851
Share-based payments B fn 2 14508 229 676
Total compensation paid BEf& ez 17,820 25,278

The short-term benefits disclosed above was fully paid as at year end.

41 Statement of financial position and reserves movement of
the Company

41 AR BB AR YL R fak A By

IXFRERBEFEREREHLN -

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 324 270
Interests in subsidiaries NI NI £ 41,660,729 41,942 521
Investments in associates A NCT 13,424 13,424
41,674,477 41,956,215
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BAFRE - T REMEYRZIE 1,626 1,939
Other financial assets HiepEE 906 1,595
Cash and cash equivalents ReKBReEEY 555,037 996,220
557,569 999,754
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41 Statement of financial position and reserves movement of 41 AA®MBRNELFEEES (H)
the Company (continued)

2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FTAL
Current liabilities REEE
Bank and other borrowings RONEMEE 6,225,995 5,404,300
Other payables and accruals Hin e FIE R IERTE A 675,060 1,037,289
Due to the ultimate holding company JE A B AR AR AR A B FIA 4,575 37,186
Due to the immediate holding company e BRI A R FE 2,998,138 2,231,394
9,940,768 8,710,169
Net current assets RBEERE (9,383,199) (7,710,415)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREEE 32,291,278 34,245,800
Non-current liabilities FrBEE
Bank and other borrowings ROMEMEE 9,482,483 10,947,038
9,482,483 10,947,038
Equity i
Share capital and premium A K B 22,071,756 22,071,756
Other reserves Hfth e 4 108,523 108,294
Retained earnings {REB & F 628,516 1,118,712
Total equity ESAE 22,808,795 23,298,762
Total equity and non-current liabilities BoABERERBER 32,291,278 34,245,800
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the RAFHERTRRN2024FE3A27THRES
Board of Directors on 27 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf. @itk WREZE o
Dr. LU Hua Ms. SHI Xiaomei
aEBLT LB
Director Director

B S



41 Statement of financial position and reserves movement of

42

43

Shenzhen Investment Limited &332 %A 1R A 7]
Annual Report 3 2023

223

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R Y

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + B & & 8195 T A7)

the Company (continued)

41

AT B IR DL R ik 2 ) (A1)

Reserves movements of the Company 2R ) s £ 52
Other Retained
Share capital reserves earnings Total
[N Hitnf# s REEF Az
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TERT THET TERT
At 1 January 2023 72023F181H 22,071,756 108,294 1,118,712 23,298,762
Total comprehensive income for the ~ FRZEUE A
year - - 755,635 755,635
Cash dividends Heks - - (1,245,831)  (1,245,831)
Equity-settled share option expense  BARRAN ST 5 7 BE P 4
Fi - 229 - 229
At 31 December 2023 M2023F12A31H 22,071,756 108,523 628,516 22,808,795
At 1 January 2022 ®2022%181H 22,071,756 107,618 1,745,464 23,924,838
Total comprehensive income for the ~ FRZEUE A
year - - 353,969 353,969
Cash dividends Heks = = (978,867) (978,867)
Equity-settled share option expense  BARRZAN ST 5 7 BE AR 12
G = 676 - 676
Share repurchase M in B8 - - (1,854) (1,854)
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31H 22,071,756 108,294 1,118,712 23,298,762
Contingencies 42 HEHH
On 3 January 2024, Chengdu Fengze Investment Co., Ltd and Shum R2024F1 830 @ AL ZEEFERARRAF
Yip Terra (Holdings) Company Limited, both being non-wholly-owned 270 (58) R ERAR (MEARHE AR
subsidiaries of the Group received a statement of claim from the %@E’U#%ﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬂ)?i\ﬁ%ﬁk%ﬁﬁf%&AEiﬁ
Intermediate People’s Court of Chengdu City regarding the claims by FREHORFEFM - Eﬁﬁé@)l\%ﬁ%%ﬁ[ﬁﬁ
NS SRy # 5 AR i [ L TR b
Sichuan Haofu Industrial Co., Ltd. (the “Litigation”) regarding the disputes “?g’;ﬁf}}mgiglﬁﬁé%JL;)}'EE%E;%
. . o . o . mAEAHRENRR ([FF3 C BRESHEL
in earnings distribution over the investment of “198" Congshu Area in m”jﬁ_ 3 \% N 2 %iw
Chenghua district, Chengdu, with a claims amount of approximately 22BTARE - REBBERABRDARAR
RMB220 million é}h ngd F, ngze Investment Co., Ltd and Shum Yi A (RB) B ARAACRRAHENER
T PSIEE Reitzes Mlissiiat ey o s S LEEEEFARENBNREAEE
Terra (Ho|d|ng§) Cpmpany Lmlntefj have engaged externallll Iegal advisers to DAEREN - BEBRIE  SEEZARN
handle the Litigation, and will rigorously defend the Litigation to protect FeUARERNLEEREATHTEZE o
the legitimate interest of the Group. Based on the current assessment,
management considers that the Litigation has no material adverse financial
impact on the operations of the Group.
Subsequent events 43 WRFH

Subsequent to the end of the year, the board of the directors proposed a
final dividend of HK7.00 cents per share. Further details are disclosed in
note 14.

RAFEERE EXCRIRNRAAREE
7,008l o E—FFERERME4
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44  EEREA Al
AT AR2023F12A31 B EHNBAREES -
ZEARDHAERETAR ¢

44 Particulars of principal subsidiaries
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023, all of
these are limited liability companies:

Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) ~ PRC RMB800,000,000 75% 75% 25% 25%  Property investment and
Co., Ltd. (c &) development in the PRC
p?%ﬁ%?? (%) kirER HE AR#800,000,0007C 75% 75% 25% 25% RAERENERERAE

AR (c&e
Shum Yip Pengji Holdings ~ PRC RMB1,032,050,000 100% 100% - - Property investment and
Co., Ltd. (a &e) development in the PRC
%TE%M%E )(%) BRAR  HE AR1,032,050,0007 100% 100% - - RERENFRARFAE
a&e
Shum Yip Investment PRC US$710,000,000 100% 100% - - Investment Holding in the
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. PRC
(@&e)
p@%}gﬁﬁ )( ) BRAT  hE 710,000,003 100% 100% - - ReEREREAER
ade
Shum Yip Southern Land ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% - - Property development in the
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. PRC
@@&e)
RRETHE (RI)AR 4B AEBS0000000%  100%  100% - - RPEGENERE
A (ade
Shum Yip Taifu Logistics ~ PRC RMB323,799,552 98% 98% 2% 2%  Operation of warehouses
Group Holdings Co., Ltd. and property development
(b) in the PRC
RERENREERNER AR¥323,799,5527C 98% 98% 2% 2% RPEREELEERNE
27 (b) kS
Shum Yip (Shenzhen) PRC RMB30,000,000 100% 100% - - Property management in the
Property Management PRC
Limited (d)
%ﬁﬁ %;’Téﬁwl)) NEER HE AR#30,000,00070 100% 100% - - RPERENEER
7] (d
Xinwang Industrial PRC US$100,744,000 95% 95% 5% 5%  Property development in the
Development (Shenzhen) PRC
Co., Ltd. (a)
TREXEE (M) ER + 100,744,000% T 95% 95% 5% 5% REBEEENERE

27 (a)



Shenzhen Investment Limited RIERABBERF 2025
Annual Report 3§ 2023 'Q“‘

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5475) - FrE £ B ETIR)

44 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 44 FEHE AR FE (5)

Shenzhen Kezhigu PRC RMB784,528,950 100% 100% - - Property development and
Investment Limited property investment in
(b) the PRC
ﬁ%ﬂ(llﬁ)ﬂw&’ﬁﬁ BAR HE AE#784,528,9507C 100% 100% - - B";F %%%%Ffﬁ%&%%
b 5%
Shenzhen Nongke Holdings  PRC RMB200,000,000 100% 100% - - Property development and
Company Limited property investment in
() the PRC
ﬁéﬂ(llﬂ)i%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ HE AE#200,000,0007T 100% 100% - = %z %E%%ﬁaﬁé‘é‘&%%
b L >
Shenzhen Shum Yip Sky PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - - Property development in the
Park Co., Ltd. (b) PRC
i?%ﬂ(ll ﬁ) RETHARRR  HE AK#100,000,0007T 100% 100% - - RPERENERE
b
Ma'anshan Shenye Real PRC RMB70,000,000 100% 100% - - Property development in the
Estate Co., Ltd. (b) PRC
%%u;%%méﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ i AK%70,000,00070 100% 100% - - RERENEFRE
b
Shenzhen real estate PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% - - Property development in the
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (b) PRC
%&%Eﬁhﬂ (BM) ERAR HE AK%50,000,00070 100% 100% - - RPERENEFEE
b
Zhongshan Shenye PRC RMB1,000,000,000 44% 44% 56% 56%  Property investment and
Wansheng Investment development in the PRC
Co., Ltd. (b&f)
PUTAEEBRERR  HE AK1,000,000,0007T 44% 44% 56% 56% RAEHSENERERAE
2 (b&f)
Shenzhen Nongke PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - Property management in the
Dongcheng Real Estate PRC
Co., Ltd. (b)
AIMENEHELER  HH AK%10,000,00070 100% 100% - - RERENEER
28 (b)
Shenzhen Jinzhi Logistics ~ PRC RMB100,000,000 53% 53% 47% 47%  Business services in the
Development Co., Ltd. (b) PRC

%&%ﬁ%éﬁmﬁ%&%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ ki ARH100,000,0007C 53% 53% 47% 4%  RPEREEBRE
b
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44  Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued)

Chengdu Shenye Tairan PRC RMB50,000,000
Huacheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (b)

RBTARRRENFHE THE AR#50,000,00070
REBRAR (b)
Shenzhen Shenye Minghong PRC RMB100,000,000

Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (b)

FIMEEREHEREE $E AE100,000,0007
BAE (b)

Suzhou New Development ~ PRC RMB800,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd.

(b)

ﬁ@%&%&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ HE AK800,000,00070
b
Shenzhen Yunwan Real PRC RMB10,000,000
Estate Co., Ltd. ()
%%I\T;?%E%ﬁlﬁﬂﬂ HE AK%10,000,0007
b
Nanjing Shenwan Real PRC RMB10,000,000
Estate Co., Ltd. ()
ﬁ?%&ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂﬂ i AK#10,000,0007
b
Shum Yip Land Co., Ltd. (b) PRC RMB1,807,600,000
REEMERLA (b) H AK¥1,807,600,0007T
Shenzhen Mingsheng Real ~ PRC RMB10,000,000
Estate Co., Ltd. ()
MMAERBHEERE P AE#10,000,0007
£27 (b)
Shenzhen Huaju Real Estate  PRC RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd. (b)
MMASERNERR P AK#10,000,0007

2l (b)

100%

100%

65%

65%

100%

100%

51%

51%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
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100%

100%
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65%
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100%

100%

51%

51%

e 3y G AE )

35%

35%

49%

49%

49%

49%

35%

35%

49%

49%

49%

49%

Property development in the
PRC

RPERENFRE

Property development in the
PRC

RPERSENERE

Property development in the
PRC

RPBUEENERE

Property development in the
PRC

RPERENFRE

Property development in the
PRC

R B S MERE

Investment Holding in the
PRC

ReERZREER

Property development in the
PRC

RPBUEENERE

Property development in the
PRC

RPERENFRE
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44 EEMOEA W (8)

44 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued)

Shenzhen Jinghua Display ~ PRC RMB36,000,000 70% 70% 30% 30%  Manufacturing in the PRC
Electronics Co., Ltd.
%ﬂl\l?ﬁﬁ%ﬁé%%ﬁlﬁ M AR 36,000,000 70% 70% 30% 0% RPELERE
7] (d
Shenye Center Development PRC RMB37,919,000 100% 100% - - Property development in the
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. PRC
(b)
Eﬂ%q%%%ﬁ (R ER  HE AR#37,919,0007 100% 100% - - RRERENERE
227 (b
Taizhou Shenye Real Estate  PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - Property development in the
Co., Ltd. (b) PRC
RMAEEZERAA () +E AR10,000,0007T 100% 100% - - RhERENERE
Shanghai Shenjiadong Real  PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - Property development in the
Estate Co., Ltd. (b) PRC
t??%%%ﬁ%ﬁl‘ﬁﬂﬂ HE AK10,000,0007C 100% 100% - - RPERENFHRE
b
Shenzhen Nongke Real PRC RMB30,000,000 100% 100% - - Property development in the
Estate Co., Ltd. (b) PRC
%%Ilﬁ)%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁl HEl AR30,000,0007T 100% 100% - - RhERENERE
b
Brightful Investment Holding Hong Kong USD50,000 100% 100% - - Investment Holding in
Limited HongKong China
Brightful Investment Holding &35 50,000%7C 100% 100% - - RPEEELSRARR
Limited
MEDOS LIMITED Hong Kong USD50,000 100% 100% - - Investment H%Iding in
HongKong China
MEDOS LIMITED 30 50,000% 7T 100% 100% - - RPBEEUEREER
Shenzhen Taiyuntong Real ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49%  Property development in the
Estate Development PRC
Co., Ltd. ()
i AK10,000,0007C 51% 51% 49% 49% REEIEMERE

ATFERFHENSA
&2 (b)
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44 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued)

Nominal value of
issued and fully

Place of paid share capital/ Proportion of equity interest
Name registration paid-in capital held by the Group
BRORMERE/ FEBREZ
£ Fialisuts BAEAEE 5
2023 2022
2023% 20224
Wuhan Shenye Tairan Real  PRC RMB130,000,000 100% 100%
Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (b)
RETAZRARIE HE AK%130,000,0007 100% 100%
mEER A (b)
Shenzhen Shenye Tairan PRC RMB249,800,000 100% 100%
New Era Co., Ltd.
(b)
ATAERAFER HE ARH249,800,0007C 100% 100%
BRA7 (b)
Shenzhen International PRC RMB10,000,000 50% 50%
Qianhai Real Estate
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(b)
RERAEEE (RY)  HE AK#10,000,0007 50% 50%
BBRA (b)
Shenzhen Women and PRC RMB82,000,000 99% 99%
Children Building
Operation Management
Co., Ltd. (b)
MTETAEES e AK#82,000,0007 99% 99%
EEBRAR (b)

44 FEWEA AR (8)

Proportion of ordinary
shares held by non-  Principal activities and
controlling interests  place of operation

FERERERLZ
EERHH TEXBREBLY

2023 2022
20235 20225

- - Property development in the
PRC

- - RPBEESHEHE

- - Property management in the
PRC

- - RPEESNXER

50% 50%  Property development and
property investment in
the PRC

50% 50% RPEXFNERERDE
K&

1% 1%  Property management in the
PRC
1% 1% RAERSNEER

(@) Established in the PRC as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.

(b)  Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise with limited liability.
(c) Established in the PRC as a Sino-foreign joint venture enterprise.

(d) Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise limited by shares.
(e)  Subsidiaries directly held by the Company.

()  Although the Group's effective ownership interest in this company was
less than 50%, the management considers that the Group controls
this company through more than 50% voting power in the board or
shareholders' meeting of this company and therefore this company is
accounted for as subsidiary of the Group.

The English names of the Mainland China companies referred to above in
this note represent management's best efforts in translating the Chinese
names of those companies as no English names have been registered or
available.

@ REREKIAIEBEEDCE -

b) PHBEKZABRERETTE -

€ REPBEKIARIGEDRE -

o REEKZAEBRRBRHERAT -

€ BARREEFEZNBAR -

) BEAEERZLAMNEBRMAEERSD
R50%  EERERABANEEBBNZLDA
NESSHRRASHEAS0%A LHERE
BERGIZAR - Bt - ZOREALERE
RHBATALR -

AAEHATMEREE LT - AN E LA

R ZPEAAERARNEBRAREEEERR
ABENBELSARNTXEH
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
45.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

@

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the group (refer to note 45.2).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case
where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

45

TR Kl BRI

451nﬁﬁﬁm@ﬁmﬂ

@

(b)

KB 2 A
WERRORARBEREEHENMEE
E(ERERUER) - EXAREAER
BAEBE2EZERELZAEEHL
%ﬂ&ﬁ ENBEBRITEERNUTZE AR

¥ ARERZHZER - MBLARBE
ﬂ%%%x$%lzﬁtiﬁéﬁomg
AR BRI BRRREH -

AREERKREEEERBAMETS
ATRIE (2RIME45.2)

DRAZHEZRS - SERABR 52 5%
RABHWE T AL - RERBBENT
NEH - BRIERFBEBEEACEREE
HHAE - B RRIETRRBREEE
HEE - URREASEMEAZBRE
—5 e

W%“ﬁ%F&%\$m¥Th%ﬁ il
MRRBRER  2ENER - BEEPR
EABRRKPEBZS -

BEAE
BENREMEASEUEABAEAYE
ﬁﬁﬂ“ﬂ%T%A“ﬂ%ma?°*&
BRAT - ARERFE20%E50% K ZH# o
REE AR ZIRE RN TR AR E T
REREEAR -
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)
45.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (continued)

(c)

(@

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method,
after initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognize
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in note 45.9.

45

oAt 7

TEER G BRE ()

45.1 A R g RN (4)

(c)

(@

ABZH
REEAHHRELAS 1 BWARYS
\BARANRARS BB AEELA
BT - ZHBRARERAZ DA NN
RFIRELE - TR A RIEERLE -
AREEFEABARIONE - HAE

EREEERF °

BERNERA MBI KRR
AGEHERANE ©

g2

REBEREIE  HAMRRR AR
HBETEBANBRARRAEE A
WW%%WW%%%W&%%IKE@%
AMEBEDES BRI S R A
MRS o DR ERBEATRASAT
B B B B A A -

A EEEGEEEARRENBREN X
BAERZERNES (BEREMNELE
BERRARETER)  AAKET SRR
E—FBR  BRIFCRRS-ERARR
ERIELAR o

ARERABELARARRAZBRS
eABARERER R B SR RIS
FULH - RERSENTREH - B
BT T
o BAABRUBAS ORI BACER
BB AT . AN R RS
SR H o

Em AR E REEREMN T 45. 9P
RETRERR
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)
45.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (continued)

(€

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

45

oAt 7

TR G BORE ()

45.1 B R g R R (4)

(€

FERERE

REBR T EHRAZ BRI R
XHBEEAEEREREANLS ° %
BREEREYEBUTREIHERE LR
EORAE - ARBRERKHER ﬂmﬁ%%
& o FERESHEREEIADAHRD
WRERZEMZBERARAREFEA
b 2 EBMERE AER -

AR E R R RIEFE - KFZHERE

AE mﬂﬁﬂtﬁhéAﬁkﬁihﬁﬁ
A AR ERZANRERZRALD

AEEHTE  MEEEZHINEER
BR - REARARIIGRZLR - AR
RAISERHEENREREMS - ZAANE
RATEIREE © W5 - ZAEEMEE
KaEr A ERERNEAMABROLE
BCERHERBEENRBRAR - &
RARAAER AR NERNER LS
BEN I RERAABRZERTERE
EERFTIR /fFT 2 SR -

iR —EAE DA E R ANEREE
R MERE KFAEHEREATE
AERRNAnEARERANSHRES -
ELPIpBEH S BERE (NER) -
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)

45.2 Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred
o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
o equity interests issued by the group

e  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Concentration test as prescribed by HKFRS 3 “Business Combination”
has been applied by the Group to consider whether the set of activities
and assets of subsidiaries acquired are individually businesses. If the fair
value of total net assets acquired substantially equals to the fair value of
an identifiable asset acquired, the transaction would be accounted for as
asset acquisition instead of business acquisition. The consideration is then
directly allocated to the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

A A R A ORI (B0)

45.2 #H A

AEERBUBETERAEEBAMAR -
mEwmESRERERELEAMEE - WE—
B R R NERNERR

s RMBREEARE
o HRKBEBHMERAMELNAR
o AEEMBITHE

o HARBLBELNEFNEEHAENA
fE R

o MBAREMEAFERENRAE

R 6 G AT URBE B ] 85 B 2 AT AR R Y
BEREARE  RREEERNRRER
& EDHPIIMERIRI - RREREEHIU
BRAE LA ERHERE R E A RREEER
Rl B EFE At PIRER N B R AR B R A E I IF
TR

ARECRAEENBREEMEINR [ XHA
Bl R ENER R - NERKEHER
AN —RIEHREERT RERES - WA
YEEEFERBNANERCKBARGEE
MARBEARES  AIRZBIERBELRER
EBRBAR - ERERRABERIEKER
BRI AT BABERAENRE

WERARARELRH -
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies

(continued)

45.2 Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the:

o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

LA A O A ORI (BD)

45.2 EH A ()

THI&AE :
o EEAE
o RUBEBOEMIFZRERSE X

o RNBRKBEREMNEMRAEZNKE
BHRRRE -

BHAKERNBAEEFENRRER - HE
BARBIEK - i RS BERTRBERHA
BABEFENALE  AREEEHER—R
HAEBEEENERRER o

MEMBPRERBOEREET - BREREN
SEUAEWIR AR AHORE - FERLD
MAXREROEEREXR - AL ERMN
AT - AARBUREAREGRUEERLN
ME - ZARAREFRARZAERAE - BR
REBAGHNESREKENGEELRE A
REZEHNEDED

fis 75 A 6 0 B BUETT - RIS AT A
Wi T A B R X R B B R B AR W B
MENEAAENE - RERENFENELE
HER R BRI R B P HER o



234  Shenzhen Investment Limited R AE R A A

Annual Report 3% 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Ai A B R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + Fr & & S5 T A7)

45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)

45.2 Business combinations (continued)
Disposals of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity
is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. It means the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

45.3 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment,
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

45.4 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The Group’s most senior executive management assesses the financial
performance and position of the Group and makes strategic decisions of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations. They have been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker, consists of the chief
executive officer, the chief financial officer and the managers for corporate
planning.

A A R A ORI (B0)

45.2 B A (8)

HERB LA

EAKETBRAENE  EERNTARE
BEaRNAEEHRERSHAEEANE - K
HENEDHERSRTHERD ° 5 A& ERNH
E0T - RERAIRERMEBENREERN
5 AAERNGEREE - Ut - ZAEEM
rERETRAERERNEAHRENAEE
EEEHEHRBEENAERAR - EEKE
ZAEE2ERETRDNBREN D BER
HREBEEREENBRELNEE A
BRI 2 s o

=]

45.3 B B mE

A AREZERAMBRAETR - KATE
REEMEREHERR - MBARMEEHA
ARER R ERHBREAE

A BAR REEL RS BBHERARN
BRREHR 2ARERRNIHLZRENES
PHEREAZFREBRREUREEFE (B
BEE) NEAMBRRAZEREE - ARNRE
ZERBHAHZEREETRERNA

45.4 4

BENBERRAEFEERRERENARE
ER—BRAARS -

AEBERSTHEEASFEAEENGTERR
Rk - WL R AR B AR FB AR KR DA
BREFERBELEBERR - FEARSTR
EEANEBERESTIELERRE - ATHA
B MBBERCRRELEAN -
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)

45.4 Segment reporting (continued)
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

45.5 Foreign currency translation

@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (HK$), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in
a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within other gains.

A A O A ORI (BD)

454 HRHEE ()

BREAKENHRABE2MEMME DS T4r
a @#”ﬂﬂﬁﬁM%ﬁﬁ%HEm&%%
HE -  EEREUE RPBERSER - 58
EmFREREAERANAZREERELER
Blo KEDDMRARFE RO FE%E - A
FERERER TRE

45.5 i

@) DREFISHER
AEERERUBHRRMINBEFER
LEEMETELERE CER ([N g
W) FTE o REBBHRRUET (A1)
SIER - B ARABZIIERIIRE o

‘ﬂﬂ?v i}

TREZERETABSYEER B8
BUBRREANERNERAZNEER

HE -

) RZREE
IERFHRRFEBNERBE AT
B - AZERHHEREFRELSLE
DN EZ EBEERBBEMEE ZE
HEE - —BRRBETER - WZERS
HEERBSREWIRAEREETE
B ERRNEIINEBRE TR —

AlgnEmPIRIE -

EEERBOMNERG REBERENBRRA
MBI BR o PR A FE 5 Yeas
BREFEEEERERANEMTES
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)
45.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (continuea)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each consolidated statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit
or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)
45.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(@

Group companies (continuea)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency translation differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

45.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and any impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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45.6

Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Ownership interest in over the

leasehold land lease terms
Buildings 30 -50 years
Building improvements 5 years
Plant and machinery 4 -10 years
Transportation equipment 5 -10 years
Furniture, fitting and equipment 3 -10 years

Furniture, fittings and equipment include assets received in the form of
free store fit outs are recognised at their fair value. These assets and other
leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life
or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use the assets beyond the
lease term.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 45.9).

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of construction or
installation incurred of property, plant and equipment less any impairment
losses. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time the relevant assets are completed and put into use.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)
45.7 Intangible assets

@

()

Gooawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”"), or Groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or Group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill is not amortized but its impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Concession right

The Group adopts the construction and operation transfer method
to participate in the operation of infrastructure facilities. The Group
obtains the management right of the facility from the national
administrative department (contract awarding party) and participates
in the construction and operation of the facility. After the expiration of
the management rights, the Group shall hand over the relevant project
to the state administrative department.

If the contract stipulates that the Group has the right to collect fees
during a certain period of operation after the completion of the
relevant infrastructure facility, but the amount of fees is uncertain,
such right does not constitute an unconditional right to receive
cash, and the Group recognizes intangible assets when the relevant
construction costs are incurred. These costs are amortised over the
concession period of 40 years on a straight-line basis.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)
45.7 Intangible assets (continued)

(c)

(@

Computer software

Acquired computer software programmes are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over the estimated useful lives
of 5 to 10 years on a straight-line basis. Costs associated with
maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenditures that do not meet the
capitalised criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

45.8 Leases
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases various properties. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
These property lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
properties may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies

(continued)

45.8 Leases (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have
to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in
a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency
and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual
lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the Group entities use that rate as a
starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies

(continued)

45.8 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (note 6).
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the consolidated statement of financial position
based on their nature.

45.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each of each reporting
period.

45

A A TR A ORI (BD)

458 % (#)

45.9

EREERE—REAENEAFHIEES (U
REERE) NERENE - WAKEAERTE
TERER  AEREEELABEENER
FHME -

AEEERHEANCEEE ZRENARE
REARNEHERRMA (HE6) - RERKE
HERBINNREEXAFARBEENK
HE TREEPAZAREEERAES R
Ao BHEZEZAME S ARERBHRRK

I & A WA
EERERFH BE BN EESIRENHEE
MeEBVEERARE  LEBFETREN
Ao BREHHRAENRERTIREE
BAROEE - SRMAFEENEERTCR
RE - REBRRAENREERLETRD
CENZEER - THREEBEREENAAA
RHERAREREERETHNRTE - N
fRER - BERBYTHMNRERE CREE
HEf) ¢REBRESETHE - REEIC
SXRENFEREENSREHRIRER
R AR RE TR ©



45

Shenzhen Investment Limited FIIZRARAF 243

&

Annual Report 3 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 R MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + B & & 8195 T A7)

Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)

45.10 Impairment of financial assets

45.11

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECL") on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade and other receivables, loans to joint ventures and associates, cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash and bank deposits and financial
guarantee).

The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that
will result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”") represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. To
measure ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The ECL on these assets are
assessed using simplified expected credit loss model.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognizes lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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45.12

45.13

45.14

45.15

Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from buyers for properties sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a buyer, the Group obtains rights to
receive consideration from the buyer and assumes performance obligations
to transfer goods or provide services to the buyer. The combination of
those rights and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or a
net liability depending on the relationship between the remaining rights
and the performance obligations. The contract is an asset and recognised
as contract assets if the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the
measure of the remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the contract
is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of the
remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining
rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with
a buyer as contract acquisition cost within contract assets if the Group
expects to recover those costs.

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies

(continued)

45.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company's equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable
to the owners of Company until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effect is included in equity attributable to the owners of
Company.

45.17 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets.

45.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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45.19

45.20

Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement financial position
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity
issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the
liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss,
which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)

45.21 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

@

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property that is
measured at fair value is determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)
45.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary
differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special tax
deductions for investments in qualifying assets or in relation to
qualifying expenditure (e.g. the Research and Development Tax
Incentive regime in Oneland or other investment allowances). The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits, which means that
the allowance reduces income tax payable and current tax expense.
A deferred tax asset is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are
carried forward as deferred tax assets.

45 HMEEE R A BORBEE (51

45.21 EH BB A (1)

(b)

(c)

ELHEH (&)

fis 2% 2 ] B 122 1 42 (21 % B = R MO B ) %
FEERUEIENAERSRERD - A
TR/ ERBRERAERRE ZHR
TR ZEHABTERRAEREE

BRATAMTEANKERHBEEERR
BEE - MEEHBHHER—HEKE
AR - AIEEMSHAERRER THE
B - HERBAZT A RTEMNER
ERELRFEEELEXEREER AR
REAE  NENHBRAERMERRGBHE
# e

R RERERAR BT - ERH
oA R BA ARE AR
R 2 EEABEARS © ki
RT - HEBS AR K2 ARG RS
REEER -

/

7.

REBBREVHFER
AEERNRRARHNAEREEREN
NRERAXBFERAIRBERR (WX
MIAERBEESHERAMRER) -
TEBERABBEBARARKESR - AR
RBERERMNAEHREPRER
ERBIEEE DL AEE B A HAERENR
BEENARGRGELHER



Shenzhen Investment Limited Z [ AR 22
Annual Report 3 2023

@

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ 5 A O

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + B & & 8195 T A7)

45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)
45.22 Employee benefits

@

(b)

(c)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits
and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave that are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service. These
obligations are therefore measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage
and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods
of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market
yields at the end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match, as closely as possible,
the estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months
after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes, including
defined contribution pension plans and post-employment medical
plans.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to offset existing contributions under the defined
contribution schemes.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)
45.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(@

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by
the Group before the normal retirement date, or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The
Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following
dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring
that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to present value.

45.23 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans, under which the Group receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (including shares options and awarded
shares) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the equity instruments is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments granted:

including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and

remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies

(continued)

45.23 Share-based payments (continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services
in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant date.

The grant by the Company of equity instruments over its equity instruments
to the employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investments in subsidiaries, with a corresponding credit
to equity in the parent entity accounts.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the share options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.

45.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.
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45 Summary of other potentially material accounting policies
(continued)

45.24 Provisions (continued)
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

45.25 Interest income
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

45.26 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

45.27 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors of the Company, where appropriate.

45.28 Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised in respect of the financial
guarantee provided by the Group to the banks for property purchasers.

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee liabilities. After initial recognition, such liabilities are measured
at the higher of the present value of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation and the amount initially recognised
less cumulative amortisation of fees recognised.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the consolidated
statement of financial position when, and only when, the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.
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Schedule of Major Properties
FEYHEER

Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

S — ARE R R LAy H R R 2 bR

Property interest held for future development

AHERARENEER

Terra Wuhan Bio Valley Project Donghu Gaoxin, Wuhan, Residential 52.54% 93,201 260,000 Unscheduled
Hubei AEEE

FARELYARE LA RE TR =z

Chaohu Royal Spring Garden, North Bantang Economic Residential 100.00% 78,827 28,997 Unscheduled
Development Zone, L)
Chaohu, Hefei, Anhui

EMHRHEILR ZRARETERLS =z
RBRER

Chaohu Royal Spring Garden, South Bantang Economic Residential 100.00% 81,637 22,085 Unscheduled
Development Zone, L)
Chaohu, Hefei, Anhui

EMHREmER ZHARETERLS F=x
RBRER

Taizhou Tiande Lake Park, East High-Tech Zone, Residential 100.00% 146,738 250,998 2026
Taizhou, Jiangsu

FMKBARERA IHAFMNT =R FE

Shum Yip Luxiyunjing Yuelu, Changsha, Hunan Residential 100.00% 61,327 83,719 2025

REBRER MEERITEER TE

Kashi Residential Project (Land Plot 2) Economic Development Residential 100.00% 17,129 25,694 Unscheduled
Zone, Kashi, Xinjiang RAFE
Uygur Autonomous Region

BAEEER GiR=) HBEETREARRMAT FE

Kashi Residential Project (Land Plot 3) Economic Development Residential 100.00% 25,783 38,664 Unscheduled
Zone, Kashi, Xinjiang RAFE
Uygur Autonomous Region

BAEEER GiR=) HEETREARRMAT T
EEREE

Phase Il of the First Portion of Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Off. 100% 11,354 159,250 2029

Chegongmiao Renewal Project, North
BAB—E AR BRE M EHE [EERE YN
Land Plot A811-0347, Longhua, Longhua, Shenzhen, Complex 100% 10,118 72,850 2026
Shenzhen Guangdong

R EEEREAS11-0347 4358 BREMIMEER BE

Land Plot G28, Xisanwei, Zhongshan Cuiheng New District, Residential 50% 99,039 198,077 2027
Zhongshan, Guangdong

FILFE=E G285k BRETILTRFHE F=x

Hanlin Road No. 18 North Land Plot Shenhe, Shenyang, Liaoning ~ Complex 100% 16,039 24,210 2026

B85 ILIIBIAR BELBEGTLAE BA
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Schedule of Major Properties
FEYHEER

Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

B — AR B oA H AR B SRR

Property interest held under development

FERRD 2 WEER
Shum Yip Chuangzhi Building Longgang, Shenzhen, Industrial 100.00% 8,436 38,814 2024
Guangdong
REEIBERE BEREFmaER E¥
Shum Yip Time Mansion Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Commercial 100.00% 6,015 41,990 2024
R LGS ERE R mEAR [EES
Shum Yip Yinying Square Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong  Industrial 97.68% 8,807 91,045 2025
RERERBES BRER M BN E¥
Shum Yip Natural City Pingshan, Shenzhen, Residential 100.00% 66,857 307,500 2024
Guangdong
REUKFAEE ERERITTUE fr
Shum Yip Nansha Hengli Island Hengli Island, Nansha, Residential 100.00% 66,277 232,445 2024
DH0502 Project Guangzhou, Guangdong
RERDEESDH0502E THEE BREEMTRYREES (%
Garden Hills Zhongkai Development Residential 100.00% 93,317 110,530 2024
Zone, Huizhou, Guangdong
FIlEs BREBMTIHERER =
Wanlin Huafu Huicheng, Huizhou, Residential 100.00% 72,922 225,060 2025
Guangdong
BER BREEMNTERE =
Huizhou Shum Yip Cloud Huicheng, Huizhou, Residential 100.00% 44,678 129,519 2024
Mansion Guangdong
BMNAREEEMER EREBMTEERE =
Shum Yip Zhongshan Future Cuiheng New District, Complex 50.00% 668,974 1,553,435 2028
Gate Zhongshan, Guangdong
RERILARRZ P BRETILTRFHE HE
Hong Kong Tuen Mun Project Tuen Mun, New Territories, ~ Residential 50.00% 12,205 43,938 2024
Hong Kong SAR
EEHPIER ERERITRERREM [Eas3
Terra Chengdu Yihu Rose Qingbaijiang, Chengdu, Residential 52.54% 46,697 163,441 2024
Garden Phase 4 Sichuan
RARBIRBORSE () mIEK BT EEILE (e
Shum Yip Taiyue Mansion Chenghua, Chengdu, Sichuan  Residential 75.05% 22,801 105,522 2024
IRERMAT 70118 BB AR EE [ e
Chengdu Qingbaijiang Shumyip Qingbaijiang, Chengdu, Complex 97.68% 113,668 284,126 2024
Taifu Square Sichuan

KBBEBLARXFEES M) EKBHERIR =8
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Schedule of Major Properties

Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

B — ARE A B R A BRI SRR

T EY R

Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 4
AABRE M

The Cloud Mansion

TER

Longgang Universiade Land Plot
B REMIR

Shum Yip Luxury Mansion
R

Jiangyin Technology Innovation Park

TRREE
Chengdu Longquanyi Shum Yip City
RERERBRFWIAR

Shenyang Hanlin Road Land Plot 18
BB 1855081 B

Hexinan Land Plot G111
AERGI11EE

Upper Coast
EBETLE
Shum Yip Park Mansion
REBIRT

Shanghai Jiading Shenjia
Hydrogen Valley
HETEERAREA

Shum Yip Tairong Mansion

REFE
Ma'anshan Cihu Industrial Land Plot
BRILZENTE M0

Shanghai International Automobile City
Residential Project

LETRRAEREEER

Wuchang, Wuhan, Hubei
WA RETR 2R

High-tech Zone, Taizhou,
Jiangsu

THEFMNTRNE

Longgang, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
BRERYITEER

Longhua, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
BREFMEER

Jiangyin, Wuxi, Jiangsu
LA ESH TR

Longquanyi, Chengdu,
Sichuan
o)l & Rk E T RE R B

Shenyang, Liaoning
Jianye, Nanjing, Jiangsu
THARERTEBE

Nanshan, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
BRERMELE

Guangming, Shenzhen,
Guangdong

BERERIITH AR
Jiading, Shanghai

LEmEER

Chenghua, Chengdu, Sichuan

)& R AR E

Cihu High-Tech Zone,
Ma'anshan, Anhui

ZRHERRLTRNRNR

Jiading, Shanghai
HEmEER

Residential
=

Residential
FE
Residential
FE
Residential
Tx
Industrial
I%
Complex
SHA

a

/6

Complex
BE

Residential
FE
Residential
FE
Residential
FE
Complex
e
Residential
FE
Industrial
I%

Residential

e

52.54%

100.00%

51.00%

51.00%

100.00%

51.00%

100.00%

100.00%

51.00%

100.00%

100.00%

75.05%

100.00%

100.00%

29,322

19,365

29,360

26,114

81,235

36,211

12,134

22,549

51,350

18,840

44,728

80,333

67,108

43,129

93,115

40,667

153,427

135,790

135,450

151,410

46,112

63,137

210,040

88,547

102,874

224,624

111,221

86,257

2024

2024

2025

2024

2023-2024

2024

2024

2024

2025

2024

2024

2025

2024

2025

W&
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Schedule of Major Properties
EEYERL

Group II — Property interest held by the Group for sales

BB — ARMEF A RS

Interest to
Property Address Use the Group TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion year
A%E BEEER \

L/ ik A Frit e (FAHK) ERESR
Shunde Shum Yip City Shunde, Foshan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 46,101.57 2012-2017
JEB R BRAHILTIEZRE BEREE
Xiyue City Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 9,997.5 2012-2017
= BEREEMT AEREE
Saina Bay Heyuan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 4,107.63 2012
EWE BRETRT BEREE
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma'anshan, Anhui Residential 99.77% 9,666.58 2013-2019
BEILREER ZHEFELT =
Yihu Rose Garden Chengdu, Sichuan Com. & Res. 52.54% 10,609.35 2013-2020
(Eibse T 79)11& Rk &R T BEREE
UpperHills Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and House used 100% 74,389.43 2014, 2016,

for industrial R&D 2018
wE R BRE AT HE - BLER

EEXMEERE
Taifu Square Phase 1 Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Res. 97.68% 105,245.03 2019
RERES1H BRERT ¥ WOEREE
Sky Park Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Res. 100% 78,494.55 2019
RER BRARIm BE - BRAEREE
Shum Yip Gaobangshan No. 1 Garden Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 100% 174.37 2019
=ELRER BRABMT F=E
Shum Yip Rui Cheng Phase 3.2 Changsha, Hunan Residential 80% 6,801.16 2020
REBWI.2H WEARDT £
Shum Yip Garden Hills Phase 3.2.1 Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 100% 67,896.2 2020
REFINFZE3.2.15 BREABMT TE
Shum Yip West Lake Sanli Phase 2.1 Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 100% 8,284.16 2020
AEABR=E2.158 BRABMT £
Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2.2 (North) Ma'anshan, Anhui Residential 99.77% 6,824.89 2020
BRILREEMH2EEILE ZEEFRILT T=E
Chaohu Royal Spring Garden Bantang Economic Development Zone, Residential 100% 3,460 2015-2020

Chaohu, Hefei, Anhui
EREREE RHESETERSEEREE (A%
Shum Yip Cloud Center Guangming, Shenzhen, Guangdong  Residential 65% 547,449 2022-2023
RETE BRAFIIMEHE £
Garden Hills Zhongkai, Development Zone, Residential 100% 345,872 2022
Huizhou, Guangdong

FILE5 BREBNTIHSHER FE



Group II — Property interest held by the Group for sales

B — AR I R Z S

Property

m

Parkview Bay
F2H

Shum Yip Upper Life
AREFELE

Shum Yip Qinglong Mansion
REFR LY

Wanlin Lake
S

Shum Yip Splendid City
REBFER

Shum Yip Heron Mansion
REEAT

Shum Yip Boyuan
REEE

Shum Yip Zhifeng Building
REBERE

Terra Licheng

BN

Nanhu Rose Bay
RS

Shum Yip Four Seasons Mansion
REMFLE

Wanlin Hua fu
EMER

Shum Yip Starry Lakeshore
RENRER

Foshan Lishui Bustling City
Y e 2

Shum Yip Longwan Mansion
RERELR

Shenma East China Industrial
Technology Industrial Park
RRERTENRERE

Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2

BRILARRER

Shum Yip Dongling
RERE

Shum Yip Taifu Kechuang Square
RERENEIES

Address
b

Shenzhen, Guangdong

ERERT

Nanjing, Jiangsu
TEARERT

Nanjing, Jiangsu

TEHEERT

Huizhou, Guangdong
BREBMT

Taizhou, Jiangsu

TEHEFMM

Changsha, Hunan
MEERDT

Chengdu, Sichuan
Py lE=yo % i

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRERT

Shenzhen, Guangdong

ERERT

Wuhan, Hubei
LA ET

Chengdu, Sichuan
Py lE=yo % i

Huicheng, Huizhou, Guangdong
EREZMNTEHE

Songshan Lake, Dongguan,
Guangdong
BRAERZM R

Nanhai, Foshan, Guangdong

ERAHLUTEER

Jianye, Nanjing, Jiangsu
TEFEERDEHE

Yushan, Ma'anshan, Anhui
ZHEFHLITHLE

Yushan, Ma'anshan, Anhui
ZHEFRLITRLE

Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRAERTHEME

Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong

EREMIHENE

Use
Ji:f 3

Com. & Res.
BEREE

Residential
=

Residential
FE

Com. & Res.
AERkEE

Residential
FE

Residential
=

Com. and Off.
BERPRE

Com. and Off.
BERPRE

Residential
=

Residential
FE

Residential
=

Residential
=

Residential
FE

Residential
T=

Industrial
I%

Residential
FE

Com. and Off.
HERNRAE

Off.

NS
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Schedule of Major Properties
FEYERL

Interest to
the Group

TEE
i

50%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

88.04%

51.62%

75.05%

75.05%

75.05%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

97.68%

TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion
BEHER

year

(PT3K) EBESR
4,166.52 2021
31,192.84 2021
20,396.82 2021
15,876.22 2019
36,103.95 2021
37,896.3 2021
7,250.14 2018
71,423.28 2021
33,535.28 2020
7,305.96 2018
40,713.39 2021
314,290 2022
169,956 2022
79,407 2022
60,727 2022
52,598 2022
669,964 2022
53,479 2023
64,010 2023
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Schedule of Major Properties
EEYERL

Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

FEH - AREF A R 2 Y s

Interest to
Property Address Use the Group TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion year
r&H BEHER
LIES 3 A& Frib R (FFXK) ERED
Shun Hing Square Junction of Shennan Zhong Road, Off., Apartment. and Carpark 100% 17,817.12 1996
Jiefang Road and Baoan Road,
Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong
FEES BEREFMIMBABREFEBRRE HAE  AFREES
RELHERR
Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Luohu, Com., Off. and Carpark 100% 10,376.58 1997
Shenzhen, Guangdong
RER L BRERmRNE R B HE - BREREES
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,  Apartment., Com. and 50% 5,853.19 1993
Guangdong Carpark
ERAE BRA M RNEAREE 2 BEREES
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,  Apartment 100% 947 .42 1993
Guangdong
ERAE BRE R RNEA KRR AE
Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Luohu, Shenzhen, Off. 100% 7,066.10 1991
Guangdong
ARERE BB RIT R SRR PRE
Noble Times Pingshan, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. 100% 26,966.97 2012
RERR BRA R FILE [EES
Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off., 75.05% 146,288.12 1994-2012
Res. and Carpark
BRABIER BRAFIMiEHE [EERE VN
EEREFES
Shenhua Science & Technology Park Meilin Road, Futian, Shenzhen, Com. and Off. 75.05% 15,341.58 1994
Guangdong
RERE BRA R 18 E B M BERPRE
Tian'an Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong 0Off., Com., Res. and Carpark 37.53% 67,268.00 1992-2005
ARENFIER BRERIHEHE PRE  BEEERESS
Tian'an Nanhai New Cyber-City Phase 2 Nanhai, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 115,699.44 2008-2015
RERBEEIM2E BRERE BE - PREREES
Tian'an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangdong Com., Res. and Carpark 37.53% 155,016.84 2010
RREBHBIM BREES B EERESES
Tian'an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 61,481.09 2010-2014
AR RE e BB ET BRERIT [CERR VN
Tian'an Dongguan New Cyber-City Dongguan, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 99,618.20 2012-2017
AEREHIEEH ERERZT BE - PRERESS
Tian'an Jiangyin Cyber-City Jiangyin, Jiangsu Res. and Off. 37.53% 26,084.68 2012-2017
R BT TEETIRT FERPRE
Tian'an Fenggang Cyber-City Dongguan, Guangdong Com., Off. and Apartment 37.53% 110,936.90 2017-2022
AL R B BRERTM BE - BRERDE
Shumyip Ta|fu Square Luohu,\SherEhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 97.68% 56,402.21 2020
REEE BRAEFImRNE B - BREREEY
Qingbaijiang Shumyip Taifu Square Chengdu, Sichuan Com., Off. and Carpark 98.81% 79,750.63 2024

under construction

BHIRERRERSERIR

M)k

B¥ - BREREES
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Schedule of Major Properties
FEYERL

Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

BB — AREF A R s

Interest to
Property Address Use the Group TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion year
AEE BEEER
M i3k i:h 3 Frib (EFXK) ERESR
Longquanyi Shum Yip Taifu Square Chengdu, Sichuan Com. and Carpark 97.68% 46,652.00 2024
under construction R -

ERBAXRERGERIR )11 B T AEREES

Tian'an Changzhou New Cyber-City Changzhou, Jiangsu 0Off. and Com. 37.53% 36,639.05 2012

AR MR LERE BT MAEREE

Tian'an Qingdao New Cyber-City Qingdao, Shandong Off. 37.53% 21,536.62 2015-2017

REEBEEH LWREESM BRE

Tian'an Tianjin New Cyber-City Xiging, Tianjin Off. 37.53% 20,130.65 2016

RERZHIEIM RETASRE WAE

Tian'an Chongging New Cyber-City Da Du Kou, Chongging Com 37.53% 27,575.96 2015

AL EREIEIH BEMAEA [EES

Tian'an Wuxi Cyber-City Wuxi, Jiangsu Off. and Com. 37.53% 81,516.41 2014

R BB TEEEHT PREREE

Tian'an Nantong Cyber-City Nantong, Jiangsu 0Off. and Com. 37.53% 69,748.01 2011

REEBEEH TEEREAT BREREF

Tian'an Nanjing Cyber-City Nanjing, Jiangsu Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 97,841.91 2014-2015

AR REEH IEBERERT B - BRAEREES

Shum Yip Garden Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. 100% 2,646.43 2002

REIEE BEREFIMmEHE (53

Sungang Warehouse Zone Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com. 97.68% 72,564.21 1990-2002
Guangdong

FHEER BRARMIMBABRELILE [EES

Composite Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com. and Off. 97.68% 4,812.73 1991
Guangdong

HRE T AR BRAERMITRNBRELIE BAERBAE

Dormitory Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com./Res. 97.68% 4,835.28 1988
Guangdong

RBEEE BRERIIMENRELILE [

Boxing Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com. 97.68% 12,861.05 2014
Guangdong

BEAE BERARIT R E KA [EES

Bolong Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com. 97.68% 39,284.24 2014
Guangdong

BEAE BRA AT R EE KA [EES

Bofeng Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com. 97.68% 10,070.39 2017
Guangdong

BEAR BRERYIT &R E AR [EES

S.Z. Int'l. Trust and Investment Junction of Zhenxing Road Off. 75.05% 1,316.54 1990

Corp. Building and Shangbu Zhong Road,
Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong

A BB EERERRRAE BER & AT iR A AR R WAE
EHHRERR

Shenyang Wuai Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Com 93.39% - 1994-1996

BEEREREN

BEREGT



260  Shenzhen Investment Limited RYI[FZ2A& AR 2 A

~(~ Annual Report F3 2023

Schedule of Major Properties
EEYERL

Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

FEH - AREF A R 2 Y s

Properties which are insignificant are not included.

TYMERTBIELEEMZWE -

Interest to
Property Address Use the Group TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion year
AEE BEEER
LS biibd A% Frib R (FFHK) EREH
Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Com. 93.39% 106,911.95 2011
and Meibo Trading Centre
BEARREREURERE ST BREEGT [HES
Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Com., Apartment. and Off. 100% 58,471.73 2009
piepi=35il 0N TERAEMT ¥ AERPAE
Chengdu Jinxiu Workshop Chengdu, Sichuan Com. and Carpark 87.91% - 2008
BB EIS Pyl RSy % i BERESES
UpperHills Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 100% 636,402.65 2017-2019
wE R BRE AT BE - PREREES
Pengji Properties Shenzhen, Guangdong and Com., Res., Off. and Carpark 100% 170,968.70 1983-2005
Nanjing, Jiangsu
lREm% BRAFITRIEHFE AR A - A% BAEREES
Xiangli Oasis Club Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. 100% 2,212.09 2003
BN e ERERAmEHEER [EES
Times Technology Building Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Off. 100% 14,061.02 2009
RRARRAE BRAFIMEHEE BERPRE
Longxi Garden Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 6,515.27 1984-1996
RERIEE BRERIIMEAR FE
Nongke Oasis Office Tower Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. 100% 323.28 2012
BREEMN AR BRAFIMiEHE PRE
Nongke Business Office Tower Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. and Com. 100% 859.16 2012
EREBHRAE ERERIHEHE BAEREE
Xiangli Garden Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. 100% 3,190.38 2003
EHE BEREFMiEHE [EE3
Tanglang City Nanshan, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Carpark and Res. 50% 65,793.98 2015-2018
FEEA BRERIIMrLE B¥  FESREE
Shum Yip Dongling Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Carpark 95% 39,441.95 2018
RERIG BRA T RHE BEREES
Jinzhi Properties Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. and multiple-use 41.28% 5,054.08 1988
EEME BRERIIMEHE RAEREAE
Sky Park Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Hotel 100% 26,880.52 2020
RER BRARIMiEHE B RBE
Shum Yip Luxury Mansion under Longhua, Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100.00% 12,721.16 2025
construction
REEMNERIR BRAMIMEER FE
Taiyuntong Talent Mansion under Longgang, Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100.00% 40,780.00 2026
construction
REBRMMERELIR BRA M EEE FE
Note to Schedule of Major Properties: FEYFERMGE
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